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Chairman’s Statement

BN K

STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

Since Tai He Financial Group Limited (“Tai He Group”) became the
controlling shareholder of Tai United Holdings Limited (“Tai United
Holdings” or the “Company”, and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group” or “We"), the Group conducted rapid
resources integration with excellent vision and innovative investment
concept. We also incorporated the industry’s first-class professional
teams, and expanded into various business segments including real
estate investment, distressed debt assets investment and management,
commodity trading and hedge funds, as well as the financial service
businesses such as securities services and insurance brokerage. Some
of our large-scale investment projects were facilitated successfully with
remarkable efficiency and results.

The Group provides customers with forward-looking layout through
establishing product lines with different income levels. We seize
investment opportunities precisely and have gained recognition and
applause from peers in and out the industry, which enables Tai United
Holdings to become a radiant nova in the investment and asset
management sector.

By leveraging on the strong resources advantages of Tai He Group, the
rich experience of our management team and advanced investment
concepts, the Group keeps on developing and be innovative, promotes
corporate governance perfection, which drives up our market value
significantly and keeps on enlarging our asset size, bringing greater
benefits to all shareholders.

Looking forward, the Group firmly believes under the support of
Tai He Group, we will continue to grasp a foothold in Hong Kong,
with Mainland China backing us up and leap internationally, we will
certainly enter into a new era of rapid development. We will conform
to trend, roll out precisely and build Tai United Holdings to become the
most core competitive leader in global asset management industry.
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Chairman’s Statement
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PROSPECTS

In view of global political and economic situations in the first
quarter, the Group expected that 2017 is going to be a year full of
opportunities and challenges. Against such background, the Group
will adjust its development strategy on a timely basis to deploy more
resources to expand its asset management and integrated financial
investment businesses, and believe that the economic environment will
exert positive impact on each of our principal business segments at
different level.

As the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"”) economy under the
supply-side structural reform is becoming more and more stable,
remarkable efficiency and results are seen in de-capacity, which drove
up the prices of certain industry metals from the bottom at the end
of last year. Under the stimulation of One Belt One Road, the trillion
dollar U.S. infrastructure plans and increasing construction investments
from the countries around the world, the price of non-ferrous metals
continued to rise in the first quarter of 2017. The crude oil price also
recovered and went up to USD50 per barrel after the production cut
agreement was reached by oil exporters in early 2017. This led to an
inflation outlook, and accordingly, International Monetary Fund also
adjusted its global economic growth forecast to 3.4% and 3.6% in
2017 and 2018 respectively. It, however, follows a rising interest rate
outlook due to the inflation because of economic growth and Morgan
Stanley anticipates that interest rate will probably go up 7 times by
U.S. Federal Reserve by the end of 2018, with a cumulative increment
up to 1.75%. Also, the political instability brought by the unexpectable
new U.S. administration, Brexit negotiations and elections in various
European countries would inevitably lead to significant fluctuations in
the capital and investment markets in 2017.

In light of the challenges and opportunities from the international
perspective, the Group will adhere to its development approach of
internationalization and diversification: rooting in China in line with
global vision, promoting each principal business segments to follow the
international development direction with headquarters in Hong Kong,
seizing market development opportunities by flexible business strategy.
It will facilitate diversification in its business, diversify industry risks and
lift up corporate operating efficiency under the comprehensive finance-
oriented approach, so as to withstand the bombardment during
adverse economic cycle. In 2017, the Group will conduct in-depth
study based on the existing businesses to construct a comprehensive
investment and asset management layout. The Group expected that
the scalable efficiency will be exploited and synergistic effects will be
achieved in each principal business segment in 2018 and the years
thereafter after the initial structure completed by the end of 2017.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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Chairman’s Statement
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PROSPECTS (continued)

The Group considers that the international markets are full of business
opportunities. Not only had the Brexit last year affected the whole
nation, it would also re-construct the real estate market throughout
continental Europe. The Group will grasp such opportunities to
continue to identify suitable real estate acquisition projects to further
consolidate its fixed assets base, as well as broaden additional income
streams. Amid the structural adjustment but not economic downturn
in the PRC, in facing of considerable challenges during economic
upgrading and transformation including excessive production capacity,
debts and stable increase of distressed debt assets inventory in
commercial banks, and such challenges are the good opportunities for
improving and strengthening the distressed debt assets business, the
Group expected that a golden era for distressed debt assets investment
and disposal would be ushered in next few years.

With regard to the outlook of 2017, by leveraging on the extensive
experience accumulated by its professional team established in
Zhejiang Province in various projects, the Group will leap forward
to those regions with larger distressed debt assets size and more
sophisticated relevant laws and regulations in the eastern provinces,
Yangtze River Delta and Pearl River Delta of the PRC, proactively
identifying and submitting tenders for quality distressed loans with
property collaterals (including land use right and title of residential,
industrial or commercial buildings). In Asia Pacific region, the business
opportunities of One Belt One Road are not only shown in the
infrastructure segment, but also contained in the reinsurance, marine
insurance and captive insurance industries. Shanghai, Hong Kong and
Singapore will competitively strive to become the insurance center
in the region. The Group will proactively seek acquisition targets to
obtain insurance licenses in the regions to gradually improve and
become an integrated financial investment services segment owning
licenses in the securities, futures and asset management sectors in
Hong Kong.

Chua Hwa Por
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017

-

Bl = (#)

MEREIRR - NREER B EMER - ZFHRE QK
TEFZERER Y EEEBEBMNKEDNFH
EmG AEERIERE BEVMECESNHFEL
EWBEE E-—SSEETEATCEEERNRA
B IR A AR RSN AR - P B IERL R IR T
THEBAES MEREEERBN BHHE
NEEERTIREBEERBTR LSRR
NHRBUANFEZHE MREHENRTRE
BEERBHMAMBNRE  NREBEF RKHK
FRARTREBEERERRENETSHN -

RE-ZF—tF AEESBREENTERILDN
EXEGRZEREFRENEELES HRHS
BRHBEH R=ARK=ZBETREBEER
BERA - HEAREAAKRANLERE BERYel
BREAEMEERRD (BRFELERERES
TEABEEEY 2 EZR)NBEIRER D
A —H— BB TERREEZRN &8
HERRE SERRMEBARRRERES
& BERFINESHEEHREFIRRR
ARBEHL AEESEERSHRE B R ARR
BEARBER ERCHEENELERES HEM
BEBERR BIEBEAERENGASRERE
ARAG IR

FE
BER

EE —T—tF=A=tNIH

AMERERAT
T -RFFR



Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS OPERATION HIGHLIGHT

We have stepped onto a new journey upon the capital and business
restructurings in early 2016. Through further expansion on the capital
base, reinforcing professionalism in the Board and the Management,
optimizing business structure, setting up strategic development
objectives and improving infrastructures, the Company gains a new
operating philosophy now. With all our efforts, the strategic plans
of the Group has been implemented during the period and will be
continually moving forward.

During the period, three new business segments including distressed
debt assets management, real estate investment and financial services
have been introduced to the Group. The overall business structure is
therefore optimized, and the profitability is strengthened. We are now
well equipped for the challenging business development in next stage.
The Group has also executed financing activities, the new funds have
been effectively supporting business development, enhancing and
reinforcing the operation foundation of the Group.

As at 31 December 2016, the consolidated total assets were over
HK$10 billion. There is a significant growth in total assets size, the
Company's competitiveness is strengthened. The consolidated profit
before taxation for the period was HK$208 million, the consolidated
net profit for the period was HK$41 million (for the year ended 31
March 2016: loss HK$116 million). The basic earnings per share for the
period was HK1.94 cents (for the year ended 31 March 2016: loss per
share of HK8.56 cents). The Group’s financial performance achieved a
turnaround.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In order to explore business development opportunities, seize market
and investment opportunities, the Group incorporated new business
elements and established new operation models. Our principal
businesses include distressed debt assets management, real estate
investment, commodities trading, securities investment and financial
services.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

EBEERH

“E-RFY EEKBRENEBEBRER
AEBEALAHNER CBE-FPRERAK
AR RICEERMNEBENEXASRE &
EEBER AR EEKRRNERBMKER
B REERERTS TR TE2HNEEED K
BTSN BREENERAZEAFEANDEE
MNEER LR B RIFERE-

AER - SEMB T IREFEERE FHER
B eRRBEF-EMEBRRE BT XBE
BRSTRENES BT —FRBRXIFH 3
RIGT D EF - REBBEERD HITEH
R THRTERFETRE THEPEREL
BRI RBEBER REHREER-

SEEERBERNBRA BEEHNPEMBR-Z
AR EEAHBEECEFI00BE L -EXR
FENEAAKEHE CLEERFLAR R
FE - ZSOHmBEE-&RAAE08EEE T
AHEFEFBMNEEE L (BHE_E—X<FE=A
=t+—HALt+=Z@A:FE11eaEEL) 8k
BB NL (BHE2=E—X"F=A=+—81t
{8 A - E51E8.56 )

£ JE):

RESEBERFTELLETSHE REBE
NEEBEBER DI AMEB TR REE
BEA - BRTEREENREANGSEZNE
E-REAGENTIELEXRBRE  TRER
BEER FHERE BAmEBEH BFRE 2
IR F -



Management Discussion and Analysis

o BILIE W K B

1.

Distressed Debt Assets Management

The Group has acquired distressed debt assets portfolios
with quality property collaterals. The professional assets
management team responsible for analyzing, assessing and
trading of distressed debt assets. It is with a target to realize
potential value upside of pledged assets. As at 31 December
2016, the fair value of distressed debt assets held by the Group
was approximately HK$453 million. The assets in the portfolios
with collaterals including residential properties, industrial
buildings, commercial buildings and lands in the PRC. The gross
profit was HK$150 million, in which with appreciation gain
HK$92 million and realized gain HK$58 million approximately.

Real Estate Investment

In view of the opportunities in real estate market in developed
countries, property investment is one of our key development
strategies. We believe that it will contribute stable returns in a
long run as well as capital appreciation to the Group.

Thanks to our real estate investment professionals, during the
period, we have successfully invested in both residential and
commercial properties in London, and with catching a perfect
timing of favorable Sterling rate. The investments involved
amount of HK$1,061 million and HK$988 million respectively.
In addition, the Group acquired a hotel facility located at
Hangzhou City at a consideration of approximately HK$1,261
million. This hotel property was revalued to HK$1,563 million
on 31 December 2016, and contributed an unrealized gain of
approximately HK$302 million.

Commodities Trading and Securities
Investment

Commodities trading business has been introduced to the
Group since the end of 2015. The trading portfolios include
crude oil and precious metals. During the period ended 31
December 2016, the revenue from commodities trading
business was approximately HK$7,867 million.

We are operating securities investment business in Hong Kong,
Singapore and the PRC, seize the opportunities and benefits
from the two international financial centers and the emerging
market. We target the listed shares of large-scale qualified
enterprises, with the purpose of capital appreciation and stable
dividend income. As at 31 December 2016, the equity securities
investment was HK$652 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Services

The Group has acquired the entire interest of a financial
institution in Hong Kong during the period. We are now
holding type 1, 2 and 9 licenses under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance with the Securities and Futures Commission
in Hong Kong, and engaging financial activities includes
securities and margin financing, trading and brokerage of
futures contracts, asset management and money lending
business.

In November 2016, the Group acquired a private company
which is holding insurance broking license in Hong Kong.
We believe that there are synergies in coordinating with the
abovementioned securities investment and asset management
business. It will work as our investment and financial services
platform to provide comprehensive and quality financial
services, and strengthen the basis of future development in this
sector.

Other Business

The medical equipment and other general goods trading
businesses shown steadily development since the operation
commenced in November 2014. For the period ended 31
December 2016, revenue generated from the segment
amounted to HK$22 million, increased with 64% as compared
with that of previous year.

We are actively exploring optimal ways to operate the mining
business. Currently, we are in process of relevant feasibility
studies, the development decisions would be finalized after
investigating the study results, and further announcements will
be made as and when appropriate or required.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

1.

Total Assets and Total Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the consolidated total assets was
HK$10,274 million (31 March 2016: HK$1,887 million),
representing an increase of HK$8,387 million during the
period. It comprised of investment properties of HK$3,626
million, distressed debt assets HK$453 million, held-for-
trading investments of HK$652 million, loan note receivable
of HK$1,461 million, mining rights of HK$455 million, fixed
assets of HK$183 million, cash and bank balances of HK$2,017
million.

The consolidated total liabilities was HK$6,042 million (31
March 2016: HK$1,029 million), representing an increase of
HK$5,013 million during the period, which comprised of bank
loans HK$1,931 million, loan note of HK$1,412 million, other
liabilities of HK$1,166 million, deferred tax liabilities of HK$245
million, amount due to ultimate holding company of HK$15
million and loan from a fellow subsidiary of HK$171 million.

Total Equity

As at 31 December 2016, the shareholders’ equity was
HK$4,232 million (31 March 2016: HK$858 million). The
increase in total equity with the amount of HK$3,374 million
during the period was contributed to the new capitals from
Rights issue and Placing, and also the net profits for the period.

Consolidated Profit For The Period

The consolidated profit for the period was HK$41 million (for
the year ended 31 March 2016: loss HK$116 million), the
financial performance achieved a turnaround. Earnings per
share was HK1.94 cents (for the year ended 31 March 2016:
loss of HK8.56 cents).

During the period, the Group incurred total expenses of
HK$500 million (for the year ended 31 March 2016: HK$198
million), of which including administrative expenses HK$173
million, exchange loss HK$61 million, finance cost of HK$101
million, income tax and deferred tax expenses HK$167 million.
The increase in total expenses was due to the business
expansion in the period. The depreciation in RMB in 2016,
increased exposures to our RMB assets and resulted in exchange
losses. Deferred tax and land appreciation tax were resulted
from the revaluation gain of the investment properties in the
PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2016, the cash and bank deposits was
HK$2,017 million (as at 31 March 2016: HK$523 million),
current assets of HK$4,460 million (as at 31 March 2016:
HK$1,410 million), current liabilities of HK$4,459 million (as
at 31 March 2016: HK$936 million). The Current ratio was
1.00 time (as at 31 March 2016: 1.51 times). The increases in
borrowings was due to the business development creates extra
funding needs.

As at 31 December 2016, the total debt financing was
approximately HK$3,343 million (31 March 2016: HK$40
million), which including the loan note issued by the Group of
HK$1,412 million (31 March 2016: Nil), property-pledged or
other asset-pledged bank loans of HK$1,620 million (31 March
2016: Nil), security-pledged margin financing loan of HK$311
million (31 March 2016: HK$40 million). As at 31 December
2016, there were no utilized or outstanding banking facilities.
The above said loan note of HK$1,412 million will be payable
on 30 March 2017, details are set out in Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

We regularly review the capital structure and key ratios, make
sure sufficient liquidity to meet the requirements of business
operations, particularly for the licensed subsidiaries.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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5.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group's reporting currency is in HKD, and we are
conducting business mainly in HKD, USD, GBP and RMB. As
HKD is pegged with the USD, there is no exposures in respect
of USD assets and transactions. However, our UK subsidiaries
conduct businesses in GBP, while the PRC subsidiaries conduct
business in RMB, there are exchange exposures in respect of
GBP and RMB assets and translations. We have implemented
policies and guidelines in relation to foreign exchange risk
management. Meanwhile, the subsidiaries in UK and PRC are
able to generate sufficient income to deal with their local
currency expenses, so that the overall exchange exposures is
low.

Capital Structure

The Group has raised approximately HK$3,349 million in total
from equity financing, the Rights Issue and the Placing during
the period. Upon the completion of this two new issues, the
issued shares of the Company increase from 1,501,092,436 to
4,803,277,308.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have significant
contingent liabilities (31 March 2016: Nil).
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8. Financial Information and Ratios 8. HMBERRLER

For the nine For the

months ended year ended
31 December 2016 31 March 2016 Changes

BE-ZT—X&§ BE-Z— X%

+=BA=+-~H =HA=+-A8
WA fEA LEFE 21

HKS$ in million HKS$ in million

(BEET) (B&EET)

Operating results REEE

Revenue EERA 8,103 1,121 +623%
Profit for the year FEAN 41 (116) N/A 3

As at As at
31 December 2016 31 March 2016 Changes

R-ZZB—XRE R-ZB-—RF
+ZA=+—H =A=+-—H 21k

HKS$ in million HKS$ in million

(BE¥T) (B&EET)

Financial position B AR R

Non-current assets ERBEE 5,814 477 +1,119%
Current assets MEEE 4,460 1,410 +216%
Total assets BmEE 10,274 1,887 +444%
Non-Current liabilities EMBEE 1,583 93 +1,602%
Current liabilities nREBEE 4,459 936 +376%
Total liabilities “aE 6,042 1,029 +487%
Total equity A 4,232 858 +393%

14 Tai United Holdings Limited
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As at As at
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
R-ZZT—RE R-ZZB-—RE
+=A=+-8 =A=+-H
Financial ratios B # Eb =
Current ratio MENLL & 1.00 1.51
Gearing ratio EEBEBLE 0.26 0.32
Return on total assets 484 E [0 3 K 3.01% -8.43%
Return on equity % B4 2 [0 ¥ 0.97% -13.52%
As at As at
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
R-ZB—RE R-ZZB—R%E
+=ZA=+-—H =Z=A=+—8
(HK cents) (HK cents)
() (BN
Earnings per share BRER
Basic HAR 1.94 -8.56
Diluted BE 1.94 -8.56
Current ratio: Current assets/Current liabilities B = REEE,/FEBEE
Gearing ratio: Net debt/(Total equity + Net debt) BEAMBLE: FEH/ (REEHE+
(Note) (3F) FE)
Return on assets:  (Profit before tax + Finance cost)/ BEEBRE: (BAEF+B A A)
Total assets x 100% S HREE X100%
Return on equity: Profit for the year/Total equity x 100% % 3R FRERAN s pmE
(0] 7 = X 100%

Note:  Net debt is calculated as the sum of the borrowings, loan notes,

loan from a fellow subsidiary and loan from ultimate holding

company less bank balances and cash
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Fund Raising Activities

The Company has actively sought for business and investment
opportunities with the purpose of maximizing shareholder
value. We keep evaluating and analyzing acquisition proposals
so as to sort out valuable investment projects. As potential
investment or business opportunities would require additional
funding, we have been looking for low risk and low cost
financing channels.

The net proceeds from equity financing and debt financing
was approximately HK$4,744 million in total during the period,
including:

1. Raise of net proceeds approximately HK$2,991 million
by Rights Issue. Pursuant to which the Company issued
approximately 3,002,184,872 Rights Shares, at the
subscription price of HK$1.00 per Rights Share based on
two Rights Shares for every one existing share on record
dates.

2. The net proceeds from the Placing was approximately
HK$358 million, the Group completed a Placement
of 300,000,000 placing shares at the placing price of
HK$1.20 per placing share to six placees.

3. The issue of Loan Notes in aggregate principal of
US$180 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,395
million) at 28 September 2016.

The Company applied the above net proceeds as working
capitals, financing acquisitions and investment projects such
as capital injection to subsidiaries for development of financial
services businesses, potential acquisitions of assets and
businesses. The use of net proceeds are as follows:

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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Funds used as intended:

1. HK$586 million was applied to distressed debt assets
investments, of which HK$96 million used to settle
the remaining considerations of the distressed assets
acquired on 12 August, while the rest of HK$490 million
is allocated to acquire three new distressed debt asset
portfolios.

2. HK$1,192 million was applied to settle the consideration
for the acquisition of London properties.

3. Approximately HK$388 million was allocated to
securities investment and commodities trading
businesses.

4. Approximately HK$241 million for the development of

real estate business.

5. Setting-off the outstanding loan of HK$1,210 million
owed by the Company to the ultimate shareholder.

Funds not yet utilized:

1. Approximately HK$550 million will be applied as share
capital and inject to the financial services business.

2. Approximately HK$250 million for development of
financial services business in Hong Kong or other
districts.

3. The residuals are reserved for operating funds.
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OUTLOOK

In 2016, the Group devoted to constructing business foundations and
building business operation methodologies. We are now prepared for
the rapid development in 2017. In the coming year, we will focus on
the development and growth of our core businesses, aiming for profit
and capital growth. Meanwhile, to attain a steady development, we
will improve our internal infrastructures and internal control framework
continuously.

Although the global economic fundamentals are still complicated and
ever-changing, we still believed that we can create value and build
advantages by following the strategic deploys and direction of the
Board. We will seize market opportunities, effectively use of resources
and enhance efficiency, endeavor to achieve sustainable growth and
development for the Group. Looking forward, we are optimistic, 2017
will keep the good momentum of 2016, we emphasis on maximizing
shareholders’ wealth, creating value for our customers and the society.
Real estate investment:  we will seize the market investment opportunities, seek for
capital appreciation and stable return.

Distressed debt assets we will fully engage in selecting asset portfolios, effective
management: capital arrangement through accurately analyzing and
judging over assets and debts, with a view to accelerate the
turnover rate and speed up the realization of potential assets
appreciation.

Commodities trading: we will effectively manage the interest rate risks and
exchange rate risks, so as to reduce the operating risks,
creating value and facilitating efficiency.

Financial services: we will integrate financial resource, establish financial
platform, create synergies, improve asset management
system, and expand investment team to enhance asset
management services.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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Biographical Details of Directors

e

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHUA Hwa Por (Mr. Chua), aged 32, is the Chairman of Tai
He Group and Chairman of the Board. Mr. Chua has over 10 years
of experience in the areas of equity investments, trading of liquefied
petroleum gas (LPG) and chemical products and trade financing. He is
studying for a Doctoral Degree in Finance at Tsinghua University. Mr.
Chua resigned on 8 July 2016 and was appointed as the Chairman of
the Board on 1 February 2017 again.

Dr. MENG Zhaoyi (Dr. Meng), aged 57, is the executive Director
and President of the Board. Dr. Meng was a State Council Insurance
Expert recognized for outstanding contributions and was entitled to
special government allowances. Dr. Meng is experienced in banking
and insurance regulations, and was involved in the negotiations related
to China’s accession to the World Trade Organisation. Dr. Meng is a
researcher, a Fellow of the Life Office Management Association, and
held professional qualifications in securities, futures and options. He
holds a Bachelor's Degree in Economics from Tianjin University of
Finance and Economics, China, a Master’'s Degree in Economics and
Doctor of Philosophy in Economics from Southwestern University of
Finance and Economics in China.

Dr. Meng served in various positions in People’'s Bank of China
from August 1985 to November 1998, including as Section Chief of
Banking Division of Financial Administration Department, PA to Deputy
Governor, Governor's Office of General Administration Department
and director of the Property and Casualty Insurance Management
Division of the Insurance Department. He served in various positions
of the China Insurance Regulatory Commission from November 1998
to March 2009, including as director of International Cooperation
Division of International Department, deputy director general and
director general of International Department. He served as a director
and first deputy general manager of China Taiping Insurance Group
and China Taiping Insurance Group (HK) Co., Ltd from 2009 to 2016.
He also served as an executive director of China Taiping Insurance
Holding Company Limited (Stock Code: 0966, a company listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) from 27 August 2013 to 25 August 2016, Dr. Meng was
appointed on 8 July 2016, and ceased to act on 1 February 2017, as
the Chairman of the Board.
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Mr. XU Ke (Mr. Xu), aged 47, is the executive Director and Senior Vice
President of the Board. Mr. Xu has over 25 years of relevant experience
in the distressed assets investment and management segment. He
holds a Bachelor's Degree in Electrical Engineering from Zhejiang
University of Science and Technology.

Mr. Xu worked in the China Construction Bank, Zhejiang Branch from 1991
to 1999, and was the director of China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd.,
Zhejiang Branch from 1999 to January 2016. He was also the director and
assistant to general manager of Zhejiang Cinda Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. from 2007 to 2010, and was the director and general manager of
Zhejiang Development Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd.* (/T 3@ {5 &
REEEHMRRA) from 2008 to 2010.

Mr. YE Fei (Mr. Ye), aged 46, is the executive Director and Senior
Vice President of the Board. Mr. Ye has over 20 years of experience
in the insurance sector. He holds a Bachelor's Degree in Arts from
China Foreign Affairs University, a Master’s Degree in Economics from
Central University of Finance and Economics, China. Mr. Ye is a fellow
member of The Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and is
a Chartered Global Management Accountant.

Mr. Ye joined the People’s Insurance Company of China in 1993;
served in various positions of China Insurance Regulatory Commission
from November 1998 to December 2002, including as Deputy Director
of the System Division of Property Insurance Regulatory Department,
Deputy Director of International Cooperation Division of International
Department. He served in various positions of China Insurance Group
in Hong Kong (which was renamed as China Taiping Insurance Group
in May 2009) from December 2002 to December 2008, including as
assistant general manager of Finance Department, assistant general
manager of Asset Management Department and general manager of
Investment Management Department. He served as deputy general
manager, chief financial officer and secretary of the board of Taiping
Life Insurance Company Limited from December 2008 to February
2015. He also served as executive director and chief executive officer
of China Taiping Life Insurance (Hong Kong) Company Limited from
August 2015 to July 2016.

*  For identification purpose only £ 2 5
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Dr. LIU Hua (Dr. Liu), aged 38, is the executive Director and Senior
Vice President of the Board. Dr. Liu has over 10 years of experience
in the areas of equity investment and securities advisory services.
He holds a Bachelor Degree in Precision Instrument and Mechanical
Engineering from Tsinghua University, a Master Degree in Biomedical
Engineering from Imperial College London and a Doctoral Degree in
Bioinformatics from University of Cambridge.

Dr. Liu served as an executive director and a member of the investment
decision committee of Guotai Junan Innovation Investment Co., Ltd.
(BZEELRFIEEERARF), a wholly-owned subsidiary of a
company with its SSE stock code: SH: 601211) from December 2008
to August 2014. He served as the general manager of International
Department of Donghai Securities Co., Ltd. (R/EZFERHERRAF])
from September 2014 to November 2015.

Mr. CHEN Weisong (Mr. Chen), aged 37, is the executive Director
and Chief Financial Officer (Senior Vice President) of the Board. Mr.
Chen has over 10 years of experience in asset management industry.
He holds the qualification as a Chartered Financial Analyst from the
CFA Institute. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, and was licensed as a responsible officer for
Type 9 (asset management), Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 4
(advising on securities) regulated activities of the SFC, and received a
Master of Philosophy Degree from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Chen worked for CCB International Asset Management Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Construction Bank Corporation
from April 2008 to February 2016. He was a non-executive director
of Universal Medical Financial & Technical Advisory Services Company
Limited (Stock Code: 2666, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange) from 6 March 2015 to 13 April 2016.

Mr. Chen was appointed as a committee member of Nanshan District
Shenzhen Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, the PRC with effect from October 2016.
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Mr. WANG Qiang (Mr. Wang), aged 40, is the executive Director
and Senior Vice President of the Board. Mr. Wang has over 15 years
of experience in the areas of investment banking and commodities
trading. He holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Financial
Mathematics from Peking University and a Master of Science Degree in
Financial Engineering from The National University of Singapore.

Mr. Wang worked for DBS Bank in Singapore in the areas of risk
management and quantitative analysis from 2002 to 2004. He was the
head trader in UBS AG Hong Kong and Singapore from 2004 to 2006,
focusing mainly in USD interest rate and commodity structure products
trading in the Asian markets. He was the vice president of Marketing in
Lehman Brothers Hong Kong Division from August 2006 to July 2007,
responsible for corporate clients from Mainland China. He has been
acting as managing director of Huacheng International Resources Pte
Ltd. since 2007.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. LIU Yan (Ms. Liu), aged 46, is the independent non-executive
Director. Ms. Liu has over 20 years of solid experience in auditing,
financial management, taxation and fund management. She holds a
Bachelor Degree in Economics from the Central University of Finance &
Economics, a Master Degree in Business Administration from University
of Rochester, and is a member of Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (CICPA).

Ms. Liu has worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers (Guangzhou, China),
Barclays Capital (New York City), Angelo Gordon Asia Limited (Hong
Kong and New York) and China Everbright Limited (Hong Kong). Ms.
Liu was appointed as an independent non-executive director of U
Banquet Group Holding Ltd (Stock Code: 1483, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) with effect from 1 November
2016.
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Dr. GAO Bin (Dr. Gao), age 54, is the independent non-executive
Director. Dr. Gao has extensive knowledge and rich experience in
foreign exchange, fixed income, equity and commodity investment.
He holds a Bachelor Degree in Space Physics from University of
Science and Technology of China, an MA from Princeton University in
Astrophysics and a PhD Degree in Finance from New York University

Dr. Gao currently serves as Chief Investment Officer/Founder of
Invealth Capital. He has been serving as a special term professor at
School of Economics and Management and PBC School of Finance of
Tsinghua University since 2002. He served as a senior vice president of
Lehman Brothers from 2004 to 2005. He served as a managing director
of Merrill Lynch from 2005 to 2014, in charge of interest strategies
in Asia Pacific. He was a tenured associate professor of the finance
department at University of North Carolina-Business School, USA
before joining this industry.

Mr. MAO Kangfu (Mr. Mao), age 66, is the independent non-
executive Director. Mr. Mao has over 20 years of experience in the
areas of machinery manufacturing and economic management. He
graduated from Xinjiang Normal University (#7528l 88 A2 ) (formerly
known as Xinjiang Kashi Normal College ( #7588 {1 Al #5 FBI 242 - 7
SEIZHENE 2P ) ) in China.

Mr. Mao served as the general manager of Zhejiang Wenzhou
Dongfang Shipyard* (J#7)I 8 M % 75 f1 &) from December 1984 to
December 1993. He served as the general manager of Wenzhou
Mechanic Company* (B N # 4% 42 2 &)
1996. He served as the chairman of Wenzhou Economic and Trade
Commission CRMEEERZ 5Z E€ ) from July 1996 to June 1998. He
served as the vice mayor of Wenzhou from July 1998 to June 2003. He
served as the chairman of Zhejiang Jinwen Railway Group Company*
I RE LB A F]) from July 2003 to June 2006. He also served

E,»v»r

) from January 1994 to June

as the general manager of Zhejiang Airport Authority* (/T #35
A 7)) from July 2006 to August 2008.

*  For identification purpose only (£ {4 5/
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Biographical Details of Directors

5 R

Mr. TANG King Shing (Mr. Tang), GBS, PDSM, aged 62, is the
independent non-executive Director. Mr. Tang holds a Master’s Degree
in International and Public Affairs from The University of Hong Kong.
In March 2013, Mr. Tang was appointed a member of the National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
of the PRC. In June 2013, he was appointed a director of the Hong
Kong News-Expo. In September 2015, he was appointed as the
Chairman of the Country and Marine Parks Board of the Agriculture,
Fisheries and Conservation Department for a term of two years and he
is an honorary advisor of Hong Kong Strategy.

Mr. Tang took office (until retirement) as Commissioner of Hong
Kong Police from January 2007 to January 2011. He has been serving
as vice chairman and executive director of the board of Hong Kong
Airlines since 28 September 2016. He also served as an independent
non-executive director of Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 148, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange) from 1 August 2013 to 31 October 2016.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRBE -~ A& BRI

To promote its strategic sustainable development philosophy, perform
its commitment to the environment and society and create values
for staff, customers and shareholders, the Group prepares the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”) in
accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities of Main Board of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
The ESG Report is jointly prepared by the major stakeholders of intra-
group, including management and relevant staff, which conducts
significant assessment on the respective environment, social and
governance issues of the Group based on the principles of significance,
balance and consistency and so on in reporting. The ESG Report
covers the environmental, social and governance issues relating to the
principal activities of the Group for the nine months from 1 April 2016
to 31 December 2016 (the “Reporting Period”).

A. ENVIRONMENTAL
A1. Emissions

In recent years, the Group focused mainly on the
development of real estate investment and integrated
financial investment services segments, which have not
generated any exhaust gas and sewage emission during
daily commercial operation.

As regards to mining and exploitation of natural
resources, the Group currently holds four tungsten
mining licenses through two wholly-owned Mongolian
subsidiaries. The Group is in compliance with all
the laws and governmental rules and regulations in
Mongolia relating to mineral resources exploitation
and its renewal, and the Group’s four mining rights
are still in effect and in good standing as at the end of
Reporting Period. During the Reporting Period, no active
mining operation of the Group has taken place yet, and
the Directors expect that the mines exploitation will
take place no later than the end of 2018. As such, the
emissions relating to exhaust gas, sewage and wastes
during the mining process are not applicable temporarily
during the Reporting Period.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRBE - A& RGO

A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1.

A2.

Emissions (Continued)

As regards to daily operation, the Group initiates
vigorously green office, establishes office automatic
system and promotes paperless operation and achieves
electronized documentation to reduce waste papers. At
the same time, in using motor vehicles due to business
travel, we proactively promote the co-travelling motor
vehicle approach to reduce greenhouse gas emission.

As regards to waste treatment, the Group conducts
waste sorting treatment approach. The Group places
waste paper recycling bins next to printers to uniformly
collect and dispose of waste paper boxes and waste
newspapers and magazines.

During the Reporting Period, there was no breach of
relevant laws and regulations relating to exhaust gas
and greenhouse gas emission, discharges into water and
land, hazardous and non-hazardous waste generation.

Use of Resources
The Group is committed to promoting environmental

protection,
and advocating commercial acts accountability to

hoping to improve resources utilization

the environment so as to minimize possible risks of
impact on the environment arising from business
development. To save energy, our offices use energy-
saving lights and electronic equipment with high energy
efficiency, set and conduct modulated temperature and
timing control on air-conditioners to reduce energy
consumption. The Group also advocates water recycling
utilisation to save water resources. To implement the
idea of saving resources persistently, the Group actively
participates in office energy-saving and environmental
protection activities promoted by property management
company of the building where it locates, for instance,
resources recycling activity, with a view to improve
staff’'s awareness in energy conservation and emission
reduction.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRBE -~ A& RGO

A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

Although the core business of the Group has
insignificant impact on environment and natural
resources, the Group still always strictly abides by
laws, regulations and national standards relating to
environmental protection. Through incorporating
the impact of its operation on environment as one
under the four
basic principles of reduction, recycling and
replacement, the Group promotes green office
environment and endeavours to minimize the impact
of the Company’s operation on environment. For the
Mongolian tungsten mining business, the Group has
already engaged a mining professional to prepare a
feasibility study report for tungsten mines exploitation,
conduct an assessment in various aspects, and prepare
long-term planning for the sustainable development of
the environment and tungsten resources in future. In
addition, the Group constantly assesses and monitors

of its significant considerations,
reuse,

the environmental risks in its daily operation, and
formulates corresponding mitigation measures promptly
when discovering any potential risk to the environment,
so as to ensure such risk can be controlled and reduced
to an acceptable level.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BB~ A& RGO

SOCIAL

B1.

Employment

Staff is the cornerstone of the Group’s long-term
development. The Group values talent development
and team construction and strives to introduce talents
through multi-channels and cultivate talents through
the adoption of an incentive mechanism. The Group
has its human resources management policy in place
to regulate matters relating to staff recruitment,
promotion, dismissal, working hours, holidays,
remuneration packages and benefits. The remuneration
of the Group's employees is determined with reference
to market standard and industry practice. Meanwhile,
the Group distributes bonuses to employees to the
extent possible according to profitability as incentives
for the contributions they made to the Group. The
benefit plan of the Group's staff comprises mandatory
provident fund, medical insurance, annual leave, sick
leave, maternity leave and other pay holidays. The
Group also established an annual performance appraisal
system to review the remuneration policy regularly,
with an aim to reward and motivate the contribution
and performance of employees and assist them in their
career development and promotion within the Group.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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SOCIAL (continued)

B1.

Employment (Continued)

Based on merit and capabilities, the Group adheres
to the principle of open position recruitment, equal
competition, two-way selection and engagement of
the excellent. Candidates are required to undergo an
objective orientation examination and interview to
assess whether their abilities can meet our development
requirements. At the same time, the Group is also
required to ensure the fairness of the overall recruitment
process through stringent approval procedures. As an
equal opportunity employer, the Group is committed
to providing a fair and equitable working environment.
The Group prohibits the occurrence of any forms of
discrimination in its working environment, including
recruitment, re-designation, remuneration and
promotion. The Group establishes the reporting and
complaint mechanism system to report or submit
complaints to the officer-in-charge of the human
resources department immediately in case of any
biased treatment, so as to conduct appropriate follow-
up actions by the Company. If our employees have any
problems or opinions, they could give feedback through
the communication channels established by the Group.

To improve the sense of belongings of our staff, the
Group has organised a variety of activities relating to
fraternity, cultural and sports, recreation, health and
caring of staff for our staff during the Reporting Period,
so as to promote corporate culture.

During the Reporting Period, there was no breach of
any relevant laws and regulations such as Labour Law
relating to human resources.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

B2.

Health and Safety

The Group provides staff with satisfactory and safe
working environment and takes all appropriate
measures to safeguard their health and safety. The
Group provides detailed guidelines to staff to have
a clear understanding of the fire escape routes and
escape procedures of the working location. In case of
accident during work or within the working arena of
the Group that requires first aid help or has discovered
any unsafe factors in any place of the Group, the staff is
required to immediately inform the administrative affairs
department for assistance. At the same time, the Group
also sets up guidelines for staff's working arrangement
under adverse weather conditions (such as rainstorm,
typhoon) to safeguard staff safety to the greatest
extent.

For tungsten mines exploitation, as no active mining
operation of the Group has taken place yet, the
guidelines on providing safe working environment and
protection of employees from occupational hazards
was not applicable during the Reporting Period. Once
the mines exploitation commences officially, the Group
will formulate code of practice and conduct regular
occupational safety training on mining staff, require
staff to get equipped with protection equipment, and
conduct on-going monitoring regarding the mining
environment to ensure working environment safety.
At the same time, the Group will also adopt advanced
technology to enable mining operation more efficient
and safe.

During the Reporting Period, there was no breach of
relevant laws and regulations relating to employee
health and safety.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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SOCIAL (continued)

B3.

B4.

Development and Training

The Group recognises the importance of staff
development and provides on-the-job training and
development opportunities actively to promote the
growth of staff and the Group. Newly employed staff
will continue to learn and improve themselves during
the mentoring by experienced staff, thereby fostering
their independent working capability. In future, the
Group intends to set up education allowances to
encourage staff to commence continuing study relating
to current works or for long-term career development
purpose to meet the business development goals of the
Company.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly complies with the employment
laws and regulations of the region where it locates
and upholds the principle of fairness, openness and
voluntariness for staff employment. The Group prohibits
the employment of child labour and forced labour,
and once any breach of regulations is discovered, the
labour relationship will be terminated immediately. At
the time of job-entry induction, the Group will require
identification document and valid employment visas of
candidates and conduct due diligent investigation on
their basic information, sign legal labour contracts and
also conduct regular review thereafter to see whether
there are signs of laws and regulations infringement
during staff employment. During the Reporting Period,
there was no breach of relevant laws and regulations
relating to prevention of child labour or forced labour.
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The Group places great emphasis on sustainable
and green procurement and adheres to the principle
of openness, fairness and transparency for supplier
selection. At the same time, the Group reviews and
standardizes sustainable procurement processes through
a dedicated department taskforce. The administrative
affairs department formulates the "“Guidelines for
Procurement Process Standard of Office Supplies and
Fixed Assets” to assist departments in making smart
procurement decisions and the guidelines will be
updated regularly. The Group will endeavor to continue
looking for ways to be even more environmentally
friendly and cost-efficient in sourcing activities, and
choose to cooperate with suppliers possessing corporate
ethics, employee interests and caring and environmental
protection visions. In the future, the Group will
continuously plan and develop the supplier selection
mechanism to reinforce the suppliers’ requirements
on environmental protection, labour safety and staff
protection. Meanwhile, the Group also intends to carry
out regularly annual assessment regarding supplier
performance to make sure suppliers continue to
satisfy the Group’s requirements in the environmental
protection and social responsibilities aspects.

Product Responsibility

Targeting at the real estate investment and integrated
financial investment service businesses, the Group
provides high quality products and services to different
customer groups and handles customer complaints
effectively to constantly improving its customer service
standards to assure customer satisfaction. Through
supplying products and services with clear explanations
and provisions, the Group provides sufficient
consultation and guidance to customers, helping them
to understand and select products and services they
need as well as providing accurate information for their
investment decisions.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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SOCIAL (continued)

B6.

Product Responsibility (Continued)

The Group implements responsible marketing strategy,
and all sales, promotion documents and data are
in compliance with the requirements of relevant
advertisement laws and regulations, which have no
exaggerated marketing tactics.

The Group is responsible for protecting the privacy of
customers or consumers. The Group has “Staff Code
of Practice” in place to standardize the principle of
management, usage and abide by confidentiality of
business data. Except for the public documents as
specified in laws and regulations, the Group strictly
follows the relevant privacy ordinance and never allow
information disclosure without the approval of data
owners. At the same time, the Group stresses the
importance of protecting customer information to staff,
prohibits casual management and storage of customer
information and devotes all our efforts to prevent the
leakage of customer information.

During the Reporting Period, there was no breach
of relevant laws and regulations relating to privacy,
product, service quality and marketing.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B7.

BS8.

Anti-corruption

The Group firmly believes that honesty, integrity,
dedication, diligence and fairness are important assets
of a company. Meanwhile, it also stringently complies
with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance and strives to
maintain clean management and operation structure of
the Company. The Group has “Staff Code of Practice”
in place to standardize the staff's code of conduct and
the guidelines on conflicts of interests, and requires
staff to report regularly any conflict of interests. Besides,
the Group also establishes a reporting and complaint
mechanism to call on staff to keep alert and submit
complaints about potential matters which will give
rise to such illegal activities like fraud, swindle, theft,
corruption and whistle-blow the complaints.

During the Reporting Period, there was no breach of
relevant laws and regulations relating to prevention of
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Community Investment

In the future, the Group will draft the community
caring plan according to the development direction of
the community where it locates, moderately devote
effective resources, support community construction
and development, encourage staff to be active in
participating relevant charitable activities to enhance the
engagement of staff, promote humanistic atmosphere
among the Group and establish a sound corporate
culture.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
standards and adhering to the principle of corporate governance
with emphasis on transparency, independence, accountability and
responsibility. The Board reviews its corporate governance practices
from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations of
shareholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in corporate
governance.

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code”) throughout the nine months
ended 31 December 2016 as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, except for certain deviations disclosed herein.

DIRECTORS’ AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”), as amended from
time to time, as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by its Directors. Having
made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during
the nine months ended 31 December 2016.

The Company’s Model Code also applies to all employees who are
likely to be in possession of inside information of the Company. No
incident of non-compliance of the Model Code was noted by the
Company during the nine months ended 31 December 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company’s affairs and is collectively responsible for promoting the
operating development of the Company by directing and supervising
its affairs. All Directors could take decisions objectively in the interests
of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Responsibilities (Continued)

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company,
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions, financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and chief executive officer
(the "CEO") should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and the CEO should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The Chairman’s responsibilities are to provide leadership to the Board
and formulate the Group’s business strategies. The Chairman is also
responsible for ensuring the Board works effectively, in particular,
ensuring all Directors receive reliable, adequate and complete
information in a timely manner. The Chairman may communicate
with the Directors directly or through the assistance of the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) to discuss
or clarify any issues concerning the Group from time to time, and
to provide any supporting information and documents to them. The
Chairman assumes the primary responsibility for ensuring that good
corporate governance practices and procedures are established.

The CEO is responsible for the day-to-day operation of the Group and
accountable to the Board for all aspects of the corporate performance,
as well as recommends policies to the Board for consideration and
approval, and keeps the Board informed of any material developments
of the Company’s business. The CEO may delegate his duties to any
other management members or responsible officers of the Company
but he assumes the principal responsibility.

As at the date of this annual report, the Chairman is Mr. Chua Hwa
Por, and Dr. Meng Zhaoyi is the CEO.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Composition

The Board currently comprises seven executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"”). The Directors during
the reporting period and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chua Hwa Por (Chairman)
(resigned on 8 July 2016 and
appointed on 1 February 2017)
Dr. Meng Zhaoyi* (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 24 May 2016)
Mr. Xu Ke (appointed on 1 June 2016)
Mr. Ye Fei (appointed on 28 October 2016)
Dr. Liu Hua
Mr. Chen Weisong (appointed on 22 June 2016)
Mr. Wang Qiang (appointed on 16 December 2016)
Mr. Hu Yebi (resigned on 28 October 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Mao Kangfu

Dr. Gao Bin

Ms. Liu Yan

Mr. Tang King Shing (appointed on 1 February 2017)

* Dr. Meng Zhaoyi was appointed as the Chairman with effect from 8 July
2016 and ceased to act as the Chairman with effect from 1 February
2017.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
INEDs and their Independence

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016, the Board at
all times met the requirements under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs with at least one of
them possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election.
INEDs are not appointed for a specific term. However, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”).

Each of the INEDs had made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all INEDs are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of the Directors

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this annual report
are set out in the "Biographical Details of Directors” section on pages
19 to 24 of this annual report, which demonstrates a diversity of skills,
expertise, experience and qualifications.

Pursuant to Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors
shall retire by rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at the
annual general meeting of the Company at least once every three
years. All retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced Board
composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists across
the Board and has more than one-third in number of its members
comprising INEDs.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Group. Each executive Director is suitably qualified for his position,
and has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to carry out his
duties effectively and efficiently.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Meetings

The Board schedules at least four regular meetings a year and also
meets as and when required. During the nine months ended 31
December 2016, the Board held 24 meetings. The Company Secretary
assisted the Chairman and the executive Directors in establishing the
meeting agenda, and each Director was able to request inclusion of
items in the agenda. All such meetings were convened in accordance
with the Bye-laws.

Under code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code, notice of at least 14
days in advance should be given of a regular board meeting to give all
directors an opportunity to attend. During the nine months ended 31
December 2016, certain Board meetings were convened with less than
14 days’ notice to enable the Board members to react timely and make
expeditious decisions in respect of urgent corporate transaction and
general business update which was significant in nature. As a result,
the individual Board meeting was held with a shorter notice period
than required with the consent of the Directors. The Board will do its
best endeavour to meet the requirement of code provision A.1.3 of the
CG Code in the future.

Adequate and appropriate information are circulated to the Directors
normally three days in advance of Board meetings or such period
accepted by them. In addition to regular Board meetings, the Chairman
held a meeting with the INEDs without the presence of the executive
Directors during the nine months ended 31 December 2016 pursuant
to code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code.

Minutes of all Board and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection by the Directors.
Draft minutes of all Board and committee meetings are circulated to
all Directors and committee members for comments within the period
accepted by them after each meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Attendance of Directors at Various Meetings

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016, the attendance
of each Director at the Board meetings, committee meetings, the
annual general meeting held on 30 September 2016 (the "AGM") and
the special general meetings (the “SGMs") held on 8 July 2016, 11
October 2016 and 3 November 2016 respectively are as follow:

EER#)
EEENESHERBR

BE_Z-RF+-_A=+—RILNEA 5%
EHFEEREH ZEETE N Fh
RA=+HB87 Zﬂxﬁﬂiﬁ‘\(ﬂﬁiﬁfﬁjﬁéj)
ERARR_FE-—R"RFLANA  _FT—XRE+H
JF*E&f’%*/\EJr*ﬂ:E%TTZHQ%%%U
Ag (TRERBAIKXKE) 2HEBRNAT

Attended/Eligible to attend

HE/ GEKREE
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
EZREeR BENZESEE REZESgE FMZEgeR BRREAE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Chua Hwa Por (Chairman) BEREL (FE) 7/(7) N/AT 32 A N/AT 32 A N/AT 32 F N/AT 33 R
(Note 1) (HEzE)
Dr. Meng Zhaoyi HREBL 23/(23) N/AT 3 A N/AT 3 A N/ATT i F 3/(4)
(Chief Executive Officer) (Note 2) (77B48%) (KisE2)
Mr. Xu Ke (Note 3) IRAI A (PHEE3) 20/(20) N/AT 32 A N/AT 32 A N/AT 32 A 0/(4)
Mr. Ye Fei (Note 4) BIE% £ (MEE4) 8/(8) N/AT i N/A7 i F N/AT i A 0/(1)
Dr. Liu Hua MEEE L 22/(23) N/AT i N/A7 i F N/AZ i F 3/(4)
Mr. Chen Weisong (Note 5) BRAE NS & (B3E5) 18/(18) N/AZR i N/A7R i N/A7R i F 3/(4)
Mr. Wang Qiang (Note 6) Faak 4 (MizEe) (1) N/AT 3 A N/AT 3 A N/ATT i F N/AT i F
Mr. Hu Yebi (Note 7) BB LA (HE7) 10/(12) N/AT 32 A N/AT 32 A N/AT 32 F 0/(3)
INEDs BUHHTEE
Mr. Mao Kangfu EREXELE 22/(22) 3/(3) 4/(4) 4/(4) 1/(4)
Dr. Gao Bin mEEL 17/(22) 3/(3) 4/(4) 4/(4) 1/(4)
Ms. Liu Yan 2+ 18/(22) 3/(3) 4/(4) 4/(4) 3/(4)
Mr. Tang King Shing (Note 8) B E AL A& (FE8) N/A i N/AT i N/A7 i F N/AZ i F N/AR i FB
Notes: P 5
Note 1: resigned on 8 July 2016 W1 : RZTE—-—AFELANBEME
and appointed on 1 February 2017 WH=ZZT—tF-_A—BEZHE
Note 2: appointed on 24 May 2016 W2 : RZTE-—A"FRAZ+MNAEZE
Note 3: appointed on 1 June 2016 W3 : RZT-—A"FAA—BEZAE
Note 4: appointed on 28 October 2016 WiEd: RZT—AR"F+AZ+N\AEZE
Note 5: appointed on 22 June 2016 W5 : RZTE—AR"FAAZ+-AEZAE
Note 6: appointed on 16 December 2016 W6 : RZT—AR"F+-A+AEZE
Note 7: resigned on 28 October 2016 W7 : RZTE—AR"F+AZ+N\BEE
Note 8: appointed on 1 February 2017 8 M-ZE—+tF_A—HEZT
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Attendance of Directors at Various Meetings
(Continued)

According to the code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, all independent
non-executive directors and non-executive directors should attend
general meetings of listed issuers. Mr. Mao Kangfu and Dr. Gao
Bin, the INEDs, were unable to attend the AGM and the SGMs held
on 8 July 2016 and 3 November 2016 due to their other business
engagements. Ms. Liu Yan, the INED, was unable to attend the SGM
held on 8 July 2016 due to her other business engagements.

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016, each newly
appointed Director was given an induction after his appointment so
as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the Group's
business and of his duties and responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. The Company
provides regular updates on the business performance of the Group
to the Directors. The Directors are continually updated on the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable statutory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeeping of good corporate
governance practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh knowledge and skills. The
Company has received confirmation from all Directors of their
respective training records for the nine months ended 31 December
2016.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Corporate Governance Functions

Pursuant to code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, the Board is also
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties as set out
below:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

() to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed by the Board in
discharge of its corporate governance functions.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against all costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in the
execution of and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto, the
Company has arranged respective insurance plan for this purpose.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with a specific written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the
Company's policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors
and senior management of the Company. No individual Director
is involved in decisions relating to his/her own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee has adopted the model under code provision
B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

As at the reporting date of this annual report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises four Directors, all of them are INEDs. The
members of the Remuneration Committee are:

Dr. Gao Bin (Chairman)

Mr. Mao Kangfu

Ms. Liu Yan

Mr. Tang King Shing (appointed on 1 February 2017)

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration
Committee held 4 meetings. The attendance of each member during
the nine months ended 31 December 2016 is set out on page 40 of
this annual report.

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the nine
months ended 31 December 2016 included:

(1) reviewed and recommended the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and senior management for the year ended
31 March 2016, the nine months ended 31 December 2016
and the year ending 31 December 2017; and

(2) reviewed and recommended the remuneration packages of
the newly appointed Directors for the nine months ended 31
December 2016.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with a specific written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) stipulating the composition of the Board. The Company seeks
to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualification, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

As at the reporting date of this annual report, the Nomination
Committee comprises four Directors, all of them are INEDs. The
members of the Nomination Committee are:

Dr. Gao Bin (Chairman)

Mr. Mao Kangfu

Ms. Liu Yan

Mr. Tang King Shing (appointed on 1 February 2017)

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination
Committee held 4 meetings. The attendance of each member during
the nine months ended 31 December 2016 is set out on page 40 of
this annual report.

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the nine
months ended 31 December 2016 included:

(a) reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

(b) identified individual suitably qualified to become Board
members and made recommendation to the Board on their
appointments;

(c) assessed the independence of the INEDs; and

(d) made recommendations to the Board on the retiring Directors
for re-election at the AGM.

Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the Board’'s
composition,
requirements set out in the Board Diversity Policy had been met.

the Nomination Committee is satisfied that the

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with a specific written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting process, assisting the Board to ensure effective risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and providing
advice and comments to the Board.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

As at the reporting date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
comprises four Directors, all of them are INEDs. The members of the
Audit Committee are:

Ms. Liu Yan (Chairman)

Mr. Mao Kangfu

Dr. Gao Bin

Mr. Tang King Shing (appointed on 1 February 2017)

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016, the Audit
Committee held 3 meetings. The attendance of each member during
the nine months ended 31 December 2016 is set out on page 40 of
this annual report.

The work performed by the Audit Committee during the nine months
ended 31 December 2016 included:

(a) reviewed with the auditor the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2016 and reviewed the unaudited
interim financial statements for the six months ended 30
September 2016, with recommendations to the Board for
approval;

(b) reviewed the risk management report on monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group;

(o) reviewed the compliance issues with the regulatory and
statutory requirements;

(d) reviewed with the management of the Company the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group; and

(e) proposed to the Board to engage Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
("Deloitte”), as the new auditors of the Company to fill the
vacancy following the resignation of BDO Limited ("BDO") as
the auditors of the Company on 2 August 2016 and extend the
term of office until the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company, and to nominate the appointment
of Deloitte as the auditors of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge
its duties and may access to independent professional advice if
considered necessary.

Ms. Liu Yan, the Chairman of the Audit Committee, possesses relevant
professional qualifications and financial management expertise under
Rule 3.10(2) and the Audit Committee meets the requirements of Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016, the remunerations
paid and payable to BDO and Deloitte for audit services and non-audit
services regarding the review of interim financial statements and other
assurance and non-assurance engagements rendered to the Group are
as follow:

BB AT &

REE-ZE-—RFTRA=+—HIAERR-
A AN 55 B B 41 2 o BB 7 i R 2 B R LA AR
R TN BZIRE RIFER RN T
EREkEHzHMMT

Fees paid/payable

2 EBNER
BDO Deloitte
VEER =5
HK$'000 HK$'000
Services rendered Rtz k% FET FAT
Audit services BEZRG 861 3,312
Non-audit services FEEZ R 65 3,582

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group for the relevant accounting periods under
applicable statutory and regulatory requirements which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs, the results of operations and cash
flows of the Group. In preparing the financial statements for the six
months ended 30 September 2016 and for the nine months ended
31 December 2016, the Directors have adopted suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently.

The responsibility of the auditor with respect to financial statements
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 70 to 79 of
this annual report.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

BEMEREFX

EXSAERBEREZEREEREREEBS
MO AEBEMBEHRE AEEM A FHRBRA
SENPBRN BEXERRERE-EERN
BEBE_ZT-RNFAA=ZTRLENBEAMREE
TE-RETZA=T-BIENAEANRBERE
B ERMEESTHRRLEBRABZEFRE

BB ZEMBHRREENETHNAFRE
T0EEETIB ZBYRZHMBEEN -



Corporate Governance Report

18 3 B 6 WAl

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining a sound
system of risk management and internal control within the Group and
reviewing their effectiveness. However, such system was designed to
manage various risks of the Group within certain acceptable risk level,
rather than complete the elimination of the risk of failure to achieve
the business objectives of the Group, and can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
Audit Committee assists the Board to oversee management in the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems.

The Group has established a risk management framework, including
the construction of the architecture for the aforementioned
organisation and definition of the responsibilities of all parties
concerned, and prepared risk management policies and processes and
clarified the risk assessment procedures, which, specifically include risk
identification, risk analysis, risk control and risk report.

Step 1: Risk identification — identify current risks exposed to the
Group and business and existing management and control
measures therefor.

Step 2: Risk analysis — analyse the possibility, extent of influence
and existing management and control measures, identify risk
exposure, and propose further countermeasures.

Step 3: Risk control - implement and periodically detect the
identified risks to ensure effective operation of risk
countermeasures.

Step 4. Risk report — summarise the results of risk management
analysis, prepare action plans and report to the management,
Audit Committee and the Board.
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In addition, the Group has appointed an external professional firm
to assist in reviewing the existing risk management system and
conducting risk assessment. A new set of corporate risk management
policy and procedure will be established and approved in due course
and a risk committee will be formed accordingly to oversee the risk
management function and the relevant risk management procedures.
During the nine months period under review, major risks relevant
to our businesses have been identified by the Group and respective
controls to mitigate those risks have begun to set up. The Board is of
the view that the Group's current risk assessment system is effective
and adequate, and will perform periodical reviews so as to improve
and safeguard the effective operation of our risk management system.

The Group has developed an internal control mode, following
the principle of Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COSO”), consisting of five elements, i.e.
control environment, risk assessment, control, information and
communication, and monitoring. In this control mode, the Group's
management is responsible for design and implementation of internal
control measures and maintenance of the effectiveness thereof, and
the Board and Audit Committee will supervise the appropriateness of
internal control measures as designed by the management and the
effective implementation of internal control measures. Meanwhile, the
internal control has adapted to the Group's scale of operation, scope
of business, competition and risks, and be subject to adjustments
according to changes in circumstances in a prompt manner. It will be a
long-lasting and continuous work to improve internal control system,
execute standard system and intensify supervision and examination of
internal control.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016, the Audit
Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s material
internal controls. Internal control procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publication, and
ensuring compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations. The
Board is of the opinion that the resources for and qualifications of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function
are adequate and sufficient. Based on information furnished to it and
on its own observations, the Board is satisfied with present internal
controls of the Group.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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Code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code provided that a listed company
should have an internal audit function which generally carries out the
analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness
of its risk management and internal control systems. The Group has
conducted an annual review on whether there is a need for an internal
audit department. Given that the Group has engaged an independent
professional firm to review on its risk management systems for the
nine months period under review, and the operation structure of the
Group is relatively lean, the Board decided to be directly responsible
for monitoring the effectiveness of its risk management and internal
control systems with the support of Audit Committee.

The Group regularly reminds the Directors and employees for the
compliance of policies regarding the inside information, and provide
them with update on the appropriate guidelines or policies to ensure
the compliance with regulatory requirements. The Group is aware of its
obligation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), the
Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside information should
be announced on a timely manner and conducts its affairs in strict
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations prevailing in Hong
Kong.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors
should take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company. The
Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and
other significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities
relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing, and
coordinating the daily operation of the Company are delegated to the
senior management.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016, the role of the
Company Secretary was Mr. Cheng Sik Kong (“Mr. Cheng”). He
was responsible for facilitating the Board process, as well as the
communications among the Board members, shareholders and
management. The Company Secretary also prepared detailed minutes
of each meeting. Board minutes would be sent to the Board for
comments as soon as practicable. Mr. Cheng reports directly to the
Board. All Directors also have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary to ensure that all applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed. During the nine months period under review,
Mr. Cheng undertook no less than 15 hours of professional training to
update his skills and knowledge. Mr. Cheng resigned as the Company
Secretary on 6 February 2017, and Ms. Yam Wai Wah Jenny was
appointed as the Company Secretary on the even date.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
all shareholders. The annual general meeting of the Company is a
valuable avenue for the Board to enter into direct dialogue with
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and the chairman of Board
committees will attend the annual general meeting to answer any
question. In addition, the Company convened three SGMs during the
reporting period approving various corporate transactions and the
meetings were convened in accordance with the Bye-laws, the Listing
Rules and the corporate governance procedures of the Company. These
provided further opportunities for shareholders to comment and vote
on specific transactions.

The interim and annual reports of the Company are dispatched to
shareholders in a timely manner before the time limits laid by statutory
and Listing Rules requirements to ensure effective communication with
shareholders.

All the shareholders of the Company are given at least 20 clear
business days’ notice before the date of the annual general meetings
and at least 10 clear business days’ notice for all other general
meetings.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

All the annual and interim reports, circulars, announcements and
notices of shareholders’ meetings as required under the Listing Rules
will be available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Company has also complied with the requirements concerning
voting by poll under the Listing Rules. Details of the poll voting
procedures and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll are
included in circulars to shareholders dispatched by the Company and
explained by the chairman of general meeting at the meeting. All
resolutions proposed at general meeting are voted separately.

Procedures for convening a special general
meeting

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene
a special general meeting of the Company. Pursuant to Bye-law 58
of the Bye-laws, shareholders holding in aggregate of not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company may send a written
request to the Board or the Company Secretary to request for a special
general meeting; and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after
the deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholder(s) concerned,
must state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Suites 1206-
1209, 12th Floor, Three Pacific Place, 1 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
or at the Company's branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with
the requirements under Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of 3 months from the said date.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

Procedures for convening a special general
meeting (Continued)

A meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be
convened by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of
the failure of the Directors duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid
to the requisitionists by the Company, and any sum so repaid shall be
retained by the Company out of any sums due or to become due from
the Company by way of fees or other remuneration in respect of their
services to such Directors as were in default.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward
proposals at general meetings

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal
(which may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a
general meeting of the Company:

(a) any number of members representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of the Company on the date
of the requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 shareholders holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must
be deposited at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Suites 1206-1209, 12th Floor, Three Pacific Place, 1T Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong or at the Company's branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. The Company
would take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements,
and the shareholders concerned would be responsible for the expenses
incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements
under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents
are received.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries
to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to the
Board in writing via the following channel:

In respect of the corporate affairs:

The Board of Directors/Company Secretary
Tai United Holdings Limited

Suites 1206-1209, 12th Floor

Three Pacific Place

1 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

E-mail: ir@taiunited.com

Facsimile: (852) 2527-1144

In respect of the other shareholding/entitlement affairs:

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the nine months ended 31 December 2016.
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the nine
months ended 31 December 2016.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the special general meeting
held on 8 July 2016 and the Certificate of Incorporation on Change of
Name and the Certificate of Secondary Name issued by the Registrar
of Companies in Bermuda on 15 July 2016, the change of the English
name of the Company from “Bestway International Holdings Limited”
to “Tai United Holdings Limited” and the adoption of the new
secondary name of the Company in Chinese of “AFE& B R A F)"
became effective on 12 August 2016.

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

Pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors passed on 8
December 2016, the financial year end date of the Company has been
changed from 31 March to 31 December to align it with the financial
year end date of the Company’s principal operating subsidiaries
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China which accounts are
statutorily required to be prepared with a financial year end date of 31
December and thereby facilitate the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. Accordingly, the current financial
period covers a nine-month period from 1 April 2016 to 31 December
2016 and the comparative figures cover an entire year from 1 April
2015 to 31 March 2016, which may not be comparable with the
amounts shown for the current period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group
is principally engaged in (i) distressed debt assets management; (ii) real
estate investment; (iii) commodities trading; (iv) securities investment;
and (v) financial services.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 54 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the nine months ended 31
December 2016 by segments are set out in note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group during the nine months
period, an analysis using financial key performance indicators and
particulars of important events affecting the Group that have occurred
since the end of the financial year ended 31 March 2016 as well as a
discussion on the Group’s further business development are provided
in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” sections of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group include
strategic, operational and financial risks.

Strategic Risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan based on the knowledge
to the external environments. The Group will invest in projects
and investments based on the strategic plan in order to cope with
the market demand and expectation. Given the rapid change
of unforeseeable external environments in the financial and
equity markets, the Group is facing significant strategic risks on
its investments when changing the strategic plans to adopt the
unexpected changes of external environments.

Operational Risks

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure that
the Group’s risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise, resulting
from fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and compliance
matters, are adequately managed.

Financial Risks

The principal financial risks are set out in note 46(b) to the
consolidated financial statements headed under “Financial risk
management objectives and policies”.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the nine months ended 31 December
2016 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income on pages 80 to 81.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the nine months ended 31 December 2016 (for the year
ended 31 March 2016: Nil).
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CHARITABLE DONATION

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the nine
months ended 31 December 2016 (for the year ended 31 March 2016:
Nil).

SHARES ISSUED

Details of the shares issued in the nine months ended 31 December
2016, together with the reasons, are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group
during the nine months ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note
55 to the financial statements and in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity on pages 84 to 85 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had no retained profits
available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie. Under the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the Company’s contributed surplus of
HK$53 million is currently not available for distribution. The Company’s
share premium account in the amount of HK$4,342 million may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

EQUITY LINK ARRANGEMENT

(@) Issue of 5% redeemable fixed coupon
guaranteed, secured and unsubordinated
notes (the “Loan Notes”) and proposed grant
of unlisted warrants under specific mandate
(the “Warrants”)

On 28 September 2016, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement (the “"Subscription Agreement”) with
Mr. Chua, Tai He Group, Tai Infinite Holdings Limited ("Tai
Infinite”), Cheer Hope Holdings Limited (“Cheer Hope"),
Haitong International Investment Fund SPC (“Haitong”) and
Songhua Investment Holding Limited (“Songhua”), of which
Mr. Chua, Tai He Group and Tai Infinite are the guarantors
and Cheer Hope, Haitong and Songhua are the investors (the
“Investors”), pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, in
consideration of the subscription of the Loan Notes by the
Investors, the Company conditionally, agreed to grant to the
Investors the Warrants. The Warrants would entitle the holders
thereof to subscribe for up to 279,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company at an initial warrant shares subscription price of
HK$1.0 per warrant share (the “Warrant Share”) during the
warrants subscription period. No additional monetary amount
is payable by the Investors to the Company for the grant of

Warrants.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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EQUITY LINK ARRANGEMENT (continued)

(a)

(b)

Issue of 5% redeemable fixed coupon
guaranteed, secured and unsubordinated
notes (the “Loan Notes”) and proposed grant
of unlisted warrants under specific mandate
(the “Warrants”) (Continued)

Details of the conditions precedent for the grant of Warrants
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 28
September 2016 and the Company's circular dated 15
December 2016.

On 5 January 2017, a special general meeting was held for
the purposes of considering and, if thought fit, passing with
or without modifications, the resolution (the “Resolution”)
in respect of the grant of the Warrants and the allotment and
issue of the Warrant Shares under the specific mandate by the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) at the
meeting. At that special general meeting, before the Resolution
was put to vote, certain Shareholders requested for an
adjournment of such meeting to allow more time to consider
the impact of the proposed grant of the Warrants including the
dilution impact on the shareholding of the Company. Pursuant
to Bye-law 64 of the Bye-laws and with the consent of the
meeting at which a quorum was present, the chairman of the
meeting adjourned the special general meeting until further
notice.

Details of the issue of Loan Notes and proposed grant of
Warrants are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements and the Company’s announcements dated 28
September 2016, 30 September 2016, 5 October 2016 and 5
January 2017 and the Company's circular dated 15 December
2016.

Share option scheme

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and movements
in share options during the nine months ended 31 December
2016 are set out in note 52 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pt 1 809 &2 BE (aw)

(a)

(b)

RO5%TREOEERSE R
R BEARFERERE ([EX
ERDRESBREBESAIRERH
FLmRARER ([RRER])
(#&)

ROREFZ EREGFBER AR T
AHA—ZT—R"FENAZTN\HHNAER
ARl ABA-Z— X "F+_A+HHEX
EK A o

RZB—+F—AHHA AARBITRE
FRIRE REBEMBBREBEELRAR
BER(TRR])RARE EREFREER
i AR B 8 A I B B % B 1T R A AR Ak 0
MRER ([RBR]) (TWALER) -
RZBERENARE L RERBRETR
ERRA - ETRRERGAGES U
EEBEZRHZEEARORBERZ
TE BREAQAARENEEZE-R
BEABMAAEAMERNAE (RBEEA
BHFEIRET KREXFEEHBRRER
RELEH BEERTTRAR/L-

BITERERREEAE L RREZFNTS
BN A M BmMERNEI6RARF B
BZE—XRFALAZ+NB ZZT—XF
hWA=+8 Z2—~"F+ARAKRZ=F
—tF-ARENAERARFGARAAS
E-R"F+A+THAMBEA -

B I RE St &
AREARBE-E—AFT-A=+—H

IENE AR 8 R BB B
AR A M ISR M FES2

AMERERAT
T -RFFR

57



58

Report of the Directors
3R ol

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders of the
Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 247 of this annual
report.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment
and investment properties during the nine months are set out in notes
16 to 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTIONS OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016, neither the
Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any
of the Company’s listed securities.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the nine months ended 31 December 2016 and
up to the date of this annual report were:

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors

Mr. Chua Hwa Por (Chairman)
(resigned on 8 July 2016 and
appointed on 1 February 2017)
Dr. Meng Zhaoyi* (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 24 May 2016)
Mr. Xu Ke (appointed on 1 June 2016)
Mr. Ye Fei (appointed on 28 October 2016)
Dr. Liu Hua
Mr. Chen Weisong (appointed on 22 June 2016)
Mr. Wang Qiang (appointed on 16 December 2016)
Mr. Hu Yebi (resigned on 28 October 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Liu Yan

Dr. Gao Bin

Mr. Mao Kangfu

Mr. Tang King Shing (appointed on 1 February 2017)

* Dr. Meng Zhaoyi was appointed as the Chairman with effect from 8 July
2016 and ceased to act as the Chairman with effect from 1 February
2017.

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, Dr. Meng Zhaoyi, Mr.
Xu Ke and Ms. Liu Yan shall retire from office and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
Pursuant to Bye-law 86 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Chua Hwa Por, Mr. Ye
Fei, Mr. Wang Qiang and Mr. Tang King Shing shall hold office until
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the meeting.

Each of the INEDs had made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all INEDs are independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
The Director’s biographical information are set out on pages 19 to 24.
DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in notes 35, 37, 38 and 44 to the consolidated
financial statements, no other transactions, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest subsisted
during or at the end of the nine months ended 31 December 2016.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or were in existence during the nine months ended 31
December 2016.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions are disclosed in note 44 to
the consolidated financial statements. None of these related party
transactions constitutes a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ BEERFTETHAERRKR®D  HHEE
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, RO EEBEHFNEZEAXAE
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the RZE—RNF+ZA=+—H ARAEFERE
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying 2ITBAEBRA QA EAMEEEE (KFFH
Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated RHIE GO EXVED 2 R ) 8 A5 8B AR 5 =k
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO as required EHFTRHEREES L EEOIFE3521&48 E A
to be kept and recorded in the register maintained by the Company FARZBHERARRFAFENE LA EZ &

pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the WA RIR B FEETRIA BTG RNR R LB
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were = RRBEWT

as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company REQXRRGDZHR

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
ordinary capital of
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held the Company
(Note 3)
NN
ERTREAZ
BEEgE ERME S EREE BHEI L
(M45E3)
Mr. Chua Hwa Por Interest of controlled corporation 3,422,865,742 71.26%
B SE REHDER 2w (Note 1)
(Hg5E1)
Beneficial owner 446,742,544 9.30%
ExEAA
Dr. Liu Hua Beneficial owner 50,000,000 1.04%
MBS+ ExnEAA
Mr. Sang Kanggiao (Note 2) Beneficial owner 1,080,000 0.02%
RERERE (M52) EnEAA

AMERERAT 61
—ZE-XEFR
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

Long positions in the shares of the Company
(Continued)

Notes:

1. Of these shares, 2,655,429,222 shares are held by Tai He Group and
767,436,520 shares are held by TAIl Capital LLC, each of which is a
company wholly owned by Mr. Chua Hwa Por.

2. Mr. Sang Kanggiao is the legal representative and director of a PRC
subsidiary of the Company.

3. The percentage represented the number of shares held over the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2016 of
4,803,277,308 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors nor chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code of the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, so far as is known to the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following persons, other than a Director
or chief executives of the Company, had interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section

TERRRAEMATRRG RIEE
BROBERRKXAE

RZB-—RE+ZA=+—R0 BARRAEFNK
ITETBABMA A TAL(ARARIESEHT
EITBABRIN) RAR A M) sk 8 RE R ) o
BREBEESMAEGRIAOANRRRE ZEE K
KA IIRBES M ERPIE336FBHALL
ARENECMZERIAR NASTHEAR

336 of the SFO, or had otherwise notified the Company were as

REIMEDSSORBNT

follows:
Long positions in the shares of the Company REATRGZHFR
Approximate
percentage of
Number of issued share
ordinary capital of
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest shares held the Company
(Note 3)
EARAR
ERITREAZ
KRR E B ERME FEERREE BHEIHL
(MH5E3)
Tai He Group (Note 1) Beneficial owner 2,655,429,222 55.28%
AR (FFEET) EnfEAA
TAI Capital LLC (Note 1) Beneficial owner 767,436,520 15.98%
TAl Capital LLC (BffsE1) EmlEEA
Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. ("HTS") (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 660,000,000 13.74%
BBEEFRMHDERLAG ([BEESF]) REGEE 2
(Ki7E2)
Haitong International Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 660,000,000 13.74%
("HTIH") (Note 2) RESEE 2 #ER
BB ERERAT (BEEBRER])
(K7E2)
Haitong International Securities Group Interest of controlled corporation 660,000,000 13.74%
Limited ("HTISG") (Note 2) HESEE R
HRERESFERGR AT
(['EREERESE®R]) (ME2)
Haitong International New Energy VIII Beneficial owner 660,000,000 13.74%
Limited (“"HTINEV") (Note 2) EanEAA
Haitong International New Energy VIII
Limited (THTINEV ) (F&E2)
AMERERAR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(Continued)

Long positions in the shares of the Company
(Continued)

Notes:

1. Each of Tai He Group and TAI Capital LLC is wholly owned by Mr. Chua
Hwa Por.

2. Based on the disclosure of interest notices filed by each of HTS, HTIH,

HTISG, HTINEV on 24 November 2016, these interests are held by
HTINEV, which is wholly owned by Castle Range Developments Limited,
which in turn is wholly owned by Haitong International (BVI) Limited.
Haitong International (BVI) Limited is wholly owned by HTISG, which is
turn owned as to 61.01% by HTIH. HTIH is wholly owned by HTS.

3. The percentage represented the number of shares held over the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2016 of
4,803,277,308 shares.

Save as disclosed above, there is no person other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company, who had an interest or short position
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS ON
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

On 28 September 2016, the Company as the borrower entered
into the facilities agreement (the "“Facilities Agreement”) with
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited as the lender
(the “Lender”) in relation to the loan facilities in an aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$800,000,000 (the “Facilities”), which
includes terms imposing specific performance obligations on the
controlling shareholder of the Company which constitute disclosure
obligation pursuant to Rules 13.18 and 13.21 of the Listing Rules.
The Facilities comprise of (i) an uncommitted term loan facility of up
to HK$500,000,000 for a term of up to 36 months after the date on
which the first advance is made thereunder; and (ii) a revolving loan
facility of up to HK$300,000,000 for a term which may rollover to up
to 12 months after the date on which the advance is made thereunder
subject to review by the Lender from time to time.

Pursuant to the Facilities Agreement, among other things, upon
the occurrence of any event that Mr. Chua, the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company, ceases to (a) directly or indirectly hold
and beneficially own 30% or more of the total issued share capital of
the Company; or (b) be entitled to exercise or control the exercise of
30% or more of the voting power at general meetings of the Company
(save for any voting restrictions under the Listing Rules or the Code on
Takeovers and Mergers in respect of any matter for which Mr. Chua
(and person or persons controlled by him) is required to abstain from
voting); or (c) control the largest block of total issued share capital or
voting power at the general meetings of the Company, the Company
will be required to prepay all outstanding principal amount under
the Facilities within the prescribed period. If the prepayment of the
relevant amount is not made within the prescribed period, an event of
default will occur in accordance with the Facilities Agreement.

In addition, Mr. Chua and certain companies controlled by him will
provide certain collateral securities for the Facilities in favour of the
Lender, including, (a) a personal guarantee by Mr. Chua in favour
of the Lender; (b) the subordination of all the shareholder’s loans
advanced to the Company by Tai He Group, a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Chua, to the Secured Debt (as defined in the Facilities
Agreement); and (c) the mortgage of an office property owned by
Excel Fine Holdings Limited, a company ultimately wholly-owned by
Mr. Chua, in favour of the Lender. Any breach of the obligations,
undertakings and warranties given under the finance documents
constituting these collateral securities which is not remedied within
the prescribed grace period (if any) will constitute an event of default
under the Facilities Agreement.

Details of the specific performance obligations on controlling
Shareholder are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 28
September 2016.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016, the percentages of
the Group’s turnover attributable to its largest customer and five
largest customers were approximately 61% and 80% respectively.
The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 71% of the Group's
total purchases and the amount of purchase attributable to the
Group's largest supplier was approximately 19% of the Group’s total
purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, or their
respective associates, or shareholders owning more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital had any beneficial interests in any of
the five largest customers or suppliers.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES AND
EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group recognises our employees as the key element that
contributes to the Group's success. As at 31 December 2016,
the Group had 92 (31 March 2016: 35) employees, of whom
approximately 54.3% (31 March 2016: 97.1%) were located in Hong
Kong and the rest were located in Mainland China and overseas.

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of
individual employees and on the basis of trends of salaries in various
regions, which will be reviewed regularly every year. Apart from
mandatory provident fund and medical insurance, share options may
also award to employees according to the assessment of individual
performance.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and recommended
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company's
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in
note 52 to the consolidated financial statements. The Board believes
that the Group maintains admirable relationship with the employees.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the Company
are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 35 to 53
of this annual report.

PROVISION OF GUARANTEE

On 15 December 2016, the Company has entered into the deed
of guarantee (the “"Deed of Guarantee”), pursuant to which the
Company had agreed to provide a guarantee (the “Guarantee”) in
favour of the shareholders of the non-voting participating redeemable
shares in the capital of Haitong Global Investment SPC Il (the “Fund
Portfolio Company”), a segregated portfolio company incorporated
under the laws of the Cayman Islands with limited liability, which
designated as Class P Participating Shares in Haitong Dynamic Multi-
Tranche Investment Fund IV S.P, a segregated portfolio created by
the Fund Portfolio Company, for the performance of the guaranteed
obligations under the Deed of Guarantee. The maximum liability of the
Company under the Guarantee is US$103,000,000.

Details of the provision of Guarantee are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 15 December 2016.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
annual report, there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company'’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors nor their respective associates was interested in,
apart from the Group's businesses, any business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events after 31 December 2016 of the Group
are set out in note 56 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Bye-law 166(1) of the Bye-laws provides that, among other, every
director and other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them shall or may incur sustain by or by reason
of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices and related
matters provided that the indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of them.

In this connection, the Company has arranged directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the
Company during the nine months period.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the nine months period, the Company was not aware of any
non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that had
significant impact on it.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to reducing its carbon footprint and
consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects of business
operations. Our environmental strategy is to achieve a balance
between the quality and efficiency of our services and the minimization
of greenhouse gas emissions and environmental degradation.
Accordingly, the Group has taken a proactive approach to effect
internal and external communications by means of telephone, emails
and conferences or such other communication means which are
efficient yet environmentally friendly. Also, the Group are able to
minimise physical travelling and printing.

For more details regarding the Company’s environmental policies and
practices, please refer to the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” on pages 25 to 34.
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AUDITORS

BDO resigned as auditors of the Company and its subsidiaries with
effect from 2 August 2016, and Deloitte has been appointed as the
auditors of the Company and its subsidiaries with effect from 5 August
2016 to fill the vacancy following the resignation of BDO. Save as
aforesaid, there was no change in auditors during the past three
financial years. A resolution for re-appointment of Deloitte as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Meng Zhaoyi
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
29 March 2017
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Deloitte.

To the Shareholders of Tai United Holdings Limited
AMERERAA

(Formerly Known as Bestway International Holdings Limited)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tai United
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group"”) set out on pages 80 to 246, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the nine months
ended 31 December 2016, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the nine months ended 31 December
2016 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certificated
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Qur responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code"),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BRRETER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, BRETFEEEBRMOZEAEG RREAR
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial HEe M BRERN BT R REENFIH ELS
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in BHeERMEBEAEEGREMBERERLEERF
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a ETEEN BN I e ELEEREERENE
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a R o

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters

HMEESEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EMNEANMEEERETSAE

Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter due to the determination of the fair value of
investment properties is dependent on certain unobservable
inputs and key assumptions that require significant management
judgements which is assessed based on a method of valuation
which makes reference to market evidence of transaction prices
for similar properties in the same location and conditions and
where appropriate by capitalisation of rental income from
properties.

BRI EDELHERERETFH RARETREMER
RERANEEEBRERERHEVRELETEZ2RIBR S
RARRZEBUME TSR ZERRIER (HER)BEBKKEY
FZMEWABERETEZE T IAIEREBABEREZRRK-

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s investment properties
is carried at HK$3,626 million as disclosed in Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements, unrealised gain on fair
value changes of investment properties of HK$304 million was
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
RZE—RF+ZA=+—8B #AWOEEHEREWNF17ET#H
B BEECREWMENIE3EEBTALR BREWELR
EZH 2 RERWH304ABEETINGS P HMKRER -

REYXZ1GE

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
investment properties included:

B REMEAEETZEFER

° Obtaining the valuation reports provided
by the management and assessing how the
management reviewed the valuation reports;
BSERERMZGERS AT EERENME
Bl ERE

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of independent qualified professional
valuers and obtaining an understanding of
the valuers’ scope of work and their terms of
engagement;
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Key audit matters

B EEHE

.....

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BEMWETNMEERRETSE

Valuation of investment properties

All the Group's investment properties are measured at fair
value based on valuations performed by independent qualified
professional valuers. Details of the valuation techniques and key
inputs used in the valuations are set out in notes 5 and 17 in the
consolidated financial statements.
EXEMAREMENREBBEIAEREEMEMEL 2 HER
RAEFSE - HERMBZMERMN R 28 ABE 2 FHEHR
e VBRI EESR17 -
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REYRZ1GE

Challenging the valuation techniques and
reasonableness of the significant inputs adopted
by the management and the valuers based on
our knowledge of the property industry;

ERBPEYMETEZ TREYERE L& ERDPT
Rz RERMEREREERA ZEETREE

Ex

HE 5

Comparing the market transactions and market
rentals with similar properties and locations; and
HEBEUDERMBE TSRS RTHEEE: &

Assessing the specific assumptions made by the
management on adjustments to the properties’
valuations by taking into account of condition,
location, discount rates, market rents and other
individual factors.
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Key audit matters

BRETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BEMWEFNAEERARETSE

Valuation of financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss - distressed debt assets

EEREARBHABREZEHEE-TREKEEZIAE

We identified the valuation of financial assets designated as
at fair value through profit or loss — distressed debt assets as
a key audit matter due to the valuation assessment requires
management to make significant judgements in determining the
fair value.
BMBERIECTREAANEFABERLEREE-TREBEEZ
HEAMRENEE RESHENGREEEENEERAAER
TEH SR # & -

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's financial assets designated
as at fair value through profit or loss — distressed debt assets are
carried at fair value of approximately HK$453 million. The fair
value was determined based on lower of the fair value of the
collaterals of the distressed debt assets or the carrying amount
of distressed debts assets. The Group engaged an independent
qualified professional valuer to perform this valuation. A direct
comparison approach was used to determine the fair value of
the distressed debt assets by making reference to comparable
market transactions of the collaterals and adjusting according to
the conditions and natures of the collaterals to arrive at the value
for sale under repossession after taking into account the directly
attributable costs to sale.

RZE-RE+A=+—H EEEEEREAANETAE
meMEE-TREBEEDNKRAABENISSEESTARK A
AEDNERTREFEEERARZANER TR EBEEREE
MECBRIEEETE BREZR-—EZBUAERIXMEME
TR E - AEMEAEERLBEAL2EERAR A ELLERT
BRGETIREFREEZ AAE TR REZEERMGIHEKAE
BRIRBEER R AN R EEFELERABAEBROGEEE-

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of financial
assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss —
distressed debt assets included:
BMMEEARAAEFTABRZEREE—TRER
BEZHEETZIREFERE:

° Obtaining an understanding of the control over
the processes that management performed
in relation to the valuation assessment of its
distressed debt assets;
TREBESREMNREBEE ZMENGHETZ
R B

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of independent qualified professional
valuer and obtaining an understanding of
the valuer’s scope of work and their terms of
engagement;
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Key audit matters

B EEHE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BEMWETNMEERRETSE

Valuation of financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss - distressed debt assets

EERBEAARBHABEZEHMEE-TREFEEZIAE

Further details relating to valuation assessment on the Group's
financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss
— distressed debt assets are set out in notes 5 and 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

£ BEEETREAANEAAEZZEMEE-—TREBKE
EZHENGE - PHBEREN GRS W HRE M5 %26,
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Challenging the valuation techniques and
reasonableness of the significant inputs adopted
by the management and the valuer to market
data to assess the appropriateness of these
judgments, estimations and adjustments; and
HE IR Ik EAD P ER AN 2 1 (B 50T B BA 5 BUR
WAZEBMRLER EHLTHEIERZT G
ZEHE A LARREREE R

Obtaining legal opinion from the Group’s
external legal counsel on the legal rights and
titles on the collaterals of the distressed debt
assets.
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Key audit matters

BRETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BEMWESFNMERERARETSEE

Estimated impairment of mining rights

HRIERE A1 a1 R 1E

We identified the estimated impairment of mining rights as a key
audit matter due to the significant management judgements are
required to estimate the recoverable amount of the mining rights.
BMEAREERESHERSTFE RASEEEMATIRER
2 P W (B <5 & By 7R 48 PR 8 K HY FI I

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of the mining
rights in Mongolia was HK$455 million. The recoverable
amounts of the mining rights is determined based on the
value in use calculation and certain key assumptions. Value in
use calculation used the discounted future pre-tax cash flows
expected to be derived from the cash-generating unit that holds
the mining rights and the Group has engaged an independent
qualified professional valuer to perform such valuation. The key
assumptions used in estimating the projected cash flows are
tungsten metal estimated selling price, estimated future costs
of production, estimated future operating costs, recoverable
reserves, resources and exploration potential, discount rates and
exchange rates.

RIB-—RE+ZA=+—B FazREREREERISAEE
T REE AN E S EDRECAEEAERE T I ERRE
EorfEERBENRRATERRERERBERRSEAENY
MBEAREBRRSRE T EEECEE-— 2B ERFEXEM
BRETEBEE RAEARSREMEACEIEZERZR/ER
[BIAFHEE  AETRRAEERAE e KRR EHA AT RES
BREMEEN MRERER-

Our procedures in relation to the estimated impairment
of mining rights included:

B RBERENGORELET ZEF R

° Understanding the key control and processes
that the management performed in relation to
the impairment assessment of mining rights and
the preparation of the cash flow forecast;
TW“EE%%%%M@&%&%%E%WE
BIFTET 2 E BB RIEF

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of independent qualified professional
valuer and obtaining an understanding of
the valuer's scope of work and their terms of
engagement;
HEBUSEREEGEMEE EHREE
i IT%%E%ZIW%H&E%%ﬁ%:

° Evaluating the reasonableness and appropriateness

of the significant inputs and assumptions including
tungsten metal estimated selling price, estimated
future costs of production, estimated future
operating costs, recoverable reserves, resources
and exploration potential, discount rates and
exchange rates with reference to external and
industry information;
2 EZ NI AT E B R AR B SR BUR 3 A\ R R R
ZEBMREEE BEELBEFEE A5t
RIREERAR  HEHRRGERA  ATRFEE &
IR BN ERE 77~ BEER R e [ %

° Engaging our internal valuation expert to assess
the appropriateness of the valuation model,
methodology and discount rate adopted;
ZEABHEEERFEERANEERS 7
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Key audit matters

B EEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BEMWETNNEERARETSE

Impairment of mining rights

HRIBRE L1

Further details relating to the management impairment e
assessment on the mining rights are set out in notes 5 and 21 to

the consolidated financial statements.
EHAEREBHREBERZBREN L ZE —FPH BN G BRE
PMiaE5 K21 o

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2016 were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those on 3 June 2016.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

Obtaining legal opinion from Mongolia external
legal counsel and confirmation from the Mineral
Resources and Petroleum Authority of Mongolia
on the Group’s mining rights are still in effect
and in good standing.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

FERE CEBRFER) EITRRIBIED - 5
BRTERAE RETERRRER - HML:

BB RN GFF B R M EBERE M
BHREAFEERERBMOR R Rt R
TR EANEBEE LR R AR ER
FTRMBEENENRE FREMERN
Ept - X HGFrIaE S RER RE - ER
BIR - ERERAL SR ER MR ES 2 £
AUt RAEH R ARFMERNEXHRR
AeER RN ARERRABRMEBNE
K5 AR PR 10 LR

B S St AR R RO BB A REHE S
WEFEN - BENLIFY BEEBEN
ZHIARMERER -

FEEEMRAEABRENRE L RIED
BRHEA AR REN SR

HERRAKELLSTERNRE R
HER - RIBPIEDRMETERE BEES
FHERFERERNEHENERNTHTE
femA e EsY BESENBELEED
EEBAREE -MREMABREFEEART
HEN AEVBEERBMBETIRHRRE
REIBHEEMBRRTPOEBRE R
ERRNBETIR BIRMEZEERIFE
REBR -RAIMGEHTENZBARE
B EFTEUS &SR RE - AT - RIREIR
HENAEER ERETREFELE-

FEGAVBRRNERIBIA &EF
MAR BREEE UEREEMBEHRRE
BHRERRZZIMEIRE-



Independent Auditor’s Report
35 37 e B A

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lau Chi Kin, Kinson.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
A 1H i M At 4 T WY AR R

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 &= —F— < F+=-A=+—HILNEA

Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
NOTES HK$"000 HK$'000
BE-Z—XE HE-ZT—XF
+=BA=+—H ZA=+—8H
IEAMEA IEFE
B 5% FERT FHET
Revenue Wz 6 8,102,730 1,121,247
Other income H b A 8 16,267 2,260
Other losses (gain) HEEE (W) 9 (59,863) 222
Purchases and changes in inventories FEZEBENRED (7,882,354) (1,041,520)
Employee benefits expenses EE®EMMAX (43,125) (7,944)
Other operating expenses HMgEmx (129,430) (15,921)
Changes in fair value of investment WEMERNARBEEE
properties 17 304,430 -
Impairment loss on mining rights RIERE 2 REBX 21 - (217,083)
Share of results of an associate D5 — B & AR A (46) -
Finance costs B 5 Rk AN 10 (100,644) (43)
Profit (loss) before tax BREBADER (B5E) 207,965 (158,782)
Income tax (expense) credit g (Ax) &L 11 (166,858) 42,708
Profit (loss) for the period/year e FEERN (BE) 12 41,107 (116,074)
Other comprehensive (expense) Hibz2m (X)) WE:
income:
Items that may be reclassified HErpEEFTDHE
subsequently to profit or loss: BamsHE :
Exchange differences arising from REBINEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations N ZH (19,464) (646)
Reclassification of cumulative exchange — R H & —BWE A 76
differences to profit or loss upon HEFTELEFEERHSHE
disposal of a subsidiary ZiEH 49 1,224 -
Share of exchange difference of D —fHBE R ARELZR
an associate 153 -
Other comprehensive expense for HE/ FEAEMEERX
the period/year (18,087) (646)
Total comprehensive income (expense) Hif "F£E 2@ (BX)
for the period/year pogc] 23,020 (116,720)

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

i HE A M B Ath % v Wi 4 R

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z—"F+=-A=+—HIE (@A

Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-®-AF BE-TAF
+=A=+-8 =p=+-8
LEAE B I
B 5 FHET FET
Profit (loss) for the period/ LT ALTEGEE,
year attributable to: FERM(BHE)
Owners of the Company KRAREEE A 41,263 (116,204)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (156) 130
41,107 (116,074)
Total comprehensive income (expense) BT A X E{EHIR,
for the period/year attributable to: FEXHEWE (BIX)A%H:
Owners of the Company KRAREEA 23,559 (116,850)
Non-controlling interests e (539) 130
23,020 (116,720)
(restated)
Earnings (loss) per share TlRaEF (EHE) 15 (EHHR)
- Basic (HK cents) — &R (B 1.94 (8.56)
AMERERAR

T -RFFR

81



82

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Bk 1 9 25 51K D e %

At 31 December 2016 R —ZE— X F+_-A=+—8H

At At
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
NOTES HKS$'000 HK$'000
R-ZE—RF RZE—RF
+=A=+-8 =A=+-8
B 5% FERT FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BREREE 16 182,567 12,161
Investment properties wEYE 17 3,625,760 -
Goodwill S 18 12,014 -
Intangible assets mEEE 19 32,366 -
Mining rights RIERE 20 454,541 454,541
Interest in an associate NI s 22 15,301 -
Loan note receivable FEREHRER 23 1,460,808 -
Available-for-sale investments A EZRE 24 1,429 -
Deposits for potential acquisitions BIEWE 2 1R® 29 - 10,000
Pledged bank deposits BEMIRITER 31 19,713 -
Other non-current assets HMIEREERE 9,932 -
5,814,431 476,702
Current assets REEE
Inventories A 25 1,834 845
Financial assets designated as EERERAREA
at fair value through profit or loss BamsemEE 26 452,600 -
Accounts receivable JE W BR 3K 27 85,063 3,271
Held-for-trading investments RHIEEEZHRE 28 651,856 760,613
Deposits, prepayments and other Be BENFIER
receivables oAt & Wk 1E 29 410,467 47,749
Financial derivative contract TRITEED 30 = 75,266
Restricted bank deposits 2R HIRITIFE R 31 841,106 -
Bank balances and cash RITHEBEAS 31 2,016,662 522,631
4,459,588 1,410,375
Current liabilities REAE
Financial derivative contract TRITEEDN 30 12,685 -
Accounts and bills payables FETBR R R N R iR 32 910,591 -
Accrued liabilities and other payables it aE R E A KIE 33 151,366 2,398
Borrowings (== 34 1,931,096 40,245
Amount due to ultimate holding JE A S % 1 IR R RRIE
company 35 14,728 4,798
Loan notes BERERE 36 1,412,116 -
Loans from ultimate holding company BREERRARIZER 37 - 877,040
Tax payables FEA i 1A 26,724 11,528
4,459,306 936,009
Net current assets REBEEFE 282 474,366
Total assets less current liabilities BREERRBESE 5,814,713 951,068

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

o £3 B 25 5IR D ¥ e

At 31 December 2016 R=—ZE— X FE+=-A=+—8

At At
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
R=ZZ—REF RZT—RF
+=A=+-A8 =ZA=+-~8
B 5 FHET FAET
Non-current liabilities FREAE
Loan from a fellow subsidiary ARMBABZER 38 171,444 -
Other non-current liabilities HEMIERBEE 39 1,165,586 -
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBE G 40 245,453 93,158
1,582,483 93,158
Net assets EEERE 4,232,230 857,910
Capital and reserves EXR#EE
Share capital &N 41 240,164 75,054
Reserves # % 3,989,016 773,841
Equity attributable to owners of RRFIHEA AEEER
the Company 4,229,180 848,895
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR HE = 42 3,050 9,015
Total equity R 4,232,230 857,910

FROE246 B AV BHRREON T —LF=
AZTNABREZRUERFENE SLHAT
REREE:

The consolidated financial statements on pages 80 to 246 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29
March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Dr. Meng Zhaoyi Mr. Chen Weisong

LZEEEL RERTE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF 2

AMERERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 B ZE =%

—REFZA=t+—HIEAEA

Attributable to owners of the Company

N

KAAEEAEL
Deemed
Contributed capital Non-
Share Share surplus  contribution  Translation Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Subtotal interests Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note a) (Note b)
B4 BE
B&  RGEE  BREE  TERE  EXEE  ZHER Nt FERER L]
TET ThL TETL TER TR TER TEL TET TAL
(Miska) (kD))
At 1 April 2015 RZE-14mA—-A 52,296 837,222 52,743 - (108) (319,225 622,928 2,885 625,813
(Loss) profit for the year £ (B58) 87 - - - - - (116,204)  (116,204) 130 (116,074)
Exchange differences arising from BREENERELL
translation of foreign operations EREE - - - - (646) - (646) - (646)
Total comprehensive (expense) income  £E 27 (F %) WALE
for the year - - - - (646) (116,204) (116,850 130 (116,720
Placing of new shares (Note 41(a)) @E’gﬁﬁx (FizE41()) 10,249 170,150 - - - - 180,399 - 180,399
Subscription of new shares (Note 41(b)) BT (KiiE41(b) 12,509 153,211 - - - - 165,720 - 165,720
Transaction costs attributable to p\acmg RERREHRL J“ﬂﬁ
and subscription of new shares RHHE - (3,302) - - - - (3302) - (3,302)
Capital contribution from FERERTE
non-controlling interest - - - - - - - 6,000 6,000
At 31 March 2016 RZE-7%=f=+-H 75,054 1,157,281 52,743 - (754) (435,429) 848,895 9,015 857,910
Profit (loss) for the period BEER (B8) - - - - - 41,263 41,263 (156) 41,107
Exchange differences arising from ~ BEEHEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations EREHR - - - - (19,081) - (19,081) (383) (19,464)
Reclassification of cumulative exchange A& — N B L7
differences to profit or loss upon BRGELERENIR
disposal of a subsidiary EER - - - - 1,24 - 1,224 - 1,224
Share of exchange difference of AE-HBERRELER
an associate - - - - 153 - 153 - 153
Other comprehensive expense for ~ BEEMZ2ERR
the period - - - - (17,704) - (17,704) (383) (18,087)
Total comprehensive (expense) income B 2 (Bx) WAL S
for the period - - - - (17,704) 41,263 23,559 (539) 23,020
Issue of rights shares (Note 41(c) BMRIRG ( ﬂﬁ?ﬂ( ) 150,110 2,852,075 - - - - 3,002,185 - 3,002,185
Placing of new shares (Note 41(d)  EZEHRIA (FiF41(d 15,000 345,000 - - - - 360,000 - 360,000
Transaction costs attributable to BRRRHA &@B%
issue of rights shares and HROEERZHAK
placing of new shares - (12,111) - - - - (12,11) - (12,111)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 49) HE-RRELRF (MH5H49) - - - - - - - (5,426) (5,426)
Deemed capital contributions from R ERFEE (HisEb)
shareholders (Note b) - - - 7312 - - 1312 - 7312
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~E+ZA=1-H 240,164 4,341,585 52,743 1312 (18,458) (394,166) 4,229,180 3,050 4,232,230

Tai United Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
f 7 W A 5 B 3R

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z—"F+=-A=+—HI @A

Notes:

(a)

The contributed surplus of the Group arose as a result of the Group
reorganisation prior to its public listing on 2 October 1995 and
represents the difference between the nominal value of the shares of
the former holding company of the Group acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation, over the nominal value of the shares of the
Company issued in exchange therefore.

Deemed capital contribution reserve represents the initial fair value
adjustment on loan from a fellow subsidiary which is unsecured, interest
bearing at 4.75% per annum and repayable on 28 December 2018.
Details disclosed in Note 38.

W

AEEZESABEAARER - ANEF+A
“RARLETmAETEEEAmMES  JIER
BEASBEEATBBEARERZERARZKN
EE BHRAZREMET2ARRBRNEE
ZE®e

BIETEHEERERE —RRRHB AR ZER
ZVBARERE ZERAERF KEF
475%F BWEARZZE—N\F+ZA=Z+NH
B8 - FFIE MM FT38HE 55 «
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85



86

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mABlemEg

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 &= —F— < F+=-A=+—HILNEA

Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$"000 HK$'000
BE-Z—XE HE-ZT—XF
+=ZA=+—H1 ZA=+—8H
@A IEFE
FERT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEK
Profit (loss) before tax B ADES (EE) 207,965 (158,782)
Adjustments for: KRBT IE
Finance costs B 8 B AR 100,644 43
Depreciation of property, ME - BERZBEZITE
plant and equipment 5,667 423
Profit attributable to the third party’s R HEEEBZE=F
interest in consolidated structured 1 & B 4G &
entity 2,486 -
Loss on initial recognition of loan notes ~ WA RE R Z &K 2 F18 440 -
Amortisation of intangible assets mpEEEH 250 -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RNBRAREE 67 -
Share of results of an associate Sh— s E QR EEA 46 -
Impairment loss on accounts receivable JFE UL BR FORBE 18 2K 40 -
Changes in fair value of investment KEMERINREE
properties (304,430) -
Unrealised gain on fair value change BERKRAANBEFAERZ
of financial assets designated as at CRMEEANEZH
fair value through profit or loss REBR = (92,098) -
Unrealised loss on fair value change BIEEEREZ ARBEEE
of held-for-trading investments ZARELREE 16,259 -
Interest income T WA (12,985) (245)
(Gain) loss on fair value change of TRITEENZAAE
financial derivative contracts 28 (=) BB (4,104) 2,234
Impairment loss on mining rights HIEE 2 BEEX - 217,083
Operating cash flows before movements & B & ¢ Z B Al 2 44 &
in working capital Hehs (79,753) 60,756
(Increase) decrease in inventories F& (1) R (989) 432
Increase in financial assets designated as at ¥§ € BIZ A EFTABZZ
fair value through profit or loss © R E E M (379,019) -
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable & UZER FOm 4> (18 40) 1,838 (476)
Decrease (increase) in held-for-trading BEBEFEEERD ()
investments 91,594 (760,613)
Increase in deposits, prepayments and e BRARIER
other receivables H th JiE I SR IEE hn (74,126) (6,892)
Decrease (increase) in financial derivative & @574 & 49984 (1)
contracts 92,055 (77,500)
Increase in accounts and bills payables JE A< BR 3% JE A< SR HR A A0 829,155 -
Decrease (increase) in accrued liabilities JEET B E R E A KIE
and other payables A () (8.875) 543

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mAaBlamEg

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 &%= ==

—R"E+ZA=+—HIEA@EA

Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
BE-F-AF BE-T-AF
+=A=+—-H1L =R=+—H
@A IEFE
B 5 FHET FET
Cash generated from (used in) operations #X&Fr5 (FTA) 2R & 471,880 (783,750)
Income tax paid B ATIER (1,821) (973)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING &E& %% Fr18 (FrA)
ACTIVITIES ZEE&FE 470,059 (784,723)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETE
Subscription of loan note receivable RERERBERTEE (1,460,808) -
Acquisition of an investment property IR EmE (1,261,374) -
Net cash outflow on acquisitions of WEHBARZRE 48
subsidiaries Tt FEE (1,112,447) -
Placement of restricted bank deposits ﬁ)\%ﬁﬁ%ﬂfﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂ (841,106) -
Deposits paid for potential acquisitions BEWEZENiZe (315,225) (48,981)
Acquisition of property, plant and Hﬂ(ﬁ%%% KB KRR
equipment (21,565) (12,466)
Acquisition of other non-current assets WIEEMIERENE E (9,932) -
Investment in an associate B N AR E (8,400) -
Deposits paid for potential investments BEKREZENES (5,000) -
Placement of pledged bank deposits FAREFRITER (2,948) -
Acquisition of an available-for-sales Wig — B HE 2 IRE
investments (1,429) -
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary & —RKE QT2 49
REmAER 17,429 -
Interest received 2 A B 9,203 245
Proceeds on disposal of interest in HER—BBEA AR
an associate Fr S 3E 7,815 -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETBHFFACRSFEHE
ACTIVITIES (5,005,787) (61,202)
AMERERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GoBEehaR

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 B Z =%

—REFZA=t+—HIEAER

Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$"000 HK$'000
BE-Z—XE HE-ZT—XF
+=ZA=+—HL ZA=+—8H
@A 1EFE
FERT FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Proceeds from issuance of rights shares — ZE1THIRRR ) 2 AT 15 718 1,792,185 -
Net proceeds from issuance of loan notes ?’fﬁgﬂiﬁ%Zﬁﬁ@ﬁIﬁ@‘%ﬁ 1,381,050 -
Proceeds from third party’s contributions SHREEHEBER
in consolidated structured entity BB 2 TS IR 1,163,100 -
Proceeds from margin financing REEFE 2 IERIE 685,142 40,245
Proceeds from bank borrowing raised FrESRITEE ZMENIA 560,967 -
Proceeds from placing of new shares Be & A% 19 2 FT 1S ;IR 360,000 180,399
Proceeds from loans from ultimate REZEERATRZERZ
holding company FriS 318 332,960 1,016,240
Proceeds from loan from RE—FRRMBARZ
a fellow subsidiary BERZTSRIE 178,625 -
Proceeds from vendor financing loan BERMEERZMERIE 92,896 -
Advance from ultimate holding company %R B & &2 & A R 2 B3k 9,930 4,798
Repayment of margin financing EERELRE (414,797) -
Repayment of vendor financing loan EESEHMEER (60,345) -
Interest paid RENEES] (27,529) -
Transaction cost directly attributable to BITHRERDERE
issue of rights shares LG (10,943) -
Transaction cost directly attributable to REFROEEZ SR
placing of new shares (1,828) (2,701)
Proceeds from subscription of new shares 2 && #7110 2 TS 8 — 165,720
Capital contribution from non-controlling JE4EE ST &
interests - 6,000
Repayment of loans from ultimate holding 1&i& 3 B & &1L A A
company ZE® = (139,200)
Transaction cost directly attributable to REHRNEE
subscription of new shares R B KA — (601)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING METBHRE2REFESE
ACTIVITIES 6,041,413 1,270,900

Tai United Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mAaBlamEg

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z—"F+=-A=+—HIE (@A

Nine months

Year

ended ended
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE-—T—AfF BE_T—AfF
+=A=+—Hit —A=+—H
A@A HFE
F#T FiET
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRERELER
CASH EQUIVALENTS ENFEE 1,505,685 424,975
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE NEEZSFHHE
RATE CHANGES (11,654) 295
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B/ EOzRERER
AT THE BEGINNING OF HE&EHE
THE PERIOD/YEAR 522,631 97,361
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT B ER2BEERER
THE END OF THE PERIOD/YEAR RE&BH 2,016,662 522,631
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF ReRERELER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERRD W
Bank balances and cash RTHEBREES 2,016,662 402,738
Time deposits with original maturities less REIER A=A NKNZ
than three months TEHTFR — 119,893
2,016,662 522,631
AMZERERAA
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GENERAL

Tai United Holdings Limited (formerly known as Bestway
International Holdings Limited) (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). In the opinion of the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”), the Company’s
ultimate holding company is Tai He Financial Group Limited,
a company incorporated and domiciled in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability. The registered office of the Company is
located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Suite 1206-1209, 12th Floor, Three Pacific Place, 1
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are securities investment,
commodity trading, distressed debt asset management,
mining and exploitation of natural resources, sales of medical
equipment and other general goods, financial services and
property investment. The principal activities of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 54.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 8 July 2016,
the Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name of
the Company issued by the Registry of Companies in the
Bermuda on 15 July 2016 and the Certificate of Registration
of Alteration of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong Company
issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on 12
August 2016, the Company changed its name to Tai United
Holdings Limited with effect from 19 August 2016.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 &= —F— < F+=-A=+—HILNEA

—REH

NI A BR A7) (A8 B B R 15 R
BRARF) (KAR])RBEREFMK
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Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda * A2 & 2 F
EEEMWBURBEREERABERIFASL
&% % 38312121206-1209% »

ARBR—HREZERAR -EEX BB
RAZETBEBRFFRE BRESH T
REBEEERE RBEMIRIARER:
HEBERENEM —RE D SBRRE
RYERE - ARRTEMBRARZIE
EEHIN M LS4

RER -Z—RFLANBRBZEFRIR
BE BREQAMER —T—RFt
AtHAA#Hz AR B EEMERS
RBEERAGZEMBRREER T —XRF/\H
To_RBELZEMIERTERREELME
MERE  ARAABELEE LA AME
BREBRRAR - B-F—RFANATILER
R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 11 B 255 e 3% B

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z—"F+=-A=+—HI @A

GENERAL (continued)

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016, the Group
engaged into three new operating segments as disclosed in
Note 7 and in order to provide a more comprehensive and
informative presentation of the Company’s results to the
consolidated financial statement users, the management of the
Company has reconsidered the presentation in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Revenue and expenses have been disclosed as separate line
items according to their nature on the revenue note and
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. Cost of sales have been
reclassified to “Purchases and changes on inventories”,
while selling and distribution expenses, administrative
expenses and other operating expenses have been disclosed
as separate line items as “"Employee benefits expenses” and
"QOther operating expenses” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Accordingly, the relevant comparative amounts of cost of
sales totalling HK$1,041,520,000, selling and distribution
expenses totaling HK$2,472,000, administrative expenses
totaling HK$23,660,000 and other operating expenses totaling
HK$10,000 have been reclassified to conform with the current
year's presentation.

The functional currency and the presentation currency of the
Company is Hong Kong Dollars ("HK$").

—RER (@)

REBEEZZE—A"F+ZA=+—HLAh
\A REBEE=FEFLE DI (F
MEE7ATHEEE) ARG ETIBEREERE
BrEAFRHWEINAARESE AR
EREECENEREIEA BT REAM
PERER WS RALEIEABIIBER
EREMERGABRSEREMEE K
FABEBE - HERACEEFTHEEF
EZRBEREE| MEERDEMAL 1T
BAY REMGCERTEEABILIERE
BEBEREMEEAKSRAEES B
BERAMAT] R EMmEEmz] -EHit-
SHE RN H5H1,041,520,00008 7T « S5 K
D 8EFI S £ 512,472,0008 7T 1T BT XX
H5123,660,0007% 7T M H Ath 48 & 5 37 5
10,0008 T Z B RESEEREH D
B OUEAFEZ 2HRE B

ARBZIMEEEE R 2N G- SET ([8
7Tl) e

AMERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1 U 05 3 B

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 &= —F— < F+=-A=+—HILNAA

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the current financial period, the reporting period
end date of the Group was changed from 31 March to 31
December because the Directors determined to align the annual
reporting period end date with the financial year end date of
the Company’s principal operating subsidiaries incorporated
in the PRC. Such change is in response to the increase in
operation and number of Company’s subsidiaries incorporated
and acquired in the PRC during recent years. The Directors
consider that the change of the financial year end date will
better facilitate the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements for the current period cover the nine
months ended 31 December 2016. The corresponding
comparative amounts shown for the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity, consolidated statement of
cash flows and related notes cover a twelve month period
from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 and therefore may not be
comparable with amounts shown for the current period.

Significant events and transactions in the
current reporting period

Acquisition of Hui Kai Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Hui Kai Holdings”) (the “Hui Kai Holdings
Acquisition”)

In 18 January 2016, the Group entered into an agreement with
Hui Kai Holdings Limited to acquire the entire equity interest
in (i) Hui Kai Futures Limited, which is principally engaged in
trading and brokerage of futures contracts with type 2 license
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"); (ii) Hui
Kai Asset Management Limited, which is principally engaged
in asset management with type 9 license under the SFO; and
(iii) Easy Winning International Limited, which is principally
engaged in money lending business, for an aggregate
consideration of up to HK$56 million. The Group was also
granted an option to further acquire the entire equity interest
in Hui Kai Holdings Limited and its subsidiary, Hui Kai Securities
Limited, at a consideration up to HK$120 million within 12
months. Hui Kai Securities Limited is principally engaged in
brokerage of securities and margin financing with type 1 license
under the SFO.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Significant events and transactions in the
current reporting period (Continued)

Acquisition of Hui Kai Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Hui Kai Holdings”) (the “Hui Kai Holdings
Acquisition”) (Continued)

On 14 October 2016, the Group served a written notice to
the shareholders of Hui Kai Holdings Limited to exercise the
call option to acquire the entire equity interest of Hui Kai
Holdings Limited. On 24 October 2016, the Group completed
the acquisition and the Group plans to utilise the business
operations as the financial services platform to carry out
financial services business in the future.

Details of the above are set out in Note 48(ii).
Issuance of rights shares

On 1 September 2016, the Company proposed to raise
approximately HK$3,002 million by way of the rights issue,
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to
allot and issue 3,002,184,872 rights shares (“Rights Shares”)
at the subscription price of HK$1.00 per Rights Shares on the
basis of two Rights Shares for every one existing ordinary share
of the Company held on 21 October 2016. The Rights Shares
subscription was completed on 7 November 2016 with net
proceeds of approximately HK$2,991,242,000.

Details of the above are set out in Note 41(c).

REMBRER2EHERE
()

FHREHEAZEREHRRS
(#)

WIEEHZRERLAIRENE L A
(TEHERI) ([EZNZERKEER])
(#)

RZF-RF+ATHA  REERES]
BERERARZBRR A ESEBM AT
EREEKBEIIZERER B 22
E#-R—_FE-R"FTA-TOEA K&
Bl iEER BASEEIT B
ZEBEEFEREBREFE  URAR
NECRRIGEL -

R B Y R 48(i)
RITHBE G

RZZBE—XFLA—B ARQAEZBEB
R 2 N EEH3,002B BB T Bt
KAREBEHRE SRS 1.00
BT 2 PR B B B E 2 #6173,002,184,872
AR AR AR (TR ]) - RERR =
T—ARFETA-+—BEHEE—REAQF
A L m AR A AR AR IR 1 - SRR AR
NREBEBEER _TE—<F+—A+tH
TERK - TS FUIEFREA952,991,242,00078
T

L FE B E R EA1(C) ©

AMERERAT
T -RFFR

93



94

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1 S0 05 3 B

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 &= —F— < F+=-A=+—HILNAA

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Significant events and transactions in the
current reporting period (Continued)

Acquisition of RCBG Residential (UK) Limited (“RCBG”)
and MRB Residential Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(“MRB Group”)

On 24 September 2016, BG Residential Holdings Limited (“BG
Residential”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
The Rothschild Foundation (Hanadiv) Europe, The Rothschild
Foundation, RCBG Residential (Jersey) Limited, MoREOF
BG Residential Holdings Limited and Brockton Capital |
(Tenenbaum) Limited (collectively referred to as the “Vendors”),
pursuant to which BG Residential has agreed to purchase
the entire equity interest of RCBG and MRB Group and has
accepted the assignment of the shareholders’ loans of RCBG
and MRB Group. RCBG and MRB Group together legally held
100% equity interest in an entity holding properties located
at 6-9 Buckingham Gate, London, SW1E, 6JP, United Kingdom
("UK"). The aggregate consideration was British Pound
Sterling ("GBP"”) 58,803,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$556,276,000) and the acquisition has been completed on 4
November 2016.

Details of the above are set out in Note 48(i)(c).
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Significant events and transactions in the
current reporting period (Continued)

Issuance of loan notes and warrants

On 28 September 2016, the Company entered into loan
notes and warrants subscription agreement (the “Loan Notes
Subscription Agreement”) with Cheer Hope Holdings Limited,
Songhua Investment Holding Limited and Haitong International
Investment Fund SPC (the “Investors”) pursuant to which
the Company conditionally agreed to issue, and the Investors
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, the loan notes (the
“Loan Notes”) in the aggregate principal amount of not more
than United States Dollars (“US$”) 180,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,395,000,000) with an initial term of
2 years from the date of issue, which may be extended for a
further term of one year by the Company with the consent of
the Loan Notes holders (the “Loan Notes Holders”). The Loan
Notes were fully subscribed by the Investors on 30 September
2016.

Pursuant to the Loan Notes Subscription Agreement, in
consideration of the subscription of the Loan Notes by the
Investors, the Company conditionally agreed to grant the
warrants to the Investors. The warrants will entitle the holders
("Warrant Holders") thereof to subscribe for up to 279,000,000
shares of the Company at an initial warrant shares subscription
price of HK$1.0 per warrant share during the warrants
subscription period. The warrant shares subscription price is
subject to adjustment according to the terms and conditions of
the warrants instrument.

Details of the above are set out in Note 36.
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Significant events and transactions in the
current reporting period (Continued)

Acquisition of distressed assets

On 19 November 2016, M K& EE R H R A7 (Hangzhou
Tai Rong Asset Management Co., Ltd.*), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company won a bid for the distressed
assets through auction comprised a 10-storey hotel facility
in Hangzhou of the PRC, with a consideration of Renminbi
("RMB") 1,120,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,261,374,000). On 28 December 2016, the Group has
obtained control of the hotel facility and entitled the returns
generated from the hotel facility.

Details of the above are set out in Note 17.
* The English name is for identification purpose only.
Acquisition of Leon Property Limited

On 24 November 2016, Wide Flourish Investments Limited
("Wide Flourish”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Leon Property Holdings Limited, pursuant to which Wide
Flourish has agreed to purchase the entire equity interest of
Leon Property Limited and repaid the shareholder’s loan of Leon
Property Limited. The principal asset of Leon Property Limited
is a property located in Hammersmith, the West of London,
UK, which is being valued at GBP103,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$988,425,000) and the acquisition has been
completed on 23 December 2016.

Details of the above are set out in Note 48(i)(d).
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Significant events and transactions in the
current reporting period (Continued)

Placing of new shares

On 15 December 2016, the Company and Haitong International
Securities Company Limited (the “Placing Agent”) entered into
a placing agreement whereby the Company agreed to place,
through the Placing Agent, 300,000,000 new shares of the
Company to not less than six placees at a price of HK$1.2 per
share (the “Placement”). The Placement was completed on
30 December 2016 and the net proceeds after deducting all
related costs, fees, expenses and commission, amounted to
approximately HK$358,172,000. The management expected
that the net proceeds will be utilised as general working capital
of the Group and for financing future acquisitions should such
investment opportunities arise.

Details of the above are set out in Note 41(d).
Investment in a fund and provision of guarantee

On 15 December 2016, the Group has entered into a
subscription agreement with Haitong Global Investment SPC
Il ("Haitong Global”) pursuant to which the Group agreed
to subscribe for 50,000 Class R participating shares at a total
consideration of US$50,000,000 of Haitong Dynamic Multi-
Tranche Investment Fund IV S.P. (the “Haitong Dynamic Fund”).

There are two classes of non-voting shares in the capital of
the Haitong Dynamic Fund, namely Class P participating shares
and Class R participating shares and the shareholder of Class
P participating shares is a company controlled by Haitong
International Securities Group Limited, an independent third
party not connected with the Group. The principal of the Class
P participating shares is US$150,000,000 and Haitong Global
has appointed Hai Tong Asset Management (HK) Limited as its
investment manager of Haitong Dynamic Fund.

The Group also has entered into the deed of guarantee
and indemnity pursuant to which the Group has agreed to
provide the guarantee in favour of the Class P participating
shareholders for the performance of the Haitong Dynamic Fund
with maximum liability of US$103,000,000.

Details of the above are set out in Notes 5, 23 and 39.
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3.

APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current period

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time in the current period:
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Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
of HKFRSs in the current period has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial performance and positions for the current

period and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.
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3.

APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current period (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure
Initiative for the first time in the current period. The
amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity need not provide
a specific disclosure required by an HKFRS if the information
resulting from that disclosure is not material, and give guidance
on the bases of aggregating and disaggregating information.
However, the amendments reiterate that an entity should
consider providing additional disclosures when compliance with
the specific requirements in HKFRS is insufficient to enable
users of financial statements to understand the impact of
particular transactions, events and conditions on the entity's
financial position and financial performance.

The Group has applied these amendments retrospectively, the
grouping and ordering of certain profit or loss items, including
i) revenue and expenses have been disclosed as separate
line items according to their nature on the revenue note and
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, ii) cost of sales have been
reclassified to “Purchases and changes in inventories” and iii)
selling and distribution expenses, administrative expenses and
other operating expenses have been disclosed as separate line
items as “Employee benefits expenses” and “Other operating
expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. Other than the above
presentation and disclosure changes, the application of the
amendments to HKAS 1 has not resulted in any impact on the
financial performance or financial position of the Group in
these consolidated financial statements.
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3. APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments’

HKFRS 16 Leases?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement

of Share-based Payment
Transactions’
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative*

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses*

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate
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3.

APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general
hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial
assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group
are:

. all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
that have contractual terms that give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are generally measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair value at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

o in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2016, the application
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on the
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets.
The Group's available-for-sale investments, including those
currently stated at cost less impairment, will either be measured
as fair value through profit or loss or be designated as fair value
through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI") (subject to
fulfillment of the designation criteria). In addition, the expected
credit loss model may result in early provision of credit losses
which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial
assets measured at amortised cost.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations
when it becomes effective.
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3.

APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in the
future may result in more disclosures, however, the Directors
do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have
a material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised in the respective reporting periods.
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3.

APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases
and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to those classified
as investment properties while other operating lease payments
are presented as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16,
lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into
a principal and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows.
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3.

APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$59,010,000 as disclosed
in Note 43. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS
16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the
application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new
requirements may result changes in measurement, presentation
and disclosure as indicated above. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the
Directors complete a detailed review.

Except as described above, the Directors consider that the
application of the other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in coming year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (”Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CQO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the
owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate.

Business combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group
to former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assume as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to the
financial assets and financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other individual identifiable assets and liabilities
on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represents the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or groups of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit on a pro-rata based on the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
(or groups of cash-generating units). Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interest in an associate (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an interest in an associate is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate.
When the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interest in an associate (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 /Impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interest in the associate that
are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue or income arising from financial services business are
recognised on the following basis:

J Commission and broking income for broking business is
recorded as income on a trade date basis;

o service fee income are recognised when the relevant
transactions have been arranged or the relevant services
have been rendered; and

o Interest income from clients are recognised on a time
proportion basis, taking into account the principal
amounts outstanding and the effective interest rates
applicable.

Other interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Gains or losses from disposal of distressed debt assets
designated as at financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL") and unrealised fair value changes on such
assets, both of which are accounted for as fair value changes
on distressed debt assets.

The net increase or decrease in fair value of trading investments
is recognised directly in net profit or loss.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group’s rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that he economic benefits will
flow to the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably).
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from the sale of petrochemical products, metal-
related product, medical equipment and other general goods
are recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have
passed.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting policy for
leasing below.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset. Other than investment properties measured under
fair value model, such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Loan raising costs

Loan raising costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
borrowings form an integral part of the effective interest rate
of the borrowings and amortised through the expected life of
the borrowings, or, where appropriate, a shorter period and
recognised as an expense on an effective interest method over
the loan period.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less residual values over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Interests in subsidiaries
Interests in subsidiaries is included in the Company's statement

of financial position at cost less any identified impairment
losses.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, being their fair value at the date of the
revaluation less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible
and intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group's property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value of investment
properties are included in the profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit
or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

EXE

EI‘I_'

BUR ()

REWX

REMEDFBERRES R HEER
BEZME-

BREMENBERAGTE BRERER
JEMEF S - IR TER R IREMEUR TR
Bt E-ARBEKEHEEREARNE
THFENEEMR G 2 ANEEYEERY
DEEAEAKREME YERARER
A B -REVEAABEEHEE 2 W
BB AMELMEZ B

BEMERHE L KAR ILERETAET T
T E R E RIS RN 2 5 BUH
R o

BUHBRMEMELE ZEMKaEE
(MZEEZHEMSHRIBFRERTE
ZEBE) @EMEBUEHER 2 MR
ARz e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f £3 B 255 e 3% B

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZF— X & +=-A=+—HIEN{AA

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Mining rights

Mining rights that are acquired separately are carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses and are subject to
amortisation upon commissioning of the mine for production.
Amortisation of mining rights is recognised using the unit-of-
production method based on the actual production volume over
the estimated total recoverable ounces contained in proven and
probable reserves at the related mine.

Impairment on tangible assets and
intangible assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible assets and
intangible assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories represent goods held for resale and are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are
determined on a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets at FVTPL) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories, including loans and receivables, financial assets
at FVTPL and available-for-sale (“AFS") financial assets.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments, other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including loan note receivable, accounts receivable, other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits
and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is (i) held for trading or (ii) it is designated as at FTVPL.

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term

profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading

may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as

at FVTPL.

BT A (&)

2HAE ()
BAREHASEBZ 2 BEE
EEMEEBEEER(VAIREA

i
REFARGER AEREENBRE
REFABBEZEREE -

n
N

HWETIER EREEGDBAFKES

=

. Pz eRMEET ERNEIIY
HE

. RINpHERR BRASEERE
BredhemIAEHEE D
BEE FAEA N EARBUE S
B2 Rk

. BROTETA (BREEERAEAEX
HRERZ TREZIN) -

WHERTIER AISEEEZEREE
LASN 2 & BB EE - R IN V) 4R HE BB B 4 45 5E
RBASEFABREE:

«  BMETHERAERET B
RABHRT 2R %

. TREEEARCRHEENESRAR
BHDIME LRBEARERE
g EIE S E RS WA EE
EEENFEERR MoBEH
AR sz B R A ERIR ML 3k

. HAKEE B FRARITE
TAZAHWETED MBEAS
ERIFIEAFENAHEHN (B
ELRE)BREE/EINMEA
BRREZEREE-

RMEZRERA T
Sa_rrrg 123



124

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1 U 05 k3 B

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 &= —F— X F+=-A=+—HILNEA

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL and financial assets designated as at
FVTPL (including held-for-trading investments and distressed
debt assets designated as FVTPL) are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement and disposal
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is included in the ‘revenue’ line item. Fair
value is determined in the manner described in Note 46.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for sale or are not classified as (a) loans
and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial
assets at FVTPL.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured, and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments
are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of each reporting period (see accounting policy on
impairment loss of financial assets below).
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in
the portfolio past due, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of accounts receivable, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When an accounts receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including accounts and bills payables,
other payables, borrowings, amount due to ultimate holding
company, loan notes, loans from ultimate holding company,
loan from a fellow subsidiary and other non-current liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair values at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective
as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the
hedging relationship.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and are subsequently measured at
the higher of:

. the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
the revenue recognition policies over the guarantee
period.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit (loss) before tax” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition other than in a business combination of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

BEREFTEE (&)

BWIE (%)

BEEHERGAVERRNEERAER
EEETERERDEF TR AERE
MREEEER - BEERESGE—RUME
ERMER EZEER - EEHBEE—K
AT BUINNEGREZERER B2
FERTBLREFI AT AR Z S AT B BR i =
H- AR —ERXSTVARER (WIERE
a”k/—\ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂ)’éﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂizmﬂﬁqﬁﬁéﬁf

THEERM NI EEg:aH - Al
TEHRAREEEREGE WM HWYIA
BRABEBEARKEZT AT THEIRET
MEEE-

BERMB AR R —HE R 2 REM
EEZERNGEREZHERI/ELHIES
B BRIFEAEEEREGREEZRE 2 ED
i e B 22 RRAR AT REFE AJ R R S A & 4 33
B RIRR SN e BEZ HIE R s A B 2 AT 40
MR EREMEE CRENEEEES R
IR 2 ERTR I A tH B A B iy =48
2 25 B TR BARA AT B % 2R BT 48 (Bl B T IA
R

BELERAEEZREERSRERARIER
A YHREEBERN R RAERT G
MA@ 2 BB BER S L -

ELXEHRBAEERBBENREREHNRERE
R EE ERM 2R (RBOE) - REM
REEBEREREERREER 2 X

io



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11 B 255 e 3% B

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— A F+=-A=+—HBIENEA

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
properties are depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit schemes in
relation to employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC,
Singapore and UK and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
in relation to employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in Hong
Kong are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 4, the Directors are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from these
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made
in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Control over Haitong Dynamic Fund

Pursuant to Notes 23 and 39, it described Haitong Dynamic
Fund as being controlled by the Group although i) the Group
has only held Class R participating shares of Haitong Dynamic
Fund and the Group is not entitled to appoint any directors to
the board of Haitong Global, which established the Haitong
Dynamic Fund and ii) investment manager of Haitong Dynamic
Fund has existing rights to direct the investment decision of
Haitong Dynamic Fund while the Group has no right to appoint
investment manager of Haitong Dynamic Fund.

In making the judgments, the Directors assessed whether or
not the Group has achieved control over the Haitong Dynamic
Fund based on HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and considering the facts that i) the purpose of setting up the
Haitong Dynamic Fund was initiated by the Group and solely
for subscribing loan note issued by an independent third party
(the "Borrower”) and after the subscription of the loan note,
most of the investment capital in the Haitong Dynamic Fund
has been used up and no further investment decisions could
be made until the maturity of the loan note, ii) in accordance
with the subscription agreement, the Company could receive
the residual value from Haitong Dynamic Fund after paying
the principal and target return, which is 6.5% fixed interest
income of the US$150,000,000 principal of the Class P
participating shares; and iii) the Group agreed to provide the
guarantee in favour of the Class P participating shareholders
for the performance of the Haitong Dynamic Fund with the
maximum liability of US$103,000,000. After the assessment
on all the facts in the subscription agreement, the Directors
concluded that Haitong Dynamic Fund created significance
exposure to variability of returns to the Group given that the
expected return of the Haitong Dynamic Fund reached 28%
during the two years term on the existing investment project
and the Group also has to compensate any potential loss to
the Class P participating shareholders up to US$103,000,000,
approximately to 69% of the principal contributed by Class P
participating shareholders, and concluded that the Group has
control over the Haitong Dynamic Fund under HKFRS 10 and
the Group has consolidated the assets and liabilities of Haitong
Dynamic Fund during the period.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

EREHERMATTREM
ZEERIR (@)

ERAESTHRNERHE (&)

#/Haitong Dynamic Fund 2 72 4| #

REMTFE23 %39 + E il Haitong Dynamic
Fundli REEZG BENAEE(ERFA
Haitong Dynamic FundZ REE £ 2% (7 & AN
S B\ Z (T {F {1 = % £ Haitong Global
( E 5% 57 Haitong Dynamic Fund)Z % 3
Xii) Haitong Dynamic FundZ & & E A
A $5E Haitong Dynamic Fundz & &R
5%+ M A& B # £ FHaitong Dynamic
Fundz I EEEA -

EEHEHAER THEAEERTERE
BERMBHREERNFEI0FGA T HRE
Hl 8 Haitong Dynamic FundZ % &l 4 - I
ZEATEE ) E 3K 3 Haitong
Dynamic Fundz B M ER T RIBEILE
=F([EBERADN BT ZEFREE  RRE
B ZE# 1% - Haitong Dynamic FundZ X
ZHREEADRAT EEELHMIEE
RE-EINERERINE )RR E R
AR TAREINAE R B EERES
Haitong Dynamic FundWERFI 4B & - AP
$82 #10%15150,000,000E JL A % 26.5%
EEMEBA: RiNVAEERERER &
f&/4%103,000,0003% 7T 2 Haitong Dynamic
Fundz RILAPIELBERE AZ = ARH
RFE-RITERERRZMEETER BN
Haitong Dynamic Fund$ 3B &R EAE ~
T8 HA (2] 3 = P R F BRI 3Z h28 % M AN R [
TR/ 7 PAE 2 B R 3R 45 {8 5 103,000,000
EL2AAEEEER (PESLEREEAR
© 2 #169% ) - T E R AHaitong Dynamic
Fundﬁzﬁﬁgﬁﬁil@iﬁ“@ﬁ ME KRR

IRAEREBERETBM B REER
51057 ¥fHaitong Dynamic Fund7 2 |
B RAEEDRANBBAA ffHaitong
Dynamic Fundz EE K B1f& -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11 B 255 e 3% B

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 HiZ=—Z—"F+=_A=+—HIE (@A

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolio and concluded that the Group's
investment properties are not held under a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group's
deferred taxation on investment properties, the Directors have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted.

As a result, the Group has not recognised any deferred tax on
changes in fair value of investment properties located in Hong
Kong and UK as the Group is not subject to any income taxes
on disposal of its investment properties. In respect of those
investment properties located in the PRC, the Group recognised
additional deferred taxes relating to Land Appreciation Tax
("LAT") and Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") upon disposal
on changes in fair value of such investment properties as
appropriate.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Valuation of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s investment
properties are stated at fair value of approximately
HK$3,625,760,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) based on the
valuations performed by independent qualified professional
valuers. In determining the fair values, the valuers have made
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties in the same location and conditions and where
appropriate by capitalisation of rental income from properties.

In relying on the valuations, the management of the Group has
exercised their judgments and is satisfied that the method of
valuation is reflective of the current market conditions. Details
of the carrying amounts of investment properties as at 31
December 2016 are disclosed in Note 17.

Valuation of financial assets designated as at FVTPL -
distressed debt assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's financial assets
designated as at FVTPL in relation to the distressed debt assets
are carried at fair value of approximately HK$452,600,000.
The fair value was determined based on the lower of fair
value of the collaterals of the distressed debt assets or the
carrying amount of distressed debt assets. The collaterals of the
distressed debt assets including residential buildings, industrial
and commercial buildings and land use rights in the PRC. The
Group engaged an independent qualified professional valuer
to perform such valuation. A direct comparison approach was
used to determine the fair value of the distressed debt assets
by making reference to comparable market transactions of
the collaterals and adjusting according to the conditions and
natures of the collaterals to arrive at the value for sale under
repossession after taking into account the directly attributable
costs to sale.

Details of the carrying amounts of financial assets designated as
at FVTPL are set out in Note 26.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of mining rights

While assessing whether any indications of impairment exist
for mining rights, consideration is given to both external and
internal sources of information. External sources of information
of the Group includes changes in the market, economic and
legal environment in which the Group operates that are not
within its control and affect the recoverable amount of the
mining rights. Internal sources of information includes the
manner in which the mining rights are being used or are
expected to be used and indications of economic performance
of the assets and operating results. The carrying amounts of
mining rights are reviewed for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets whenever certain events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

Mining rights are assessed annually to determine for any
indication of impairment. The Group’s cash generating unit
("CGU") for impairment assessment of mining rights is the cash
generating unit that holds mining rights (the “Mining CGU").
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of mining rights (Continued)

When an impairment review is undertaken, recoverable amount
is assessed by reference to the higher of 1) value in use and 2)
fair value less costs to disposal (“FVLCD"). The best evidence
of FVLCD is the value obtained from an active market or
binding sale agreement. Where neither exists, FVLCD is based
on the best information available to reflect the amount the
Group could receive for the Mining CGU in an arm’s length
transaction. The recoverable amount of the mining rights is
determined based on the value in use calculation and certain
key assumptions. Value in use calculation used the discounted
future pre-tax cash flows expected to be derived from the
cash-generating unit that holds the mining rights. The key
assumptions used in estimating the projected cash flows are
tungsten metal estimated selling price, estimated future costs
of production, estimated future operating costs, recoverable
reserves, resources and exploration potential, discount rates
and exchange rates. Changes in tungsten metal estimated
selling price, estimated future costs of production, estimated
future operating costs, the amount of recoverable reserves,
resources and exploration potential, discount rates and
exchange rates can result in change of the carrying amounts of
the Group’s mining rights that may impact the profit or loss.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016, no
impairment loss is recognised for the mining rights as the
recoverable amounts are higher than the respective carrying
amounts. During the year ended 31 March 2016, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$162,812,000 (net of
tax) was recognised for the mining rights as the recoverable
amounts were lower than the respective carrying amounts.
Details of the carrying amounts of mining rights as at 31
December 2016 are disclosed in Note 20.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the CGU to which goodwill
and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives have been
allocated, which is the higher of the value in use or fair value
less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected or change in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash, a material impairment loss/
further impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2016,
the carrying amount of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives is approximately HK$24,499,000 (31
March 2016: Nil). Details of the recoverable amount calculation
of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
disclosed in Note 21.
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6.

REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the period/year is as

follows:

AEBEN/FRRGE 2 HFTET

Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-F-AF | HE-T A5
+=A=+—H =Z=RA=+—8
IE A8 A IEFE
FERT FET
Sale of petrochemical products HEA(LE D 5,314,254 1,035,508
Sale of metal-related products HEBHMBAEM 2,553,001 =
Sale of medical equipment and HHE B AR AR S H M — AR 7 am
other general goods 21,851 13,348
Changes in fair value of financial assets  1EE ABEARBEFAEBRZ
designated as at fair value through PHEELANEY
profit or loss 150,068 -
Changes in fair value of held-for-trading F{EEZRE Z AR EE T
investments 53,308 72,391
Property rental income MEHR KA 2,263 -
Service fees, commission and RBE Mo REBHBELKA
broking income from business 1,187 -
Effective interest income from loan note  JEWRE R EE 2 BB F| B U A
receivable (Note 23) (FF3E23) 6,798 -
8,102,730 1,121,247

Tai United Holdings Limited
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker
("“CODM"), being the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on types of goods or services
delivered or rendered and the activities engaged, which is also
the basis of organisation of the Group, is set out below.

For management purpose, the Group is currently organised into
seven (year ended 31 March 2016: four) operating divisions
summarised as follows:

(i) Securities investment segment — trading equity securities
and derivatives in the PRC, Hong Kong and Singapore;

(i) Commodity trading segment — trading of petrochemical
products and metal-related products in Singapore;

(iii) Distressed debt asset management segment — managing
of assets arising from acquisition of distressed debts
assets in the PRC;

(iv) Mining and exploitation of natural resources segment —
mining and production of tungsten resources activities
in the Republic of Mongolia (“Mongolia”);

(v) Sales of medical equipment and other general goods
segment — trading of medical equipment and other
general goods in the PRC;

(vi) Financial services segment — provision of securities and
margin financing, trading and brokerage of futures
contracts, asset management and money lending
business to customers in Hong Kong; and

(vii)  Property investment segment — property investment and
leasing of properties in the PRC and UK.

Distressed debt asset management segment, financial services
segment and property investment segment were new operating
segments during the nine months ended 31 December 2016.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. oEHWER (&)
Segment revenue and results DR EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results NTREEERTZRDBED 2 A& H
by operating and reportable segments. Was RZEHEZ DT .
For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 BE—_F-—ANF+-FA=+—HIENLBEA
Sales of
medical
Mining and  equipment
Distressed exploitation and other
Securities  Commodity  debt asset  of natural general Financial Property
investment trading management resources goods services  investment Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HERR
RER EL |
TREH E REf
BERE  BRES EEEE RRER -BER SREE  WERE @it
TEx TER TER FET TER FER TER FEx
Segment revenue AHhE 53,308 7,867,255 150,068 - 21,851 7,985 2,263 8,102,730
Segment results FHEE 6,824 (11,602) 133,193 (1,102) 648 4,718 298,395 431,074
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE-RHNBAREE (67)
Loss on initial recognition of NREAERFRZER
loan notes (440)
Share of results of an associate AE-ABERTEE (46)
Foreign exchange losses, net EfEE 28 (60,974)
Unallocated finance costs RABBBHRA (67,784)
Central administration costs RRTBEY (93,798)
Profit before tax BB AR A 207,965
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DEER (@)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DR EE (@)
For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE-_E-—NFZA=1+T—HLEFE

Sales of
medical
Mining and equipment
exploitation and other
Securities Commodity of natural general

investment trading resources goods Total

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

23 954 HEBR
BE  REREM

BERE AmES AARER —REm FoE
FTHER FHET FER FTHER FET

Segment revenue g1l & 72,391 1,035,508 - 13,348 1,121,247
Segment results D EEE 57,906 1,755  (217,711) 692  (157,358)
Foreign exchange gains, net  [& 5 a5 - 558 2,456
Central administration costs ~ FRITH X (3,880)
Loss before tax BB AT E B (158,782)
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated EXFEFRz BRI RFEE
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in W - MABERBEFE  HED I
the current period and prior year. EEHE o
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the A2WRD P2 EFTIREEM FTATE RS
same as the Group's accounting policies described in Note 4. BzesBRAR - DR EEIER RS
Segment result represents the profit earned or loss incurred RrRITEAZ (BREEFHFH EZEK
before tax by each segment without allocation of central EXEBRH PAEHSREMEERT
administration costs including Directors’ emoluments, legal and ME e (1R F8 RO B BA AR -
professional fees, office rentals and other operating expenses, DME—HBERATER VEBRAERE
foreign exchange gains (losses), net, unallocated finance costs, BrEBEEREE —HMNBARERE)INS
share of results of an associate, loss on initial recognition of DEFTRELZ MR EE 2 RBIATEE -
loan notes and loss on disposal of a subsidiary. This is the HERD B R EDERRME - b5 A
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource FERBREEEZR T L

allocation and assessment of segment performance.

AMERERA T
Ca_rrrg 0



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1 U 05 k3 B

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 &= —F— X F+=-A=+—HILNEA

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities PTHEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities REERKERNERDHE D 2EER
by operating and reportable segment: BEZHTHT
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-XE —E—REF
+=ZA=+-—~H =R=+—H
FERT FHET
Segment assets DEEE
Securities investment BHEE 1,846,081 1,193,483
Commodity trading AmE 5 1,194,036 184,346
Distressed debt asset management TREGEEER 497,256 -
Mining and exploitation of KERMBERIAER
natural resources 454,584 454,701
Sales of medical equipment and HERBERBREM —KE R
other general goods 8,898 11,997
Financial services EER 2,063,330 =
Property investment MERE 3,664,866 -
Total segment assets PWEELT 9,729,051 1,844,527
Interest in an associate REE QN E 2w 15,301 -
Available-for-sale investments AHHEZKRE 1,429 -
Deposits paid for potential acquisitions EBIEWE B Re 315,225 10,000
Unallocated property, plant and ROEWE  WERHK
equipment 163,272 -
Unallocated intangible assets ROMEREE 4,130
Other unallocated corporate assets EARoRERAEE 45,611 32,550
Consolidated assets REEE 10,274,019 1,887,077

Tai United Holdings Limited
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 &%= ==

7.

—A"E+ZA=+—HIEAER

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7.

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

DEER (&)
THEEREE (&)

31 December 2016

31 March 2016

HK$'000  Hs'000
—g_xf EF Wi
+=A=+-~8 =A=+—8
FHERT FHET
Segment liabilities rHEE
Securities investment BHIE 388,365 40,546
Commodity trading N E 809,927 181
Distressed debt asset management TREBEEERE 40,409 -
Mining and exploitation of KBERHERAEIR
natural resources 93,158 93,571
Sales of medical equipment and HE B RERE R EM R
other general goods 797 262
Financial services © B RS 1,290,291 -
Property investment WERE 1,250,212 -
Total segment liabilities THEEHETE 3,873,159 134,560
Loans from ultimate holding company &R A F Z B — 877,040
Amount due to ultimate holding FEAT S AR PEIR A RIFRIB
company 14,728 4,798
Loan notes EREE 1,412,116 -
Loan from a fellow subsidiary EESY-- TN - § 171,444 -
Unallocated secured bank borrowing ROBEESHEARTEE 498,471 -
Other unallocated corporate liabilites ~ Eib R D E AR EE 71,871 12,769
Consolidated liabilities REBaE 6,041,789 1,029,167
AMERERAR

T -REFFR

145



146

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1 U 05 k3 B

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 &= —F— X F+=-A=+—HILNEA

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments
other than interest in an associate, available-for-sale
investments, deposits paid for potential acquisitions,
unallocated property, plant and equipment, unallocated
intangible assets and other unallocated corporate assets
(including primarily unallocated bank balances and
cash).

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than loans from ultimate holding company, amount due
to ultimate holding company, loan notes, loan from a
fellow subsidiary, unallocated secured bank borrowing
and other unallocated corporate liabilities.

Geographical information

The Group operates in five principal geographical areas — Hong
Kong, the PRC, Mongolia, Singapore and UK.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information (Continued)
The Group's revenue from external customers by location of the

relevant subsidiary’s operations and information about its non-
current assets by location of assets are detailed below:

DEBER (#)

wEE R (&)

AEBRBEAMB L

ShERE P U iR B E BB )

BEBEHMFBOT

Revenue from
external customers

Rl EMEE S

XA
ZIERE

Non-current assets

REMBEF KRG kRBEE
Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2016 2016 2016 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-_Z— X% HE-Z—RF
+=—HA=+-—H =RA=+—8H —E—XEF —E—RF
IR {8 A IEFE +=BA=+—H =A=+—H
FET FHET FHERT FET
Singapore Hrn i 7,463,263 989,854 2,607 -
The PRC s 348,643 129,838 1,572,192 5,763
Hong Kong & 289,450 1,555 1,642,824 16,386
UK HE 1,374 - 2,082,574 -
Mongolia B - - 454,553 454,553
8,102,730 1,121,247 5,754,750 476,702
Note: Non-current assets excluded intangible assets, goodwill and MeZ: ERDEETRLEELEE BHERR
interest in an associate. YNl 3
Information about major customers FEEFZER
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total RIBEEREFEANEE BT R

revenue of the Group for the corresponding period/year are as

10% A EREFIREHTIINT :

follows:
Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE_Z-—AF BE-_T &
+=A=+-H =A=+-—8
EH{E A HEE
F#T FiET
Customer A ZFEA N/A T8 fA? 424,196
Customer B ZFB N/A T8 fR* 220,181
Customer C ZFEC 4,919,693 147,177
Customer D ZFED N/A T8 126,178

! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group for current period.
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8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hfttlg A
Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-Z—XE HE-ZT—KF
+=B=+-# =A=+-A
A8 A IHFE
FEx FAET
Interest income from: REUTEBEZFBEWA :
— restricted bank deposits -Z R RITER 8,790 -
- bank and other deposits —#R1T R A MR 4,195 245
Referral fee income NBEIWA = 2,000
Sundry income I A 3,282 15
16,267 2,260
9. OTHER (LOSSES) GAIN 9. Hih (1) ka
Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-Z— X% HE-_ZT—X %
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
IEH @A IFFE
FHR Fh
Foreign exchange (losses) gains, net [EX (E1E) Wz F58 (60,974) 2,456
Gain (loss) on fair value change of EMOTEEN 2z AR EESH RS
financial derivative contracts (E518) 4,104 (2,234)
Loss on initial recognition of loan notes ~ {IIAERERZIE 2 BB (440) -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary tH%—F'EJ M B AR EE (67) -
Profit attributable to the third party’s B RGEEEEEY
interest in consolidated structured entity 42 2% J& 1635 7 (2,486) -
(59,863) 222

Tai United Holdings Limited
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z—"F+=-_A=+—HIL @A

10. FINANCE COSTS

10. BB A

Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
BE-_ZT—XF HE-_T—XRF
+=A=+-8 =A=+—~
WEhEA IEFE
FHET FHT
Imputed interest expense on loan from RARMBARERNEENEMX
a fellow subsidiary 131 -
Interest expenses on THEIEHFEHZ
— loans from ultimate holding company ~ — R B &&ER A RN ER 32,278 -
- secured bank borrowings —BEABITHERK 8,704 -
— margin financing —REZHBE 17,825 43
- vendor financing loan —BETREER 2,991 -
— loan notes —ERER 30,626 -
Bank charges RITUE 7,983 -
Others HAb 106 -
100,644 43
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) 1. FEHRAX (ER)
Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE=B-AF | HE-T AF
+=ZBA=+—H =A=+—H
I AER IEFE
FHERT FHET
Current tax: WATHIIE
The PRC EIT R EMSH 4,849 4,341
Singapore Corporate Tax (“CIT") Fronsg s ([REMER]) 9,677 7,222
Hong Kong Profits Tax BABNER 1,464 -
UK Profits Tax EEMEH 29 -
Overprovision in prior year: N EFEBERE:
The PRC EIT R EPTS T (1,604) -
Singapore CIT N E RS (106) -
Deferred tax (Note 40) IEIERIA (Ff7E40) 152,549 (54,271)
166,858 (42,708)
KMERERAF

T -REFFR
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 &= —F— X F+=-A=+—HILNEA

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax and Singapore CIT are calculated at
16.5% and 17.0%, respectively, on the estimated assessable
profit for the period/year.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the "EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the PRC EIT rate of
subsidiaries of the Group operating in the PRC was 25% or at a
lower concessionary rate of 9% for subsidiaries operating in the
Tibet Autonomous Region for the period/year.

Subsidiaries incorporated in Mongolia are subject to Mongolian
income tax which is calculated at the rate of 10% on the first 3
billion Mongolian Turgrik (“MNT") of estimated taxable income
and 25% on the amount in excess thereof. No provision for
Mongolian income tax has been made in the consolidated
financial statement as there are no assessable profits for the
period/year.

UK Profits Tax is calculated at 20% of estimated assessable
profit for the period.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 &%= ==

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (continued)

—R"E+ZA=+—HIEAEA

11.

FrEBiRAx (ER) (&)

The income tax expense (credit) for the period/year can be Hﬂ M/ FEMEBHRAY (He)BRe8
reconciled to the profit (loss) before tax in the consolidated wmREMPE WSR2 R AR (EE)
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as RN
follows:
Nine months
ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
(Note) (Note)
BZE #HZE
Y ey ——~F
+=A =A
=t—H =t—A
It AER IEFE
FAx Fh
(HiaE) (FE5E)
Profit (loss) before tax B2 B A (B 1R ) 207,965 (158,782)
Tax calculated at the applicable BRAMBRMEREAE 2B
domestic income tax rates 64,143 (40,264)
Tax effect of expenses Ry
not deductible for tax purpose 23,585 2,035
Tax effect of income BERPWA 2R E
not taxable for tax purpose (297) (1,724)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERDIEBE BB 2 36,139 -
Effect of concessionary tax rates RAEBAAREEERZ
of subsidiaries operating MEBAREBERER IR
in the Tibet Autonomous Region (22,322) (2,755)
Overprovision in prior year F—FEBERE (1,710) -
Deferred tax effect of LAT in respect BREAMNRTPRIEEMERE
of change in fair value of SE) o THIBER
the investment property located R IBRE
in the PRC 68,451 -
Tax effect of income under tax RRRBRA 2 BB 2
exemption and rebate (1,131) -
Income tax expense (credit) HE/ FEMEHAY (KR)
for the period/year 166,858 (42,708)

Note:

The amounts represented the combined effect of the Group

entities basing on actual tax rates applicable for each

jurisdiction where the relevant Group entities operate, taking

into account of applicable tax concession, if any.

B o

ﬁ@
B
¥

ZEFREASBERREEHERE
KEMERREEERERNBERR

KEMERRIAESE (W) A s
2B o

4

=
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 &= —F— X F+=-A=+—HILNEA

12. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR 12. B8 EEEA (E8)

Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
BE-B-AF | HE-T AF
+=A=+—H —A=+—H
@A IEFE
FET FHT
Profit (loss) for the period/year has been  HifEFEEF (FBI8) JH &Kk
arrived after charging (crediting): (5 A) T H| & HEBER
Directors’ emoluments (Note 13) E=Me (MHFE13) 11,611 1,952
Other staff costs: Hh 8 T A :
— Salaries, wages and other benefits -F e R EMER 30,351 5,842
— Retirement benefits —iR K& A 1,163 150
Total staff costs BT KA 43,125 7,944
Auditor’s remuneration Z BN & 3,964 750
Cost of inventories recognised as EHRAEAL ZFERAN
an expense 7,882,354 1,041,520
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BELRRETE
equipment 5,667 423
Amortisation of intangible assets mvEESH 250 -
Impairment loss on accounts receivable JEMBE 2 R BB K 40 -
Legal and professional fee (Note) EEREXEER (W) 66,424 5,328
Operating lease rental in respect of EEMAEME2LLEHERS
office premises 18,619 2,877
Gross rental income from investment HEMEMGHSBAEE
properties (2,263) -
Less: direct operating expenses arising B EEHSRAZREME
from investment properties that FREECEELEERY
generated rental income 46 -
(2,217) -
Note: Legal and professional fees mainly related to various corporate Mizk: HRM/ FEZEZERBEERTEZMASE

EEROCXHEEER BREMESRE
pal e 11 VNG

projects of the Group including acquisitions of subsidiaries as
disclosed in Note 48 during the period/year.
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 HiZ=—Z—"F+=_A=+—HIE (@A

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES" AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’
emoluments

Directors’ and chief executives’ remuneration for the
period/year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing

Rules and CO, is as follows:

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016

13. EX FETHRAERESH

£
(a)

EERTETHRAEMS

B/ TEEEREBTRARY
B 18 153 B 1 7 AR A R 2 7
BEMT :

BE-FE-—ANF+ZA=1+—Hi

A1EA
Dr. Meng Mr. Chen Mr. Wong Mr. Chua Mr. Hu
Zhaoyi Mr. Xu Ke Weisong Mr. Ye Fei Qiang Hwa Por Yebi
(appointed  (appointed  (appointed  (appointed  (appoi (resigned (resigned
on on on on on 16 on on
Dr. Liu 24 May 1 June 22 June 28 October December 8July 28 October
Hua 2016) 2016) 2016) 2016) 2016) 2016) 2016) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
(Chairman
and chief
executive
officer)
aRERL #UKE  REREE E£3 2 IBkE  BEREE  HEE%L
(R=8-7"%F (RZF-AF (RZB-AF (R2B-REF (RZF-AF (R22-5%F (RZB-7F
il p i) AB-B ABZtZB tAZtNE TZAtAH tANE TAZtNB
HERL . £3:39) £33 BEE) . £3:9) . £3:3) ) ) 8%
TiEn TEn FiEn TiEn TiEn FiEn FiEn TiEn TiEn
(€3
ROTBER)
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HiEs
Fees Be - - - - - - - - -
Other emoluments Ly kS
Salaries, allowances and Be BER
benefits in kind oL 1,856 3,028 2,108 1,964 679 286 806 140 10,867
Retirement benefits RirER 14 12 9 1 3 1 6 7 69
Subtotal it 1,870 3,040 2,117 1,975 682 293 812 147 10,936
AMERBERRA

T -REFFR
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 &= —F— X F+=-A=+—HILNEA

13. DIRECTORS'’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES' AND 13. EE -FETHRAEBREESM

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) ® (&)

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ (a) EERIFETHAEME
emoluments (Continued) (#)
For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 BE_ZT—ANFf+ZHA=+—HIi
(Continued) NG A (#E)
The executive directors’ and chief executives’ FRFARHMITEERETETHAER
emoluments shown above were mainly for their services MeEZEDARBEFRARQTRA
in connection with the management of the affairs of the SERHEZEERRBMES-

Company and the Group.

Mr. Mao Dr. Gao Ms. Liu
Kangfu Bin Yan Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEREE BEEL 2+ “Em
FHExT FHERT FHERT FHERT
INDEPENDENT NON- BYFBTES
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Fees wae 225 225 225 675
Other emoluments H B2 - - - -
Subtotal NE 225 225 225 675
Total k- 11,611
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments ERFIRZEBIERITERT ZHE
shown above were mainly for their services as directors FEDARBSEEARAESZ
of the Company. Rk 75 M 2 A<F ©
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 HiZ=—Z—"F+=_A=+—HIE (@A

13.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND 13. EE -FETBRAEBRESH
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) cAC )
(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ (a) EERTETHAEMS
emoluments (Continued) (#)
For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE-_F-—ANF=ZFA=1+—HIF
E
Mr. Mung
Mr. Liu Dr. Mr. Chua ~ BunMan,  Mr. Mung
Xueheng Liu Hua Hwa Por Alan  Kin Keung
(resigned  (appointed  (appointed  (resigned  (resigned
on on on on on
Mr.Hu 19 January 8 January 19 January 30 June 18 June
Yebi 2016) 2016) 2016) 2015) 2015) Total
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
(Chairman
and chief
executive
office)
ABEEE  MEET BERLE FRUEE FERRE
(R=F— (RZT— (RZF— (RZ%- (RZ%T-—
~E-RB AR A~E-R #AXA RERA
HEHE +hH NB ThA =18 +/\A
bk BE)  BRE)  EZE) BT) BE) pck]
FAT Thx TAR TR TET Thx TER
(EB%
THEAR)
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITEE
Fees e - - - - 13 60 73
Other emoluments Hipbi e
Salaries, allowances and e E2HR
benefits in kind BEMFlR 228 192 390 603 - - 1413
Retirement benefits RIKEF 12 - - 2 - 3 17
Subtotal N 240 192 390 605 13 63 1,503
AMERERAR

T -REFFR
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND 13. EE FETHAEBRESH

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) & (@)

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ (a) EERIFETHAEME
emoluments (Continued) (#&)
For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Continued) BE-_F-—NNF=ZF=+—HIF

E(#)

The executive directors’ and chief executives’ EERMTPTESRETETHAE
emoluments shown above were mainly for their services MeEZEDARBEFRARQTRA
in connection with the management of the affairs of the SERHEZEERRBMES-

Company and the Group.

Mr. Tang Mr. Chee
Shu Pui, Man Sang,
Simon Eric
(resigned on (resigned on
30 June 22 July
2015) 2015) Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B A MRAERE

(RZZ—RF (R-_ZT—AF

NA=1TH +tA=-+=8
BT BHT) Fok
FHET FHET FiBT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FHITES

Fees we 15 19 34
Other emoluments H i i & - - -
Subtotal INEE 15 19 34
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 HiZ=—Z—"F+=_A=+—HIE (@A

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES" AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executives’
emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Continued)
The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown

above were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.

13. EX FETHRAERESH

€ (@)
(a) ESERTETHAE#HE
(#)

BE—E-—ANFZA=1—HULF
E(#&)

ERARZFERTEZZHEEE
DRI BERETARRES 2R
i 32 A e

Mr. Ng

Mr. Tsui Chun

Mr. Mao Ms. Dr. Mr. Chan Sai Ming, Chuen,

Kangfu Liu Yan Gao Bin Wai Man Steven David

(appointed  (appointed  (appointed (resigned (resigned (resigned

on on on 20 on on 30 on 20

5 January 18 June  November 18 June  September  November
2016) 2015) 2015) 2015) 2015) 2015) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ERXAE  fMnr SEET REREE HKUBHEE RERE4E

(RZB- (RZZB—- (RzT- (RZZ- (BzZZF- (BRz%-

~E-R BFERR RET-A RFRA  RFEAA RFET-A

s WAL= —+H /1R =+H —+H
BZE) BZ{E) BZE) B) Bf) B ) ot
THET TER TET TER FET TR TER

INDEPENDENT NON- BUFHTES
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Fees we 75 139 79 45 30 38 406
Retirement benefit R - - 9 - - - 9
Subtotal It 75 139 88 45 30 38 415
Total FakE) 1,952
AMERERAR

T -REFFR
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 &= —F— X F+=-A=+—HILNEA

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND 13. EE - FTETHRAEREEM

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) ® (&)
(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ (a) EERIFETHAEME
emoluments (Continued) (#)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as directors
of the Company.

With effect from 1 February 2017, Mr. Chua Hwa
Por (“Mr. Chua”) has been appointed as an executive
director and the chairman of the Board of Directors
(the “Board”). Dr. Meng Zhaoyi ceased to act as the
Chairman of the Board but remained as an executive
director and chief executive officer of the Company. In
addition, Mr. Tang King Shing has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company
effective from 1 February 2017.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office during the current
period and prior year.

There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
current period and prior year.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z—"F+=-_A=+—HIL @A

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES' AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Employees’ emoluments
The five highest paid employees of the Group during
the nine months ended 31 December 2016 included
four directors (year ended 31 March 2016: one director),
details of whose remuneration are set out in the
disclosures above. Details of the remuneration for the
nine months ended 31 December 2016 of the remaining
one (year ended 31 March 2016: four) highest paid
employee who are neither a director nor chief executive
of the Company are as follows:

(b)

BEME

13. EE -FETHAERESHH
€ (@)

BE-T-~E+-A=t+-AL
NEA AEETEBEHIIES

EENLEE (BE_T—

NF=

A=1T—HIFE: —%&E=%) H
MEHENEXEE - BE-_FT—X

F+-A=+—
—%(Bz=%
HIEFE M%)

BiEn@ER  E

—REFEZA=1—

REHHES (1

FARAREFTHTETHRAR)Z

MEFEmT:

Nine months Year

ended ended

31 December 2016 31 March 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

BE-Z— K& HE-_Z—K*F

+=—A=+—H —A=+—H”

W@ A IEFE

FET FET

Salaries, allowance and other benefits ¥4 « =8t & H fb 48 7 1,450 1,792
Retirement benefit RARAE T 14 203
1,464 1,995

The number of the highest paid employees who are
not the Directors nor chief executive of the Company
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

WHARREERETETHRAER
MEnFTIIBEZzE=HMER

HHWMT:

No. of employees

EEHE
Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
BE-_T—XKF HE-T—XKF
+=-—A=+—H =A=+—H
WEh@EA IEFE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007 7T - 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7t £1,500,0007% 7T 1 -
1 4
AMERERAR

T -REFFR
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 &= —F— X F+=-A=+—HILNEA

14. DIVIDENDS 14.

No interim or final dividend was paid or proposed during the
nine months ended 31 December 2016 and year ended 31
March 2016, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end
of the reporting period.

15. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 15.

The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

iz 2

BE_FT-—A"Ft-A=+—HLLAEA
MBE_ZE-RF=ZA=T—HILFEIL
EORAY REUR R B ROREIRE - R
HE MR T EERR RS -

BREN (FE)

ARRHEBEANBIENEBRELRTN (BER)
TR T 8RR E

following data:

Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$"000 HK$'000
BE-Z— ¥ HE-T—XF
+=A=+-8 =A=+-8
ENMEA L
FET FHT
Earnings (loss) B (&5i8)
Profit (loss) for the period/year attributable R B EFREREF (EE)
to owners of the Company for the EORN/NEIE  F =N L
purposes of basic earnings (loss) FREN (EE)
per share 41,263 (116,204)
Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
'000 '000
(restated)
BE-_FT—XF HE-T—RF
+=A=+-8 =A=+-A
WFh@EA IEFE
F & F &
(EFHIIR)
Number of shares BRHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary BRABEERERZT (EE)
shares for the purpose of calculation #9338 AR hn e 19 21
of basic earnings (loss) per share 2,123,430 1,357,591
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z—"F+=-_A=+—HIL @A

15.

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016, the weighted
average number ordinary of shares for the purposes of basic
earnings per share has been adjusted for the issuance of Rights
Shares and share placing in November and December 2016
(details are disclosed in Notes 41(c) and 41(d)).

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the weighted average
number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic loss
per share has been adjusted to reflect the bonus element
arising from the share placing and share subscriptions of the
Company'’s ordinary shares in July and November 2015 (details
are disclosed in Notes 41(a) and 41(b)).

As described in Note 41(c), the Company completed the Rights
Issue on 7 November 2016. Since there is a bonus element in
the Rights Issue, retrospective adjustment has been made to the
weighted average number of ordinary shares for the prior year.

No diluted earnings (loss) per share for the period/year were
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue for
the period/year.

15.

BRERN (EE) (@)

HE-Z—XRF+-A=+—B 1N
A B ESREERBFM L ERINE
FHHEERR _E—"F+—AM+=A
BTHBEROHFMETROESEL AR
(FBEHEERWEL1()K%41(d)) °

BHE_ZT-—RF=ZA=T—RHILFE" A
Rt ESREREIEN TR NETF IR
EEHHARE UARRR-_F-—AFEAR
T—ABRMEE KRR R E BB RE
PRESMANER (FERERHEL1@)
K4a1(b)) °

A AV QFTIL - RABER ZF— X
Ft+—ALB TR HERETT R AR
TAMNER AHEEHBEFENEE
B DN g BUETT B M S o

MANE/ FATEBRTEELBR:
WHELH M FESRETRT (&
#B) e

KMERERAF
T -REFFR
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 &= —F— X F+=-A=+—HILNEA

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. WX BERRKR®E

Leasehold  Furniture, fixtures Motor
improvements  and office equipment vehicles Aircraft Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B BELER
HELE BAERE 5E i @i
FET FET FETL FET FER
cosT B
At 1 April 2015 R-ZE-RFNA—H - 151 - - 151
Additions NE 2,643 6,748 3,075 - 12,466
Exchange realignment BEHBR - (5) - - ()
At 31 March 2016 RZE-~F=ZA=1+—H 2,643 6,894 3,075 - 12,612
Additions NE 5,270 3,919 12,376 - 21,565
Acquired through acquisition of BREE-AREL RS
a subsidiary (Note 48(i)(f)) (BiizE48()(1) - - - 155,000 155,000
Exchange realignment EHAE (163) (340) (36) - (539)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"E+-A=1+—H 7,750 10,473 15,415 155,000 188,638
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 2 E
At 1 April 2015 RZZ-HAFMA—H - 30 - - 30
Provided for the year FREE 135 212 76 - 423
Exchange realignment B HAE - ) - - 2)
At 31 March 2016 R-ZE-A~EZA=1+—H 135 240 76 - 451
Provided for the period Rk 1,067 1,480 1,552 1,568 5,667
Exchange realignment R A% (13) 31) 3) - (47)
At 31 December 2016 WZE-~F+=-A=+—H 1,189 1,689 1,625 1,568 6,071
CARRYING VALUES FEE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE+ZA=1—H 6,561 8,784 13,790 153,432 182,567
At 31 March 2016 R-E-~F=A=1+—H 2,508 6,654 2,999 - 12,161

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated, after taking into account of their estimated

residual values, on a straight-line method at the following rates

per annum:

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

Motor vehicles
Aircraft

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

Over the shorter of
term of the lease
or 5 years

20% to 33.3%

20% to 33.3%

14.3%

Eitx - BEREBERFARE 25
RABERABRERATFENRTE -

HEXE HEFHHF
(A&EH
RE)

BHCETEERBAZHE 20%%33.3%

HE 20%%33.3%
R 14.3%
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17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REWE
HK$'000
FH T
FAIR VALUE D RE
At 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 RZE—RAFOA—HBE=_Z—RF=H
=+—H -
Additions NE 1,261,374
Acquired through acquisitions of subsidiaries BB B A 7B (MIFE48() 0 &

(Note 48(i)(c) and Note 48(i)(d)) Fg 7E48(i)(d)) 2,049,856
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss REZAERZ ANEZED 304,430
Exchange realignment PE 3 & 10,100
At 31 December 2016 WZBE-RE+ZA=+—H 3,625,760

All of the Group’s property interests held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation are measured using the fair value model
and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31
December 2016 was approximately to HK$3,625,760,000
and have been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried
out by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporation Appraisal and Advisory
Limited (“JLL"), GVA Grimley Limited (“GVA") and APAC
Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited (“APAC") respectively,
independent qualified professional valuers not connected with
the Group.

The valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence
of transaction prices for similar properties in the same location
and conditions and where appropriate by capitalisation of rental
income from properties.

Details of the Group's investment properties and information
under Level 3 fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2016 is as

AEBPAAREARDESHIFEARERE
ZOERRADERARERAFELHEA
RARIESREYE-

ZIK%IZ&Q*«@J% z /—\EJr_ﬂ

T TJEEE@$’$II4HF§7$Z?32 B
EEMEMTEBITEETEREAER
A7 ([HFE817]) ~GVA Grimley Limited
([GVA) R REEFTERERBERA
AI(TER])DRETZ(EEEE -

HETD2EMRARMZE MRRZBUY
E3 %{EZI‘D%LL YEREMEHRE
WA (miEm) &

RZB-RF+-A=+—H0 x&EE%
BYEIHBRE=EBANEERER

follows: N
HK$'000
FHT
Commercial property units located in UK R ERE 2 Y BB 988,425
Residential property units located in UK MR 2 (EEYEEN 1,074,375
A hotel facility located in the PRC Az 7 P B 2 OB JE RR B 1,562,960
3,625,760
KMERERAF

T -REFFR
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—RE+FZA=t+—HIEARERA

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular,

the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair

value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.

Investment properties held
by the Group in the
consolidated statement

of financial position
GARBRRBRA
FREEFEZRENE

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)
ERITR

TERARE

Key observable input(s)
TETREBAEE

17. REWE (&)

TRINEZEREVEDR

REZEBES

A2 E# CLER[ERM MR E AR

B) ARBREFE

NAEFERE AR

BZABRREERMBAZARERER-

Significant
unobservable input(s)
ED IR
BAHE

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
AUBEERARER
DREZEE

Residential property
units located in UK

Commercial property
units located in UK

IR AE 2 RN EEL

Hotel facility located
in the PRC

fir i e B 2 R R 3

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

Market comparable approach

Key input is recent market prices
per square foot of comparable
properties

5L BA
IERARBATELENEL
BETRAATHER

Investment approach

Key inputs are:

- Term yield

- Market rent of comparable
properties

RETE
IZBABES:

- FHEHX

- TELEYEzTHES

Income approach
Key inputs are:

- Term yield

- Reversionary yield

- Gross rental income derived from

the existing leases

Woasik

FTEHAEES:

- BHERE

- EREHRE

- FARBHREZHSKAAE

Recent market price
of GBP3,000 per
square foot

EMEEREET
771R3,000% 8

Monthly market rent
per square foot
from GBP3.85 to
GBP4.17

BEYFRAMSGES
B3.85HEE4 17
g

Gross monthly
rental income of
RMB6,600,000

AHEESMARER
AE#6,600,00070

Key and unobservable input
is market price square foot
of comparable properties,
by taking accounts of
the accessibility, size,
locations and condition and
environment of properties

IERTABRGARBRTE
HENEZ ST HRTE &
PREWEE K UER
FHEARMERE

Key and unobservable inputs
are:

- Term yield: 5.33%

- Market rent of comparable
properties, by taking
accounts of the accessibility,
size, locations and condition
and environment of
properties

TERFUERGAHER:

- BHBHRE: 533%

- TEREMEZTSAS B
FREAER A RUER
CPTIESES:

Key and unobservable inputs
are:

- Termyield: 1.0% to 4.5%

- Reversionary yield: 1.5% to
5.0%

TERTABRGATEA:
- BEHERE: 1.0%24.5%
- BRE®RE: 15%250%

- The higher the market
price per square foot, the
higher the fair value.

- BYIRTERS AR
EHme

- The lower the term yield,
the higher the fair value

- The higher the market
rent, the higher the fair
value.

- FEmMBEHE [AiE
=)
- THEEEER

’%u

CRAER

- The lower the term yield
and reversionary yield, the
higher the fair value

- AHDRERERDREX
BE DREES
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWE &)
There has been no change from the valuation technique REBEE_Z—R"F+T_A=+—HILIE
used during the nine months ended 31 December 2016. R PR ES & H) - PNEEHER
In estimating the fair values of the investment properties BERABRZREMELAAER REWEY
for disclosure purpose, the highest and the best use of the EakExERRAHRERSR

investment properties is their current use.

There were no transfers out of level 3 during the period. RAHR SRS =E8H-
18. GOODWILL 18. B8
HK$'000
FHET
CoST R
At 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 RZE—RAFHEA—ARK
—E-RE=ZA=+—8 -
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 48(ii)) U B M B 2 &) AT E 4 (FT 5E48(i0) ) 12,014
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—RE+ZA=+—H 12,014
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are BRABERENHAZ F BN TE215EE -
disclosed in Note 21.
AMERERAR

T -REFFR
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

19. BREE

Trading Vehicle
rights and license Customer
licenses plates relationships Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REERIER HHRE EFEHE @t
T Fi#ET T T
CoST AR
At 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 RZZE-RFMA-A K
—E-RF=ZR=+—H - - - -
Acquired through acquisitions of BRUENE D B E
subsidiaries (Note 48(i)(a),(i)(b),(i)(e) (B 5E48()(@),(i)b), () e) &
and Note 48(ii)) Bt 5480 ) 8,355 4,130 20,131 32,616
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RFE+ZA=+—H 8,355 4,130 20,131 32,616
AMORTISATION e
At 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 RZZ-AFNA—-BR
—ET-XF=ZA=+—H - - - -
Provided for the period HRRE - - 250 250
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+ZA=+—H - - 250 250
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"F+ZA=+—H 8,355 4,130 19,881 32,366

At 31 March 2016

R-ZZE—R"F=ZA=+—H

The trading rights and licenses represents the eligibility rights
to trade on or through the Stock Exchange and The Hong Kong
Futures Exchange Limited and insurance brokerage license and

have no foreseeable limit to the period over which the Group

can use to generate cash flows. In addition, the vehicle licence
plates were issued by the relevant authorities in the PRC and

Hong Kong with no expiration dates.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

RN RIEN BB R R E A
EXGRAERRFPETRHZAERER
RRBELER AEETARELRS
R 2 HARE 78 XA TR ORI R B PR
Retbdh REREHTERBFEREE
EEBPIRE  WEEWHH -
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19.

20.

—R"E+ZA=+—HIEAEA

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 19. BEEE @)
As a result, the trading rights and licenses and vehicle licence Fit AEBEEEERRIFHERER K
plates are considered by the management of the Group as BRREAEERACHFH - ZFEXH
having indefinite useful lives. These trading rights and licenses EREBRBWHEEETISWEN BEE
and vehicle licence plates will not be amortised until their BEZEATFHEEEABRRARBESR
useful lives are determined to be finite and they are carried RASB M EERERL (IhE) AKX
at cost less any subsequent impairment losses, if any. Instead, i A FHREBEREE ] 8RR
they will be tested for impairment annually, or more frequently B AREBEF (HEHEE) ERER
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they R BRERFHERERBEENRZFIBER
might be impaired. Particulars regarding impairment testing MIsE2 1858 - RANGBEEEEEE B@MIE
on trading rights and licenses are disclosed in Note 21 and R R E - RN ERRE AR ME
the management of the Group determined that there was A H BRE(E o
no impairment of vehicle licence plates as their market value
exceeds their carrying amount as at the end of the reporting
period.
Customer relationships arising from the Hui Kai Holdings EERWBEEEECEPBERYIBE
Acquisition are initially recognised at fair value and are less any NAEREEMREBIERRRISF 2
impairment losses and are amortised on a straight line basis fhEt B FRANRE SRR -
over the estimated useful lives of 15 years.
MINING RIGHTS 20. PRUEFRE
HK$'000
FHET
CoST R
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and RZE—RAFHA—HB - ZZE—X<F=HA
31 December 2016 =t+—BARZE-—RE+ZR=+—H 1,003,034
IMPAIRMENT A
At 1 April 2015 R-ZT—HFMA—H 331,410
Impairment loss recognised during the year REANRRHEEK 217,083
At 31 March 2016 and 31 December 2016 RZE-—RF=ZA=+—HBERZZ—XF
+ZA=+—H 548,493
CARRYING VALUE AR B
At 31 March 2016 and 31 December 2016 RZB-RF=ZA=+—HKZ N
+=-—A=+—8H 454,541
AMERERAR

T -REFFR
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20.

—RE+FZA=t+—HIEARERA

MINING RIGHTS (continued)

The mining rights represent the rights to conduct mining
activities in the location of Nogoonnuur Soum and Tsengel
Soum of Bayan-Ulgii Aimag in Mongolia, and have remaining
legal lives of 15 to 20 years, expiring in July 2031, March 2033,
December 2035 and July 2036, respectively. The mining licenses
are issued by Mineral Resources and Petroleum Authority of
Mongolia and may be extended for two successive additional
periods of 20 years each. The Directors are of the opinion
that the application for extension is procedural and the Group
should be able to renew its mining licenses at minimal charges,
until all the proven and probable minerals have been mined.
There are no active mining operation of the Group has taken
place yet during the period/year. The Directors expect that the
exploitation of the mines will take place no later than the end
of 2018.

Mining rights are included in the mining and exploitation
of natural resources segment which is a CGU, representing
the Group's subsidiaries — Kainarwolfram LLC and Ikh Uuliin
Erdenes LLC that holds mining rights for the purpose of
impairment testing. Particulars regarding impairment testing on
mining rights are disclosed in Note 21.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

20.

RIERE (@)

RERETNREEERIEEAHERB
R EBETETRELE ZEN - ek
EEFHRTAFE_THF DRINR_-F
=—%+R ZTE==F=R - ZT=H
FHZARZE=ZRFLRAER -BEHN
RO YHEREREE RO MER B
HAEEEHRR BR20F-EER
RRREHEATKERRF A&
BETENREEARABRMERTEAK
X EEMERARMG ZBEREERK
RIE-RE/FR- REEERETER
REEER -EERMZEEILSNER
E-NFERETHR

HREETARBROBZRAZERSE (B
REEXEN) BEAEBEZHBAT -
Kainarwolfram LLC X Ikh Uuliin Erdenes
LLCRUBE RIS B ey M AE 2 5KigiE - 57
HBEERENR Z FERME215E



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11 B 255 e 3% B

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 &%= ==

21.

—A"E+ZA=+—HIEAER

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL,
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES AND MINING RIGHTS

Impairment testing on goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out in
Note 18 and trading rights and licenses set out in Note 19 have
been allocated to the CGU represented by financial services
business segment.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. The recoverable amount of the
CGU arising from financial services business segment has been
determined on the basis of value in use calculations and certain
key assumptions. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
value in use calculations use cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management of the Group
covering a 5-year period and discount rate of 10.9%. Cash
flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a growth
rate of 3%.

Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate
to the estimation of cash inflow/outflows which include
budgeted revenue and gross margins during the budget period.
Budgeted revenue and gross margins have been determined
based on past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the carrying amount of the above CGU to exceed the
recoverable amount of the above CGU.

21.

BE EREAFHEFLEE
KR RE 2 B E R

FEREREAFHELEEZ
AR S

SURERI AT S - M 18T # Z BE N Mt
1Bz R SRLIERCENEERS
BRBEEB DR RSB ELE -

RIS 58 /3 A SO (B R B B AR B 5 FR (B
EMEsBRaE SRREXBHHEE
ZHEeEEBNZAIWESEIRGRE
BRI EEERETHREBRET -BRE
BEmE FHEENREAEEETERE
HHEZSF B IS TEE 210.9% 2 #r 3 &
FRASAEBEINAE AFHECEESR
TfER3% 2B REHEH -

TEGAEBEZEMERREK I EEE R
RZBERA R (BEEE RS
REME)EMH AE W REMNETIR
BRAXRBEREREAMSER 2 ARE

CEBERP/LERR2EMEIEA A
Ejﬂz BY MR eEFENL REE
FA F IR 6 A A B2 AT IR E & B8 o

KMERERAF
T -REFFR
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21.

—RETZA=+—HIENEAR

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL,
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES AND MINING RIGHTS
(Continued)

Impairment testing on mining rights

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016 and year
ended 31 March 2016, there are no active mining operation
of the Group has taken place yet, the Directors conducted an
impairment assessment of the Mining CGU. For the purposes of
impairment testing, the mining rights set out in Note 20 have
been allocated to the Mining CGU represented by mining and
exploitation of natural resources segment.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. The recoverable amounts of
mining and exploitation of natural resources segment were
determined based on value in use calculation and certain key
assumptions. For the purpose of impairment testing, the value
in use calculations use cash flow projection based on financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group covering
a period of two to seven years. The discount rates used for
the value in use calculations is 22.06% to 22.21% (31 March
2016: 21.27% — 21.83%). Other key assumptions for the value
in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include estimated tungsten metal selling price
with 1.45% growth rate,
and exploitation potential,
operating costs, discount rates and exchange rates.

recoverable reserves, resources

production cost estimates, future

With reference to the assessment, the Directors were of the
view that no impairment loss for the nine months ended 31
December 2016 (year ended 31 March 2016: HK$217,083,000)
was recognised for the Mining CGU in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as the recoverable amount of the Mining CGU was higher
than (31 March 2016: less than) the carrying amount. The
impairment made during the year ended 31 March 2016
was primarily due to decline in the selling price tungsten
concentrate products.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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21.

BE EREATHEFEE
N RERE 2B E R &)

PR A 2z R (B R R

BE-_ZT—A&+-_A=+—BItA@AA
rEBEZZ—R"F=-A=+—HILEFE"
REENAETERFBRER E20Y
RIER ¢ E A BN EL A LA
AT E - 20T H 2 RIBEECED R
EFHEBERIRRAERS BREZFEE
REEEEM-

AR El S A DA ER T EKANEGEAE
EMEzEEE REMMBERRABRS
HzaE e hiRFEREEFERET
FAREBRETE - RENETES - EREE
THARHR AN &2 [ B 18 g b 2 TR = -+ 4 EA A
ZHBEEFCABRERBATE FES
RAEEFRBZITRER22.06%E22.21%
(ZE—ARF=ZA=FT—H:12127%=%
21.83% ) ° ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁZH@%ﬁﬁ&
Bgﬁifﬁﬁgﬂwzfﬁim}\/mu ﬁ /F]
%%E%ﬁm%%Zﬁ%%@%Z%E\
ATl - BIR R ERBEE - il ET EEK
B RRBERA IR ERER)FH-

Y

Fc

e EERAMEREEZC
F+-A=+—HIEALEAR (&
—_= NE=ZA=+—BIEFE:

217,083,000 7T ) 2 SRIBR @ EAE BN
REBEREMEENERARERRE -

REESFRBERSELEN I REESER
R((ZE—RF=A=+—H:ER)EAE
B HE_ZE—AF-A=1+—HLFE
WBERE SHRIBERERZ2EET
Bk FATER -

%%
—x
=
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22.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

22. RBEERT 2R

31 December 2016

31 March 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

—®-_x% 2

+=p=+-8 =A=+-8

FHET FET

Cost of unlisted interest in an associate ~ R —MH&E AR ZIE L TIRERAK 15,194 -
Share of post-acquisition losses and RN EEBEE R E M2 EKE

other comprehensive income 107 -

15,301 -

Details of the Group’s associate at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

MR R AN £ B B

T

Proportion of nominal value

ERRZFIEMN

Establishment of registered capital held Proportion of voting Principal
Name of entity Form of business structure and operation by the Group power held activities
EEAB $BERER RIREE AEERAEREAEEZ LA FisRERELA TEER
31 December 31 March | 31 December 31 March
2016 2016 2016 2016
—E-RE —E-RF Z-RE —E-REF
t=A=+-B | =A=1-A =t-B | =A=1-R
Shanghai Jilan Investment Domestic limited partnership The PRC 40% 86% 40% 86%  Investment
LP* (Note a) holding
FEERREDO NERRER HE RERR
(BRa%) (Hita)
* The English name is for identification purpose only.
Notes: M5

As disclosed in Note 49, the Group disposed of its 46%
equity interest of Shanghai Jilan Investment LP* | /&&
BImEFR L (BRA) (“ilan”) to an independent third
party at a consideration of RMB16,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$18,523,000) during the nine months ended 31 December
2016. Upon completion of the disposal, the Group has lost the
control to Jilan and continued to participate in the partnership
meeting, therefore, the remaining 40% equity interest was
accounted for as interest in an associate.

BN AR T AEBNEET
—AE+ZA=Z+—BILtAEAHME
HER EBERIEERL(BRER)
(MR 246%BRELE T —RBEL
FE=1 REARARKM16,0000007T
(#8%5018,523,000%8 7T ) - RIEEZAK
B RNEBEREHBER IE EE
B2EABANEH FHILBRT40%RE
ABRFPIER — R & AR 2 sk o

KMERERAF
T -REFFR
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22. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) On 25 March 2016, the Group entered into a cooperation
agreement with four independent third parties to establish an
associate, to engage in, among other things, certain investment
management and asset management activities and no capital
injection was made before 31 March 2016. Pursuant to the
cooperation agreement, the initial registered capital of the
Chung Tak Investment Funds Management (Zhejiang) Limited*
(RECIHT) R BREREESERERAF]) will be RMB50
million (equivalents to approximately HK$58 million). The Group
shall hold 30% equity interest of this associate and during
the nine months ended 31 December 2016, the Group has
partially injected RMB7.0 million (equivalently to approximately
HK$8.4 million) into the associate and subsequent to the capital
injection, the Group disposed of its entire equity interests to the
other three independent third parties at a total consideration of
RMB7.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$7.8 million).

The associate of the Group at 31 December 2016 are
considered to be immaterial and the financial information of the

associate are also immaterial.

23. LOAN NOTE RECEIVABLE

22. REEERNT 2R (@)

M (&)

(b)

R-ZE—RNE=ZA-_+HB XE&EH
BB E =R LAERH N
B —RRE (KPR ETFRES
BERAEEBEB2BERR MR
T-RNEZA=1+—ABf LTEEH
EEIRIBEE R RE D) &kt
BRELERCEEBERARZ M
I E 2 A AR ¥50,000,0007T (48
£ 5 #4958,000,000/% T ) © AN & E i #
BUBERRZ30%KE REE_Z
—R"E+-_A=+—HLEAM@AR-
REEBERAZBEARBIIEAR
#7,000,0007T (48 % 7 498,400,000/
L) REFEER AEECBEEIR
A E ARY7,000,0007T (HZ
A #17,800,0008 7T ) & T EM=FE
STE=J

AEBR-F—AF+T=A=t—HZ
BEANRRATEARKBEATL
B ERTETER

23. BRERER

HK$’000
FHET

Carrying Values IREE
At 1 April 2015 and 2016 RZE-—RAFR-_ZT—-RFMA—H -
Loan notes subscribed RBrEREE 1,550,800
Less: loan notes arrangement fee B EREBRREE (89,992)
At 31 December 2016 RZZT—RF+-_A=+—H 1,460,808

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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23.

LOAN NOTE RECEIVABLE (continued)

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016, the
Group entered into a subscription agreement with Haitong
Global pursuant to which the Group agreed to subscribe for
50,000 Class R participating shares at a total consideration of
US$50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$387,700,000)
of Haitong Dynamic Fund.

There are two classes of non-voting shares in the capital of
the Haitong Dynamic Fund, namely Class P participating shares
and Class R participating shares and the shareholder of Class
P participating shares is a company controlled by Haitong
International Securities Group Limited, an independent third
party not connected with the Group. The principal of the
Class P participating shares is US$150,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,163,100,000) and Haitong Global has
appointed Hai Tong Asset Management (HK) Limited as its
investment manager of Haitong Dynamic Fund.

The Directors have assessed the facts that i) the purpose
of setting up the Haitong Dynamic Fund was initiated by
the Group and solely for subscribing loan note issued by
an independent third party (the “Borrower”) and after the
subscription of the loan note, most of the investment capital
in the Haitong Dynamic Fund has been used up and no further
investment decisions could be made until the maturity of the
loan note; ii) in accordance with the subscription agreement,
the Group could receive the residual value from Haitong
Dynamic Fund after paying the principal and target return,
which is 6.5% fixed interest income of the US$150,000,000
principal of the Class P participating shares; and iii) the Group
agreed to provide the guarantee in favour of the Class P
participating shareholders for the performance of the Haitong
Dynamic Fund with the maximum liability of US$103,000,000.
After the assessment on all the facts in the subscription
agreement, the Directors concluded that Haitong Dynamic
Fund created significance exposure to variability of returns
to the Group given that the expected return of the Haitong
Dynamic Fund reached 28% during the two years term on
the existing investment project and the Group also has to
compensate any potential loss to the Class P participating
shareholders up to US$103,000,000, approximately to 69% of
the principal contributed by Class P participating shareholders,
and concluded that the Group has control over the Haitong
Dynamic Fund under HKFRS 10 and the Group has consolidated
the assets and liabilities of the Haitong Dynamic Fund.

23.

EREREE @)

REE-_FT—XE+-A=+—H81t
N8 A - AN % B B Haitong Globals] 32
REBE B ASERENARE
50,000,000 7t ( #8574 £7387,700,000
B Jr) R EHaitong Dynamic FundzZ
50,000% REE £ B2 % 15 -

Haitong Dynamic Fund&J % 7~ 7 7 7 £8
BEERG  BIPHESHER)D RRESER
7 MPELERKRGHKRR AT HERNEER
BMERENBYS - HBEEESE
EERABIEGMN—MAG - PESER
19 #) 7K 4 /150,000,000 7T (HHE R4
1,163,100,000/% 7T ) ' iffHaitong Global
EEISREEER(BEB)ARRAA
H Haitong Dynamic Fund®J & & & E A »

EFETEUTEE NVAEEEERTL
Haitong Dynamic FundZ B T3 {E A TR
BEVE=F ([BERXADBITZERE
& RE B E %  Haitong Dynamic
Fundz AZHIREERE AT BEE
HEMEERE EHNEREEEE )
BERERZ AEBARNINEAE R
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HURIgR B (E - AP 2 E8%150,000,000%
TTARE 26.5%E E F B U A 5 i) 4 &
[ 7 & %t & = & {8 /2103,000,0005 7T 2
Haitong Dynamic FundZ fE#J A P4E £ 2
BRRIBEREF -RIEREHRBECMEE
1% » # Haitong Dynamic Fund#i8 %5
WEIEE 2 T8 BE =AW F R A E
B28% R ALK E IR/AMPHA L ER R E
% %103,000,0003 7T 2 (E ] Z 7E B 15 -
H69% A& APELHERFFTE EFR
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23.

24.

—RETZA=+—HIENEAR

LOAN NOTE RECEIVABLE (continued)

December 2016,
Haitong Dynamic Fund has entered into a subscription

During the nine months ended 31

agreement with the Borrower pursuant to which the
Borrower agreed to subscribe for loan note with a principal
amount of US$200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,550,800,000) at a fixed interest rate of 8% per annum
with a maturity period of 2 years. Arrangement fee and
advisory fee shall be charged on principal amount at 6%
upon issuance of the loan note and the thirteenth month
from the loan note issue date amounting to HK$93,051,000,
respectively.

Interest income and arrangement fee income amounted to
HK$3,739,000 and HK$3,059,000,
recognised in profit or loss during the nine months ended 31
December 2016.

respectively, have been

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

The amount represents investments in unlisted equity interest in
an entity established in the PRC and other investment funds in
the PRC.

The investments are measured at cost less impairment at
the end of the reporting period because the range of the
reasonable fair value estimates is so variable that the Directors
are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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24.

EWEREE &)
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N4 %8 /200,000,0003% T (HHE R Y
1,550,800,000/8 L) M E R EHE  EEF
FRE8% MMTERH 2 EARER
BEASNEEREZEBEBRTREABERER
BITHHBRAME T =EAEALE6%
S 4 %84593,051,0008 7T ©

HE-_Z—XE+-A=+—AH1LHA
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7 70 83,059,000 TTE R IBEE N HER ©
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25.

26.

INVENTORIES

Inventories represent goods held for resale.

FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016, the Group
acquired distressed debt assets through public tenders in the
PRC with collaterals, including plant and machinery, residential
buildings, industrial and commercial buildings and land use
rights in the PRC. Such distressed debt assets are accounted
for as financial assets designated as at fair value through profit
or loss according to their investment management strategy.
The changes in fair value of financial assets designated as at
fair value through profit or loss comprise realised gains from
disposal of distressed debt assets and their unrealised fair
value changes on the collaterals of distressed debt assets. Any
interest income arising from such assets are also included in the
changes in their fair values.

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of the distressed debt
assets was determined with reference to a valuation carried out
by JLL, an independent qualified professional valuer, amounting
to approximately HK$452,600,000 (31 March 2016: Nil).

25.

26.

rE
GEEREE TR

EERBAREFARSENS
MEE

HE-_ZT—R"F+-A=1+—HLEARA
A RXEEETEEBARBRKRENRSE
ERR (BRCNTFENKEE NS E
T IXNBERBTRLHERE) NN
REBEE-FRITREBEEREER
EERRMARBEEREALEF AR
SNEREE -EERBRAAEFNARS
MERBEENAABEEHEBRLETRE
BEENEBERREREEHTREBE
EEMmz RERAABEEER - (EM
HZFEEELENNEWATGHARRR
BEH-

WNZZE—RNFE+-F=+—H K24
BB EEGEMPEMTELOG
EMEEMNTREBEENALBENAR
452,600,000/ 7 (ZE—NF=A=+—
A &) -
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27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 27. BWERR
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
EY vy —E—xf
+=A=+-H =A=+-A
FERT FET
Accounts receivable arising from the HERERBRAEM -—KERES

sales of medical equipment and H FE U2 BR 31

other general goods 2,907 3,271
Accounts receivable arising from the BAERGEBEERNRBR

business of dealing in securities:

— cash clients —HerP 529 -

— margin clients —-BMERP 29,847 -
Accounts receivable arising from the HERBERIEBEE

business of dealing in futures and B L BR X -

options:

~ clients -5P 26,045 -

— clearing houses, brokers and dealers —#&ET - KL KT 5H 25,775 -

85,103 3,271
Impairment loss in relation to: IATIERRREEX:
Accounts receivable arising from the BAERGEGEEN BRI

business of dealing in securities:

— margin clients —-BMEEP (40) -
Total st 85,063 3,271
Secured FoRiigi 29,807 -
Unsecured AR 55,256 3,271
Total Bt 85,063 3,271

The Group allows a credit period of 30 to 120 days (31 March
2016: 30 to 90 days) to its customers in relation to sales of
medical equipment and other general goods depending on the
type of products sold.

176 Tai United Holdings Limited
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27.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from the
business of dealing in securities are two days after trade date
or at specific terms agreed with clearing houses, brokers and
dealers, and accounts receivable arising from the business of
dealing in futures and options are one day after trade date or at
specific terms agreed with clearing houses, brokers and dealers.

Accounts receivable from margin and cash clients arising from
the business of dealing in securities, futures and options are
repayable on demand subsequent to settlement date. No
ageing analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of the Directors,
the ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of the
nature of broking business.

The Group offsets certain accounts receivable and accounts
payable when the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the balance and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the balances simultaneously. Details are set
out in Note 46(d).

Before granting credit to customers, the Group reviews the
credit quality and defines credit limits by customers. Limits
attributed to customers are reviewed once a year and each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group maintains
a defined credit policy to assess the credit quality of the
customers and seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables so as to minimise credit risk. If there
are any shortfall between fair value of the collateral pledged
by the margin clients and the outstanding balances of accounts
receivable arising from the business of dealing in securities,
futures and options, the Group will exercise its rights to request
the immediate repayments from respective clients and the
clients” collateral can be sold at the Group’s discretion to settle
any outstanding balances.

27.

FEWBRFR (&)

BEERSERELCRNERZEERS
RPARMRLIREEERN BE RS
Az ABHEGRME MBELRMES
BEEBEEZRUERZEEHRTFHE
R HILEEER BERXFHZ

HB R IRRME

REERR BEEES HERBRER
EEZREBERREEFPRFBRER
BE-ERRLEB2HE EEZRRE
DA M IME (B - B0 R EE B AR

AEBBREBREER 2R RN
TTHER Hit g E T RUER R R B
R MABRBNFRTAGEE  HFAK
IR - FHBHNMIEE46(d)

RAFEFPREEERN AEESFGEEP
ZEREERMAEGEHR -BTEFPZ
HREFRI-—AREREFPHERRE
EHIR - REERE R EEEBE AR
EPZEEEARLSKHERARERELES
ERBTEE USEERARRERK-
HEEEFPMEMZERRZARERE
BERy HERMERBELZHAREER
USRS EHRZBREERNEZRE AEEH
TEEENEREHETPARENR ME
FzERmA mARERBHENENET
EICENCEPa ]
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27.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Account receivable due from margin clients are secured by
the pledge of customers’ securities as collateral with fair
value of HK$22,917,000 as at 31 December 2016 and bear
interest with reference to Hong Kong dollar prime rate with
spread. The clients’ listed securities can be sold at the Group's
discretion to settle any margin call requirements imposed by
their respective securities transactions. The Group is able to
use client’s securities up to the amount of 140% of the loans
to margin clients as collateral of the Group’s borrowings (with
client’s consent). If the fair value of the collateral pledged by
the margin clients is less than the outstanding balances of
accounts receivable, the Group will exercise its rights to request
the immediate repayments from respective margin client.

The Group assesses at each of the reporting period end
whether there is objective evidences that account receivables
are impaired. The Group has a policy for determining
the allowance for bad and doubtful debts based on the
evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis of accounts
and on management’s judgement, including the current
creditworthiness, collateral and the past collection history
of each clients/customers. For accounts receivable due from
margin clients and cash clients which are past due but not
impaired as at 31 December 2016, the fair value of each
client’s listed securities is higher than the carrying amount of
each individual loan to margin client and cash clients in this
category or with substantial settlement after the reporting
period. Accounts receivable due from margin clients and cash
clients of approximately HK$40,000 which are fully impaired
as the fair value of client’'s pledged listed securities is lower
than the carrying amount of each individual loan and without
substantial settlement after the reporting period. The Group
does not hold any collateral over the balances arising from the
sales of medical equipment and other general goods.

No ageing analysis for the accounts receivable arising from
the business of dealing in securities, futures and options as in
the opinion of the Directors, the ageing analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of broking business.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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27.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of accounts receivable
presented at the end of the reporting period, based on the
invoice dates in relation to sale of medical equipment and other
general goods which approximated the respective revenue
recognition dates:

27.

FEWBRFR (&)

NTARHRERRIZEAHEERRE N
Hit—REmEENEZEH (EE5EHK
AWERBHRE) 270 RBRFK KK D
1 :

31 December 2016 31 March 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

—E-REF T RF

+=ZBA=+—H =A=+—H

FTERT FET

Within 30 days 30K 1A 631 636
31 - 90 days 31F90K 1,207 768
91 - 120 days 91£120K 185 186
Over 120 days 120K BA 884 1,681
2,907 3,271

Included in the Group’s accounts receivable are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$78,980,000 (31 March 2016:
HK$1,867,000) which are past due at the end of the reporting
period but not considered as impaired. The aged analysis of
accounts receivable arising from the sales of medical equipment
and other general goods which are past due but not impaired is

& E fE W AR BB 15 48 BRE 1B78,980,000
Br(ZE2E—R"F=ZA=Z+—8:
1,867,000/ 7T ) 2 RS BARE @ B I
RWRARBEZERER - HEEERE
NMEM—B R mEE BRI RRE
2B R T T

as follow:
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$’000 HK$ 000
—EBE—XRE —T—REF
+=A=+—H =ZA=+—H
FERT FHT
91 - 120 days 91£120K - 186
Over 120 days 120K BA 884 1,681
884 1,867

Majority of the accounts receivable arising from the sales of
medical equipment and other general goods that are neither
past due nor impaired have no default repayment history and
there has not been a significant change in credit quality.

REBRIFEBRRBLEM —RBmME
A 2 BR AR 380 HA 7 48R OBl B 2 8 MR B SR £ R
BENCHREEEERYEESEAE
o
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27. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 27. FEWBR (#)
Movements in the impairment allowance for bad and doubtful REBERBEBREZSHOT
debts are as follows:
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2015 and 1 April 2016 RZE-—RAFNA—ARK
—E-RFHEA—H -
Impairment losses recognised on receivables BB AR SRR 2B BB K 40
At 31 December 2016 R-ZT—RF+-_A=+—H 40

28.

In determining the recoverability of the accounts receivable,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the
accounts receivable from the date credit was initially granted
up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is
limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated.
Accordingly, the Directors believe that no further impairment
for bad and doubtful debts is required given the substantial
settlement from accounts receivable after the reporting
period and the certain accounts receivable amounting to
approximately HK$26,404,000 has been undertaken by the
former shareholder of Hui Kai Holdings Limited in accordance
the term of the Hui Kai Holdings Acquisition.

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

28.

RETERKEROATKE R AEES
EZEEEARLEEZAHREERER
LR ANEREREEEZ 2 (F A&
H-ARELPERERARYERY 58
%EPH CHR B EERA ERE
WERNREHEELEEHEMNRY
26404000@752%%@@% X E B3 BT AR
RIEYEBRERARRIEEIIZRILES
TH 2 A AE B AR RZRED
HE—BRE

4
N
A
it
g
o5
i

Held-for-trading investments as at 31 December 2016 and 31 RZE—RFF+ZA=+—HEZZ—RX
March 2016 represented equity securities as follows: FZA=+—"H BEEEREEIATR
R H

31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HKS$’000 HK$'000
EY vy X
+=A=+-8 =A=+-A
FHR TR

Listed equity securities: ETRRAE
—in Hong Kong —RAE 651,856 49,600
— in the PRC — R E - 711,013
651,856 760,613

The fair values of the held-for-trading investments were
determined based on the quoted market bid prices available on
the relevant exchanges.
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29. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 29. e FEANREBREMERR

RECEIVABLES =]
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—®_Af B~
+=A=+-—-R =A=+—8
FET FAT
Refundable deposits paid for potential RWBEBFEEE N 2 FHES
acquisitions (Note a) (FfizEa) 315,225 48,981
Deposits paid for acquisition of RBEBTNREBEE
distressed debt assets BEffziEe 44,656 -
Rental and other deposits HehHiize 16,559 5,120
Interest receivable JE U F) B 7,521 -
Other receivables E fth pE W 3008 21,864 2,322
Prepayments B RIE 4,642 1,326
410,467 57,749
Less: Deposits paid for potential WD ERIERDEEERET
acquisitions classified under ZEBEEWEEEENZ
non-current assets (Note b) % (M3Eb) = (10,000)
410,467 47,749
Notes: B E -
(a) The amount as at 31 December 2016 represents a refundable (a) RZE—XRF+_A=+—HZE I

RBE_Z—A"F+ZA=+—HL
JUE B A s & £ B Riverbank House
Unit Trust ([Riverbank |) 2 2 0 % 4
MEf—ZEEEMZFHIES
Riverbankz = 2 & & R 7 95-103
Upper Thames Street, London EC42 —
BY¥ - EERAER_T—RFTA
BIEZWESE MEEZSEERZ
T—+E-ARETAKE Ao

deposit paid to a UK lawyer during the nine months ended
31 December 2016 in relation to a potential acquisition
of an entire equity interest of Riverbank House Unit Trust
("Riverbank”). The principal asset of the Riverbank is a property
located at 95-103 Upper Thames Street, London EC4. The
Directors decided to terminate the acquisition in December
2016 and the amount was subsequently returned to the Group
in January 2017 and therefore are classified as current asset.

ZeBEERENZERKBERIN 27
Hize ZeBEERESZERERER
ST B AR E BD 0 (B - A IS E B
F148(ii) ©

(b) The amount represents a refundable deposit paid for the Hui (b)
Kai Holdings Acquisition and the amount has been utilised to
settle part of the consideration upon completion of the Hui Kai
Holdings Acquisition. Details are set out in Note 48(ii).
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30.

31.

FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE CONTRACT

As at 31 December 2016, the amount represents the fair
value change on the outstanding foreign currency forward
contracts related to the purchase of RMB and the sale of US$
at contract rates ranging from US$6.7178 to US$7.0920 per
RMB with future maturity dates ranging from 14 June 2017
to 17 November 2017 at an aggregate notional amount of
approximately US$102,954,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$798,305,000. The financial derivative contract was
measured at fair value, with net fair value loss charged to the
profit or loss in current period.

As at 31 March 2016, the amount represents the fair value
change on an undelivered metal-related contract amounting to
US$9,712,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$75,266,000).
The financial derivative contract was measured at fair value,
with net fair value gain credited to the profit or loss in prior
year. The contract was subsequently closed and delivered on 6
April 2016.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED
BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

Pledged bank deposits

The pledged bank deposits represent bank deposits placed
in a bank account and carried no interest which is restricted
for settling a secured bank borrowing with a carrying value
of approximately HK$573,000,000 and will be released upon
the full settlement of the secured bank borrowing and were
therefore classified as non-current assets.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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RZZE—RF+_A=+—H ZoEHE
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REBEBENTF -_Z—+EXA+HNAE
ZE—tF+—A+ttH BEEREAY
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31. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED 31. BEFRITERZRHBRT
BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND FRBIOTHEBRRRE (@)
CASH (continued)

Restricted bank deposits ZRHEEBITER
The restricted bank deposits represent bank deposits restricted ZRHBITFRIERLE TIRITREIZEIT
by certain bank to secure the issuance of letters of credit in FRC-LEREEHEEcBHABERZ
relation to the purchase of metal-related products. The deposits ERBZB-BRAFFIZNT1.40%%21.81%
carrying fixed interest ranged from 1.40% to 1.81% per ZEEFEFEFS -2 E e REH
annum. The entire amount will be released upon the settlement RETZEARNERNEABEERR
of the letters of credit within twelve months from the end of o ARBEE-
the reporting period and are therefore classified as current
assets.
Bank balances and cash RITERRES
The bank balances and time deposits carry interest at market RITHEBRREFHERIZTENF0.1%
rates which range from 0.1% to 1.65% (31 March 2016: 21.65% (ZE—-—XRF=A=+—8:
0.02% to 2.00%) per annum. 0.02%ZE2.00% ) 2 TS F|EEH & o
32. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES 32. ENRRRENSERE
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-—x% EF WAy
+=ZBA=+—H =A=+—H
FHET FET
Accounts payable arising from the business ~ FEHFX FEBKELR
of dealing in securities: FEATBR R
— clearing house, brokers and dealers —HEF RERRS5E 26,022 -
— cash clients —-BaEF 5,582 -
— margin clients —RMEEF 48,634 -

Accounts payable to clients arising from the HIEREIERT HEBKELN
business of dealing in futures and options FET & P B BRI 40,340 -

Bills payable arising from the purchase of EEAttERREEHEER
petrochemical products and metal-related EENENER
products 790,013 -

910,591 -
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32.

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES
(Continued)

The credit period on of bills payable arising from the purchase
of petrochemical products and metal-related products is 365
days.

The settlement terms of accounts payable arising from the
business of dealing in securities are two days after trade date or
at specific terms agreed with clearing houses. Accounts payable
to margin clients and cash clients are repayable on demand. No
ageing analysis for accounts payable arising from the business
of dealing in securities is disclosed as in the opinion of the
Directors, the ageing analysis does not give additional value in
view of the nature of business of securities margin financing.

Accounts payable to clients arising from the business of dealing
in futures and options are cash deposits received from clients
for their trading of these contracts. The required cash deposits
are repayable upon the closure of the corresponding futures
and options position. The excess of the outstanding amounts
over the required cash deposits stipulated are repayable to
clients on demand. No ageing analysis for accounts payable
to client arising from the business of dealing in futures and
options is disclosed as in the opinion of the Directors, the
ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of the
nature of these businesses.
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32. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES 32.

(Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of bills payables arising from
the purchase of petrochemical products and metal-related
products based on the bills issuance dates at the end of the
reporting period:

ENERERRESERE @)

UTARREHREZEREHARRZ7H
BEALERREBHEBEREENEN
SR IRE DT

31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-REF T RF
+=A=+-8 ZA=+-8
FET FET
31 - 90 days 31%90H 294,989 -
91 - 150 days 912 150H 405,153 -
More than 151 days but within 1 year HBiEIS1BERIER 89,871 -
790,013 -
33. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER 33. EfEERHEMENSRIE
PAYABLES
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—®-_x% BT WAy
+=A=+—8H =A=+—H
FE&T FAT
Consideration payable in relation to FIESNIZERKEEIE

Hui Kai Holdings Acquisition (7E % B M sE48(i))

(as defined in Note 48(ii)) ERRE 62,877 -
Accrued expenses R 39,130 2,121
Other payables Hfh FE A FRIE 23,356 277
Rental income receipt in advance FEWAES WA 4,579 -
Interest payable FEAFI 2 10,472 -
Other tax payable H b TR 10,952 -

151,366 2,398

RMEZRERA T
Sairrg 100
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34. BORROWINGS

—REFZA=t+—HIEAER

34, BE

31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
—®-—Af —E—xfE
+=B=+-8 =A=+-8
FERT FET
Secured variable-rate bank borrowing BEMFEBRITEE
(Note a) (Ktzta) 1,598,250 -
Less: loan raising costs B EREEKAR (8.865) -
1,589,385 -
Margin financing (Note b) RELME (HEb) 310,590 40,245
Vendor financing loan (Note c) EFmMEER (MiEc) 31,121 -
1,931,096 40,245
Notes: B 5
(a) As at 31 December 2016, the variable-rate bank borrowings of (a) RZZE—RF+-_A=+—0 ' FEiR
approximately HK$1,098,250,000 carried interest at the London 1T E 491,098,250,000% T 1% fm iR
Interbank Offered Rates (“LIBOR”) plus a margin of 1.8% to TRIZFRER [RBBITRAEFREER])
2.65% per annum, which the effective interest rates are ranged N1.8%=E2.65% 2 FFEFHE  HER
from 2.39% to 3.01% per annum. The remaining variable-rate FRETINF2.39%E3.01% 8 F)F
borrowing of approximately HK$500,000,000 carried interest B & E #)500,000,0007% 7T i2 & B R1T
at the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rates (“HIBOR") plus a BREFER([EBBRITRERSE])
margin of 2.8% carried per annum, which the effective interest n2.8% 2 FFEHE  HERFANER
rate is 3.36% per annum. 3.36% °
(b) The margin financing was arranged with securities brokers (b) RECMENHEFHEL (RBLE=
which are independent third parties. As at 31 December E)ﬁ?ﬁﬁf}ﬁ(‘i%ﬁ NFE+ZRAR=+—
2016, the variable-rate margin financing of approximately A 2R RELMAAL302,820,000
HK$302,820,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) carried interest at BLT(ZE—XREZA=Z+—8:
the Hong Kong banks' prime rate minus a margin of 2.8% B)RBEBRTEREENER2.8% 2
per annum and repayable on demand. The effective interest iﬂf\aﬁél/g& kB E °,§J5’R¢
rate is 2.45% per annum. The remaining fixed rate margin R T B2.45% -8 T 5E %1 BemE
financing of approximately HK$7,770,000 (31 March 2016: #77,770,0008 T (=& /\i A
HK$40,245,000), carried at effective interest rates ranging from =+ —H 40,245,000 L) IR E R F
4.0% t0 6.7% (31 March 2016: 5.0% to 6.0%) per annum and FENFA40%E6.7% (ZFE—RFE=
repayable on demand. A=+—H:5.0%%6.0% )it B A
RERER
() As at 31 December 2016, the vendor financing loan was (c) RZZE—RF+-_A=+—8 HEE=E

arranged in relation to the purchase of distressed debt assets,

carried at effective interest rate at 10.5% per annum and

repayable within one year.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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34. BORROWINGS (continued)

—R"E+ZA=+—HIEA@EA

34, BE (@)

35.

Details of charges over the borrowings are disclosed in Note 50.

EEZEWFEBRER

M 7E50 o

31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-REF —E-REF
+=A=+-A =A=+-H
FHERT FET
The carrying amounts of the above LHEEMEREZSR
borrowings are within one year (Note) F—FANEE () 564,141 -
The carrying amount of secured bank BE-—IEREREXEERN
borrowings that contains a repayment FIE IR RABEE) D
on demand clause (shown under current EEFEENERAEE
liabilities) but contractually repayable as & KB TR H
follows: BiE:
Within one year —F R 393,955 40,245
More than one year, but not exceeding —FLAE - BTEB
two years M F 105,969 -
More than two years, but not exceeding MELA - BTHEE
three years =4 317,906 -
More than three years, but not exceeding ZFAE-BTHER
four years s 549,125 -
1,366,955 40,245
1,931,096 40,245
Less: Amounts due within one year shown B AE— FE AR BN &
under current liabilities MBBENSE (1,931,096) (40,245)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities  %|/R AIEREBEHN S HE - -
Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set M BAREDRBEERGHARNTEEE
out in the loan agreements. RE R E -
AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING 35. ENRAEZERARFIE
COMPANY
The amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable on ENREERARFIERBEEMR 28K
demand. ﬁ?%‘ﬂéﬁ

KMERERAT
T -RFFR
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36. LOAN NOTES 36. ERE
HK$'000
FAT
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 1 April 2015 and 2016 RZE—AER-ZT—R"FNA—H
Loan notes issued FBITERRER 1,395,000
Loss on initial recognition of loan notes A ERERRIR 2518 440
Less: transaction costs incurred WTEEZRSKA (13,950)
Interest expense charged during the period BRI E 2 T B 30,626
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE+ZA=+—H 1,412,116

On 28 September 2016, the Company entered into the
Loan Notes Subscription Agreement with the Investors
pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to
issue, and the Investors conditionally agreed to subscribe
for, the Loan Notes in the aggregate principal amount of not
more than US$180,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,395,000,000) with an initial term of 2 years from the
date of issue, which may be extended for a further term of
one year by the Company with the consent of the Loan Notes
Holders. The Loan Notes were fully subscribed by the Investors
on 30 September 2016.

Pursuant to the Loan Notes Subscription Agreement, in
consideration of the subscription of the Loan Notes by the
Investors, the Company conditionally agreed to grant the
warrants to the Investors. The Warrant Holders can subscribe
for up to 279,000,000 shares of the Company at an initial
warrant shares subscription price of HK$1.0 per warrant share
during the warrants subscription period. The warrant shares
subscription price is subject to adjustment according to the
terms and conditions of the warrants instrument.

If Loan Notes Holders are also Warrant Holders, such Loan
Notes Holders shall have the option to elect to use all or part
of the outstanding principal amount of the Loan Notes held by
such Loan Notes Holders to set off the relevant exercise moneys
payable upon the exercise of the warrants held by such Loan
Notes Holders. If the Loan Notes have not been converted, they
will be redeemed by the Company at maturity.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

RZTE—R"FALAZ+NB ARFEE
E%%Ti%%%‘i%ﬁwﬁ%m - 1 A N/N
AAERKTFRERTHIREEEKGERER
E%$$%@§ET\;E’$180,000 000% 7T (4E%
M #91,395,000,000/8 7T) Z EREHE - ¥)
BEIR ARTHYRETABME  AJ@A
'AET%%%E—%FﬁﬁAﬁ‘%&%E—iEE
—F - BRERERN_T—RFNLA=T
HEREEBERE-

REEREERERZ FAREERE
EREBCRE ARG BKGERERE
FTHREERBREE BREREZFEARR
BREFRERANZNBRREERNR
BEORABREZIRMCI.0BILRERS
279,000,000% A A &I 15 - iR I8 RE B
R0 B 1] AR R SR AR AR B SR 2 IR R I AR

A-
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ElS

FEBRBATSRBEESEAA
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DAREEASEAEENZEERE
BB AR EREITEREN A
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z—"F+=-A=+—HI @A

36.

LOAN NOTES (continued)

The Loan Notes bear interest at the rate of 5% fixed coupon
rate per annum calculated by reference to the principal amount
thereof and payable semi-annually in arrears on 30 September
and 31 March of each year, commencing with the first
interest payment date falling on 31 March 2017. Each warrant
outstanding as at the last day of its Warrants Subscription
Period (as defined in the announcement dated 28 September
2016) shall be redeemed by the Company on the last day
of its Warrants Subscription Period at the redemption price
which shall be an amount that will yield a 15% return on the
initial subscription price paid for the Loan Notes per annum
calculated from the Loan Notes closing date. The warrants shall
be transferable by the Warrant Holders in whole amounts or
integral multiples of the warrant shares subscription price.

Should there are no warrants being granted by the date falling
six calendar months after the first closing date of the Loan
Notes, or any other date as agreed in writing between the
Loan Notes Holders and the Company (the “Warrants Long
Stop Date”) (i.e. 30 March 2017), in accordance to the Loan
Notes Subscription Agreement, the Loan Notes Holders can
exercise early redemption rights by giving a written notice of
early redemption to the Company and all or any of the Loan
Notes held by such Loan Notes Holders are immediately due
and repayable at a redemption price (the “No Warrant Early
Redemption Price”).

The No Warrant Early Redemption Price shall be the amount
equivalent to the sum of (i) the outstanding principal amount
of the Loan Notes to be redeemed by such Loan Notes Holders;
(ii) unpaid interest accrued on the Loan Notes from the issue
date to (and including) the date of full payment of the No
Warrant Early Redemption Price; (iii) unpaid default interest (if
any) accrued on the Loan Notes; (iv) such amount as would
result in an internal rate of return of 9.1% per annum on
the outstanding principal amount of the Loan Notes to be
redeemed from the issue date to (and including) the date of
full payment of the No Warrant Early Redemption Price; and (v)
all other outstanding amounts payable by the Company to the
Loan Notes Holders under the other transaction documents.

36.

EREE @)

ERZBERTFS%ETEEH R 2 Fx
AR (2ZHEASETHE) BEFIH
B —x RBFHLA=ZFTAK=A
=t+—B%Xf BZE—+HF=A=1+—
AE@EMEBREI R EERE
H(EERBAHPA-_ZT—FLA=-TN
AzRE)RE—BEMARETHEZRR
EEEARNARNRREZRERRE —
AUABREER mMERERAENGE
REBRIMZ0RREEEERZERE
AHREEEFBEL15%OH 5
RARHEE O] BRI ERT A A AR R R
BORBEZ 2B ERBHEEHE-

R EEERRERE A RRHEEA
ZBERERREFEARRRBEHRE
ZEMEMAR([REREREREHE LR
Bl T —+F=A=1H)WERIE
EXZBERBHRROABREE AER
REFEATEBAARAEHREERED
ZEMBATEREMBOERBHRERE
BRAEAFFBEZMABRETAERZERE
B IR O(E ([ FER R E R R E
B ER-

AEERBEFREEERERESR T
FEEZM: (VEBEFRERFBAREL
ERZRCAEEASE: (\BEREES
BITAREERE I AR HRREE
REELCEASR (BEEA) NETREF
B (EREBRNETRTENNE (1
) ((WVETELRERZEZRAEERS
HERTHRREEREINAELRRE
EFRFELQEAH (BFEER)KRETF
91%MANHEHREFE 2 BHRESEE - (V)
RIEE MR 5 X AR R EN TEREE
BHEARNEEMAREERE-
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36. LOAN NOTES (continued)

In accordance with the Loan Notes Subscription Agreement,
the Group pledged all the shares of two wholly-owned
subsidiaries, namely, Best Future Investments Limited and
Hongrong Financial Holding (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd to a security
agent, Songhua Investment Holding Limited who held the
equity interests on behalf of the Investors as collaterals. The
collaterals will be discharged when the net assets value of
the Group exceeds HK$3,000,000,000 and debt ratio not
exceeding 200%. The Loan Notes were guaranteed by the
ultimate holding company of the Company, Mr. Chua and his
wholly-owned company. As at 31 December 2016, the above
said conditions are fully satisfied and the Charges are released.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the issuance of Loan
Notes amounting to HK$13,950,000 are included in the
carrying amount of the Loan Notes and amortised over the
period of the Loan Notes using the effective interest method.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has not yet fulfilled
all the substantive conditions precedent for granting the
warrants to the Loan Notes Holders pursuant to the Loan Notes
Subscription Agreement, the Directors considered that the
probability of fulfilling all substantive conditions and issuing
the warrants within the Warrants Long Stop Date is remote.
Subsequent to the reporting period, the management of the
Group has negotiated with the Loan Notes Holders for not
granting any warrants and the Loan Notes Holders agreed to
exercise their rights to demand for immediate repayment of
the Notes at No Warrant Early Redemption Price at the end
of Warrant Long Stop Date, which is 30 March 2017 and
therefore, considering the facts above, the Loan Notes would
be accounted for as a straight bond carried at 9.1% interest
per annum and repayable on 30 March 2017. The fair value of
the Loan Notes are measured based on the present value of the
redemption amount at maturity with reference to a valuation
report carried out by an independent qualified professional
valuer, JLL, on the Loan Notes subscription date (i.e. 30
September 2016).

Subsequent to the initial recognition, the Loan Notes were
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method
and the effective interest rate of the Loan Notes is 9.1% per
annum.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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BEREE (@)

BEERZEBERE DR REEREFR
#Songhua Investment Holding Limited&
AREE2EMB AR (AEFREBRA
AIREBMEEER (RINEBRAR) 22
R ERREBRREEERFREN
ERERR ERDERAEEBZEETF
{E 8 383,000,000,0007% 7T & & & b &
HiB200%HE T UABRER - EREEHR AR
Al mEIERAR BEREREEENT
EER-RZT—XR"F+ZA=+—08"
UGB EREUER - W AR KT -

BTEREBREEEGLHER S KA
13,950,000 Tt A\BERZHEEELE
BEBRF AR ERZIRREITHE -

RZZE—RFE+/A=+—H ARAIL
BEREBRERZEBEREMEANEREZRRS
EARHRREZSENMEEL L RK
" BEEZRE EKMBBEELAMEERR
R EFE A LA HANEITRREE 2
AIgE MR E ) - RIS - AEEEE
BEHERERIFEARTE D EARS
BERETED MEXREBEREARBER
RREEREERHILAR (BT —+F=
A=+ H)&REITEEERNZERKIZRK
ERRERRFELEANNEEERE B
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36.

37.

38.

39.

—A"E+ZA=+—HIEAER

LOAN NOTES (continued)

Details of the issue of the Loan Notes were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 29 September 2016.

LOANS FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

interest bearing at 4.5% per
annum and repayable within eighteen months since the draw

The amounts were unsecured,

down date. The entire amounts have been fully settled during
the nine months ended 31 December 2016.

LOAN FROM A FELLOW SUBSIDIARY

As at 31 December 2016, the loan from a fellow subsidiary,
Tai He Financial Group Limited, with carrying amount of
HK$171,444,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) is unsecured,
bearing at 4.75% per annum, repayable on 28 December 2018
and denominated in RMB. The loan is measured at amortised
cost, based on the present value of the estimated future cash

interest

outflow discounted using the effective interest rate of 7% per
annum and the initial fair value adjustment on loan from a
fellow subsidiary is recognised as deemed capital contribution.

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES -
INTEREST IN CONSOLIDATED
STRUCTURED ENTITY

As disclosed in Note 23, the Group had consolidated an
investment fund structured entity. For the investment fund
where the Group involves as investor, the Group assesses
whether the investment it held creates exposure to variability of
returns from the activities of the investment fund that is of such
significance and the guarantee given to the other investors that
it indicates that the Group is a principal.

Third-party interest in consolidated structured entity consist
of third-party shareholder’s interest in consolidated structured
entity which are reflected as a liability since they can be put
back to the Group for cash. The realisation of net assets
attributable to third-party shareholder’s interest in consolidated
structured entity cannot be predicted with accuracy since these
represent the interest of third-party shareholder in consolidated
investment fund that are subject to the actions of third-party
shareholder.

36.

37.

38.

39.

EREE #)
%

FTERZEBRZFBERARAR SR
—RNENAZTABZAER-

BARIZER

ZAEAEEIR  RAS% 2 FRERFER
BHIERBHET T N\BAARNEE -FTH
HEEREBE=-Z—X"F+=-A=+—H
IENBEARBELES-

[ Z Fff B 1 B 2 & K

R-E—RE+_A=+—H kKB
AEMBATANMESREBRBR AT IR
H{EA171,444,000%870 (ZE—X F=H
=T —H:E\E)NERAEMIF 1L475%
ZFEMEHE -BAR_ZE—N\F+=A
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39. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES - 39. HtERBAG - RESHE
INTEREST IN CONSOLIDATED BHER ER &)
STRUCTURED ENTITY (Continued)

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016, profit HEZT—XR"F+ZA=+—81EIEA
attributable to the third party’s interest of approximately of HE - F=7REaHEEEERE R
HK$2,486,000 (year ended 31 March 2016: Nil) in consolidated JE(REF492,486,0008 7T (BE T —X
structured entity is presented in other (losses) gain in the F=ZA=F+—ALEFE E)REEBHEX
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the third party’s AEA (E1E) W= £§‘J RRZFE—RF
interest in consolidated structured entity, including the principal +ZA=+—H BE=ZFREEHEHEE
and profit shared from the investment fund structured entity, B B IEs Tﬁ MHERBEREESZA
amounted to approximately HK$1,165,586,000 (31 March &5 RO F491,165,586,000/8 7T (=
2016: Nil) as at 31 December 2016 are included in other non- EZ—XRFZA=+—H: E)B:t A\&HAE
current liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial WK mRAEMIERDEE-
position.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's FEAEED A EBEEER B ER
consolidated structured entity is set out below. The summarised BEALE A T 3o T30 7 B 75 & R i F5 1R
financial information below represents amounts shown in the BEAVBEREENRR B S HERIT
consolidated structure entity’s financial statements prepared in BRI BREAMTEE-

accordance with HKFRSs.

31 December 2016

HK$'000

—E—RE

t=A=t+—8H

FHET

Current assets MENVE E 98,771

Non-current assets EREBEE 1,460,808

Current liabilities mBEE 73,977
The above amounts of assets and MEENAGESEBRENTSE:

liabilities include the following:

Cash and cash equivalent RehFERREER 94,987

Loan note receivable JEE R E R 1,460,808

Dividend payable JFE TR 2 73,663

192 Tai United Holdings Limited
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39.

40.

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES -
INTEREST IN CONSOLIDATED
STRUCTURED ENTITY (continued)

39. HittFERBRE-REEHE

BUHERERS @)

Nine months
ended

31 December 2016
HK$’000
BE-_Z—X&§
+=A=+—-H1
hEA

FERT

Revenue for the period B =

Profit and total comprehensive income for the period Ef P& F1| & 2 M UL

40. EEHIBEEE

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current period and prior
year:

Revaluation of
financial assets

= B R 5,451

6,798

ABEE L —FEERRY T EBEHE
BERAEBHENT

Revaluation of

designated as at Revaluation of investment
FVTPL mining rights properties Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EfiEE AR
AREFABEER
ZEBEE EffREE ERRENE @it
FHT FAT Tt FHET
At 1 April 2015 RZZE—RFENA—H - 147,429 - 147,429
Credit to profit or loss for the year i AERIEZH
(Note 11) (HaE11) - (54,271) - (54,271)
At 31 March 2016 and RZE—RF=A
1 April 2016 Jr A&
T-RFMA—A - 93,158 - 93,158
Exchange realignment EELEH% (48) - (206) (254)
Charge to profit or loss for ME#HNER
the period (Note 11) (FE&E11) 8,041 - 144,508 152,549
At 31 December 2016 R-ZZE-X"E+=H
=+—H 7,993 93,158 144,302 245,453

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$144,494,000 (31 March 2016:
HK$43,585,000) available for offset against future profits
subject to approval from the relevant tax authority. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of such tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$81,288,000 (31 March
2016: nil) that will expire from 2017 to 2021. Other losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

mi&%,ﬁﬂﬂiﬁﬁﬁzxﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁgﬂé #
144,494,000567C ( = F /\E A=+—
H :43,585,000/ L) FESBEEHK B
[F 2% AR & F - AR R AR
FRIR 2 e TR - BRI BBt 2 SR IE
EIEEREERIBEE- ﬁ)\ﬂiﬁﬁmﬁﬁ
518 2 51881,288,000/8 7L (— T — N &
“A=t+t—HB:E®BEa = —tFEZ
T FlEme Kt BEr EREEE

AMERERAT
T -RFFR
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40.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the Group's
subsidiaries in the PRC from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary difference
attributable to the retained profits earned by the subsidiaries
in the PRC amounting to approximately HK$152,128,000 as
at 31 December 2016 (31 March 2016: HK$23,562,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Under the Provisional Regulations of LAT ( {FF#E AR HEFEH
T ERE/TIEG) ) effective on 1 January 1994, and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT ( (i ZE A R HFE L i35 E T L1715 0
EiEAIA]) ) effective from 27 January 1995, all income from
the sale or transfer of state-owned land use rights, buildings
and their attached facilities in the PRC is subject to LAT at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the appreciation
value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures in relation to the gains arising from sales of
properties in the PRC effective from 1 January 2004.

Tai United Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2016

40. EEHRIBEEE (&)
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BEAEGEREZHEAIRETEHRIELY
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41. SHARE CAPITAL 41. IRA
Number of shares Share capital
‘000 HK$'000
RO EE B
F & FHET
Authorised ordinary shares at % &}£0.058 T2
HK$0.05 per share EEESBER
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 R -Z—FHEMA—H =T Tiz
and 31 December 2016 =t+—RAK=F /\fﬁﬂ- A=+— 34,566,667 1,728,333
Issued and fully paid ordinary ZER0.05B T 2B TR
shares at HK$0.05 per share BEEBER
At 1 April 2015 R-ZE—RAFWMNA—H 1,045,913 52,296
Placement of new shares on RZE—RAFEARNBRENRMN
6 July 2015 (Note a) (Fg3Ea) 205,000 10,249
Subscription of new shares on RZE—RAF+—A=THREFRHD
30 November 2015 (Note b) (HMizEb) 250,180 12,509
At 1 April 2016 R-ZT—XEmMA—H 1,501,093 75,054
Subscription of new shares R RGN
(Note ©) (MizEc) 3,002,185 150,110
Placement of new shares (Note d) Ee&E 5Bk (Mi3Ed) 300,000 15,000
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RFE+ZA=+—H 4,803,278 240,164
Authorised preference shares ZERR0.058B T2
at HK$0.05 per share EEBER
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 RAZZ—AFWHA—H ZZET— X F=A
and 31 December 2016 =+—HEkZZE—R"E+=ZA=+—H 5,433,333 271,666
Issued and fully paid RERIETZEETR
preference shares at MEBEER
HK$0.05 per share
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016  RZ-T—HAFMHA—H ZT—RF=H
and 31 December 2016 =t+t—BARkZT—AR"F+tZA=+—H - -
Notes: ii=s
(a) On 13 June 2015, the Company and a placing agent entered (a) RZE—RAFNA+=B AR aH

into a placing agreement pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to place a maximum of 205,000,000
placing shares to independent investors at a price of HK$0.88
per share. On 6 July 2015, the conditions set out on the placing
agreement have been fulfilled and the placing was completed.
The net proceeds derived from the placing amounted to
approximately HK$177,698,000 and resulted in the increase
in share capital of HK$10,249,000 and share premium of
approximately HK$170,150,000, net of transaction costs of
approximately HK$2,701,000.

—ERERBI VRS HE Kt
RRABEEBRHRERTR0SET
2 {B1& R & 5 %£205,000,000/% it & i%
NIBIUKREE-R_T—HAFtA
NH ST 2 R R EX
REEFHEERK -BEFHMEN
B F 54 A177,698,0005% 7T i B 5
Ji% 7K 3 5110,249,00058 JT & f% 15 % &
#9170,150,000/%8 7T IBR X 5 AL AN 49
2,701,000/ 7T °

AMERERAT
T -RFFR
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41. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 41. B (#)

Notes: (Continued) Wisx: (48)

(b) On 11 November 2015, the Company and a subscriber entered (b) RZE—RAF+—A+—HB &AAQ7A
into a subscription agreement pursuant to which the Company EREALRERE B AA
has conditionally agreed to allot and issue 250,180,000 new AEBKRERERFR066ETTZE

shares to the subscriber at a price of HK$0.66 per share. The
completion of the subscription was took place on 30 November
2015 with net proceeds of approximately HK$165,119,000
and resulted in the increase in share capital of HK$12,509,000
and share premium of approximately HK$153,211,000, net of
transaction costs of approximately HK$601,000.

On 1 September 2016, the Company entered into an
underwriting agreement, pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to allot and issue 3,002,184,872
Rights Shares at the subscription price of HK$1.00 per Rights
Shares on the basis of two Rights Shares for every one
existing ordinary share of the Company held on 21 October
2016 (the "Subscription”). The subscription was completed
on 7 November 2016 with net proceeds of approximately
HK$2,991,242,000 and resulted in the increase in share capital
of HK$150,110,000 and share premium of approximately
HK$2,852,075,000, net of transaction costs of approximately
HK$10,943,000.

On 15 December 2016, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a Placing Agent whereby the Company agreed
to place, through the Placing Agent, 300,000,000 new shares
of the Company to no less than six placees at a price of HK$1.2
per share. The Placement was completed on 30 December
2016 with net proceeds of approximately HK$358,172,000
and resulted in the increase in share capital of HK$15,000,000
and share premium of approximately HK$345,000,000, net of
transaction costs of approximately HK$1,828,000.

Tai United Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2016

% 1) 3R 88 77 B 3 &% % 17250,180,000
BEFdmH - REFEER-_T—H
F+—A=Zt+HEK FTEHEF
4 5165,119,0008 7T I & B A&
#hN12,509,0007% T & A& 17 & B 4
153,211,000 7T » 1Bk 32 5 B AR 4
601,0007% 7T °

RZZ—RNFNLA—B FARRFINLE
HIBE Bt RAREREREAT
% 4 B% AR 191,007 JT 2 R BB (B il 3% %
% 773,002,184,872 X AR AR 1 - E %
BR_E—RETAZ+—HEEEA
R A —IRIRA L i AR T 2 W AR 4
el (REEFHE]) REFHEER
—E-RFE+—AtBRK FIEHE
SFEBE#) £52,991,242,0007 7T 30 B H AL
N3 A1150,110,0007 7T I f% 15 35 (B 49
2,852,075,000/8 7t F1 Bk 322 5 WK A 4
10,943,00078 7T °

R-ZE—R"EF+-_A+HA AAAH
FREREITLRE W Bk ARQF
RSB REERBEDDRNEEE
AREBRI2BTZEEEBREARR A
2300,000,0008% #7 ik 5 - Be & H1H 2
R-ZE—RNF+-_A=+HERR A5
FRIEF B 4) £358,172,000/% JT i & 5K
fi& AN 3% 115,000,0007% 7T & % 15 35 (&
#7345,000,0007% 7T * 1R 22 5 A AN 49
1,828,000/ 7T °
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42.

43.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

—R"E+ZA=+—HIEA@EA

42. FERER

Share of net assets
of subsidiaries

HK$'000

SEHE AR

EEFE

FHT

At 1 April 2015 RZE—RAFHA—H 2,885
Share of profit for the year A5 F A F 130
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests ~ JE4E R ST & 6,000
At 31 March 2016 RZT—RE=ZA=+—H 9,015
Share of loss for the period DIE A EE (156)
Share of translation reserve DB E R (383)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 49) HEME AR (MEE49) (5,426)
At 31 December 2016 RZTE—RF+-_A=+—H 3,050

There were no transactions with non-controlling interests
during both reporting period.

OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the nine months ended
31 December 2016 was approximately HK$2,263,000 (year
ended 31 March 2016: Nil).
expected to generate rental yield of 5.70% on ongoing basis.

The investment properties are

43.

AP 5 55 20 9 - 1 A SR S AR 2
25

REHED
AEBERHBA
BE-_FT-~"4+-A=+—-H8iLh

BMABMEANBRIZDERSBABLY
2,263,000 c (Bl2—F—~F=A
£+—E|¢¢ﬁ ) WEMETRHH

Almost all of the properties held have committed tenants for BBEES.70% M & W& 5 o pTiF 2 &1
the next one to ten years. %%EP AEBLOHEFERBHRAT —FE=+
o

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted REEER  AEEFRUA T RRKEES
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: NREEFEI &L

31 December 2016 31 March 2016

HK$'000 HK$ 000

—E—RE T—RF

+t=ZA=+-—H =A=+-8

FERT FHT

Within one year —FNR 142,011 -

In the second to fifth years inclusive FZEERF

(BREEEMSF) 568,042 -

Over five years AFMNUE 682,021 -

1,392,074 -

AMERERAR

T -RFFR
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43,

—REFZA=t+—HIEAEA

OPERATING LEASES (continued)
The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under operating lease in respect
of office premises during the nine months ended 31 December
2016 was approximately HK$18,619,000 (31 March 2016:
HK$2,877,000).

the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-

At the end of the reporting period,

cancellable operating leases in respect of rental premises which
fall due as follows:

43.

KERD (@)
AKEBEAAEA

HE_Z2—X"F+=ZA=+—HIENEA
K *ETF%«%ﬁi@&wm“*miaﬁwﬁ
& 574918,619,0008 7T (—Z T — /N F
=A=+—8:2,877,00087T) °

MR EHR - NREBARE R T 5 HFE 2 H
Z NI REE E RO B Y ¥ 2 KRR &
A 2 5 FORE

31 December 2016 31 March 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

—®_x% o PNV

+=A=+-8 =A=+-8

FERT FET

Within one year —FR 24,130 17,804
In the second to fifth years inclusive FEFERF

(BREEREMSF) 34,880 44,370

59,010 62,174

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016 and year BHE_Z-—RE+_A=+—B1ILA@EAA

ended 31 March 2016, operating lease payments represent HEREIEE=ZT—R"F=A=1+—HItF

rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office premises.
Leases for properties are negotiated for a term ranging from
three to five years (31 March 2016: three to five years) with
fixed rentals.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

B gEHONTEAEEREETHA
EMERNZEE - %%*ﬂiﬁﬁ«‘%@ﬁ?ﬁ
THEAENT=ZERAF (ZE—REF=
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44. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

—R"E+ZA=+—HIEA@EA

44,

Apart from details of the balances with related parties
disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position
and other details disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has entered into the following
significant transactions with related parties during the nine

months ended 31 December 2016:

(a)

BEEATHKE

Brira MBI mMRMIRE 2 BEBEAL
ZEBZABREAVBERREMEL
AT HMFBIN AEERBE_F
—RNETZA=+—HIEAEAEREA
TRIATERRZ S

Transactions with related parties () BEALRS
Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-Z—XE Hz-Z2—X&F
+=A=+-R =A=+—H
I h {8 B IEFE
FHET FHET
Rental expenses paid to a related TR F—HBEEQAZ
company (Note (i) & (L)) - 65
Interest expense on loans from BEERARZ
ultimate holding company (Note (ii)) &2 F.8 52 H (B (i) 32,278 -
Imputed interest expense from loan ARMBRABIZERZ
from a fellow subsidiary (Note (iii)) HE M B (M) 131 -
As at 31 December 2016, the Group has a RZE—-—REFE+=A=+—

bank borrowing with an outstanding amount of
HK$500,000,000 guaranteed by the ultimate controlling
shareholder and secured by office premises in Hong
Kong owned by the ultimate controlling shareholder.

Notes:

(i) Rental expenses paid to a related company, in which
Mr. Mung Kin Keung and Mr. Mung Bun Man, Alan are
common directors prior to their resignation date on 18
June 2015 and 30 June 2015, were made according to
the terms of the lease agreement.

(i) Interest expenses were charged on loans from

ultimate holding company. Details of the terms are
set out in Note 37. The interest expense for the year
ended 31 March 2016 amounting to approximately
HK$2,187,000 was waived by the ultimate holding
company pursuant to the supplemental agreement.

(iii) Interest expense were charged on loan from a fellow
subsidiary. Details of the terms are set out in Note 38.

H AEBZAEERITEE
500,000,000 JT J5 1 £ 42 4% A% %
HIEERT A SRR RS 2
BEBMAEMEEER-

FfE

(i) SR F—HEEEAR (REEA
FEREGXFEEDFIRZ
—hAFXRNAtTN\BE=ZE—H
FARA=THZBERBA] 5
EAREARER) ZHEI BT
RIBAE W GRRMIED -

(ii) MEZHTDEAREZERER

A EH)E ST R - B B KK

M FEIBE R M FE37 < IR 7T

HE BHE-_ZTE—XNFE+_-A

=T —BLFEZAELHY

2,187,000/ 70 B S AT A
DD%

(iii) FEXZHER RN EREH
B - B B IEK RIS
B MIEE3S o

AMERERAT
T -RFFR
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44,

45,

—RE+FZA=t+—HIEAER

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors,
management personnel, are set out in Note 13, which
is determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

being the key

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders, to support the Group's
stability and growth, and to strengthen the Group’s financial
management capability.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
includes borrowings disclosed in Note 34, loan notes disclosed
in Note 36, loans from ultimate holding company disclosed in
Note 37 and loan from a fellow subsidiary disclosed in Note 38,
net of bank balances and cash, and total equity.

The Directors actively and regularly reviews its capital structure
and make adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payables to shareholders,
issue new shares or raise and repay debts. The Group’s capital
management objectives, policies or processes were unchanged
during the current period and previous year.

The Directors monitor capital using net debts to net debts plus
total equity ratio. These ratios as at 31 December 2016 and 31
March 2016 were as follows:

44,

45,

BEATHE @®)
(b) FEEEASZHM

BE(XrEEBAE) 2HHEHER
MaE13  HEFEM I BaFHEE K
EEEARBEMSBEEET-

EXERER

ZS'E#“IE LEXN BERRAEENE

BAKELE TARRGERADR-
EZ%ZK%IE’U%E&%E\M&%‘%@ZK%
BB E RS -

AEENEARERRBEFHA (BEM
ABARTIRE MRS 36T B B R
mTJf M7 IRENREERARZE
FARKE3SAMBERR RN ERRZ
/T/\) MR RITEHR LIRS ARERR
%’ED

E=ERMERENEERRE  LRIE
KERANBESELFE - REFHAR
BARE AKERGAEIRN TRED
BE BOFRIBEESNEEER-
RAHBRBEFE AEEEEE AN
BiE BERHEFMEEE-

EERAAEFERNEBEFENESR
BRELEEEER-R-_E—XRF+A
=+ BER=ZZE-R"F=ZA=+—HB®Z
FrHeEm T

31 December 2016 31 March 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-RF —ZE-RE

+=A=+-—H =A=+—8

FHET FHET

Net debts (Note 1) BEFRE (D) 1,497,994 394,654

Total equity (Note 2) w4858 (MHFE2) 4,232,230 857,910
Net debts to net debts plus total BEFERNAETFEINER

equity ratio (%) L E (%) 26.14% 31.51%

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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45.

46.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 45,

Notes:

(1) Net debts equals to borrowings, loan notes, loans from ultimate
holding company and loan from a fellow subsidiary less bank
balances and cash.

(2) Total equity equals to all capital and reserves of the Group
including non-controlling interests.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 46.

(a) Categories of financial instruments

EXERER (&)

=2

(1) BEFESNEE BERER mKRIE
AR ZERKBRMMB AR ZEZR
SRITESBNIRS -

(2) *Eéi@?%ﬁﬁ‘ilﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ$&ﬁﬁ
CEYER R

TWMIA
(a) =BT ANEHR

31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—®-_x% —P—x%E
+=A=+-8 =A=+-§
FET FET
Financial assets TRMEE
Financial assets TRMEE
Designated as at FVTPL EEZAAETAER 452,600
Held-for-trading investments BIEEEHRE 651,856 760,613
Financial derivative contract ERITEE L — 75,266
1,104,456 835,879
Loan and receivables (including bank & U fiE I A
balances and cash) (BIREITHEBEIRE) 4,767,962 538,224
Available-for-sale investments AR EZRE 1,429 -
Financial liabilities =N
Amortised cost B SRR 5,702,266 924,481
Financial derivative contract SRTEE L 12,685 -
AMERERLF

T -RFFR
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46.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
financial assets designated as at FVTPL, loan note
receivable, available-for-sale investments, accounts
receivable, other receivables, financial derivative
contracts, held-for-trading investments, pledged bank
deposits, restricted bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, accounts and bills payables, other payables,
borrowings, amount due to ultimate holding company,
loan notes, loans from ultimate holding company, loan
from a fellow subsidiary and other non-current liabilities.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and distressed
assets risks. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

46. €FT A (#)

(b)

HHEAREERRERBE

FEENTIESMIABREETE
BARERABRRZEREE
RRERZE AIHEEZRE -
JEWAR BR - Bt B WO IR - 2 BT
EAH FHEEERE MR
TR RRARITER  RITER
kB BNERIRENRERE
fi R FRIR B E - B R AR
REIRE BERRE SEERQ
AlZER REMBARIZERR
HprnsadE 2xFemT A
HENERERET SRR (E%ER
@ MERERREMERRR) E
ERfk - RBEcRRBRRTREE
[z - 7 B AR AAT B 4K 5% 55 LB O BR
REN TN - EREEEREEZ
SRRIAREREE R BREEEE
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46.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

46. €W T A (@)

Financial risk management objectives (b) BMBEKBEEBFERBE
and policies (Continued) (#&)
Market risk 5 A
() Currency risk (i) B
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign RATETHERRMINE
currency purchases, which expose the Group to HEFEAEERZINER
foreign currency risk. Approximately 99.8% (31 % o NS [BIR BB A9 £99.8%
March 2016: 99.2%) of the Group’'s purchases (ZE—RF=ZA=Z+—
is denominated in currencies other than the H:992%) A EEEE
functional currency of the group entities making RERNIEER 2N E
the purchases. fth & #EEHE -
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign & BAR - ANEE LAINE
currency denominated monetary assets and AMEMEMEEREKAE
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting MEREERT
period are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
=F BE
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2016 2016 2016 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZB-XF —T-RF ZE-XRF —E-RE
+=A=t-H | =ZA=t+—H |t=ZA=+-H =A=+—H
FER FHT FTEx FHET
uss Vi 1,412,116 - 9 -
RMB AR 790,014 13,789 106,387 228,855
GBP B - - 315,783 -
HK$ BT 7,770 24,456 36,084 53,754
Singapore Dollar ("SGD") i T 1,117 - 5,816 -
Inter-company balance NS EESZ
HK$ BT 1,100,000 - - -
The Group conducts periodic review of the BN RS0 R AEE

exposure and requirements of various currencies
and has used forward exchange contracts to
hedge against foreign currency exposures as
disclosed in Note 30.

HAE G R KR
TTREHER X EEREY
SMNE S KBRS R o

AKMERERAT
T -RFFR
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 46. ©RLT B (@)

204

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) HMHEEKREEEERBE
and policies (Continued) (#&)
Market risk (Continued) mEEE (E)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) B ()
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT

The Group is mainly exposed currency risk
related to RMB, HK$, GBP and SGD.

A subsidiary of the Company entered into several
foreign currency forward contracts to manage
its exposure to exchange rate fluctuations of
the RMB denominated bills payables against its
functional currency, US$ (see Note 30).

For the entities of which their functional currency
is HK$ while holding assets and liabilities
denominated in US$, the directors consider
that as HK$ is pegged to US$, the Group is not
subject to significant foreign currency risk from
change in foreign exchange rate of HK$ against
US$ and hence only consider the sensitivity of
the change in foreign exchange rate of HK$
against currencies other than US$. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding monetary
items which are denominated in relevant foreign
currencies and adjusts its translation at the
period/year end for a 5% change in relevant
foreign currencies exchange rates.

Tai United Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2016

AEETERREARE
FBTT - B85 R INE ST AR
B EL R o

ARalH—REM B ARG L
ETONERBAEL  UER
HUAREHENENEZER
HENEEBEETERE
FRAK (R HFE30) -

HUNEEER RETIMIFA
UETHENEERAREZ
B EEZRA/ BLHEX
TTH AEEAFEETT
HETINEERBEHNEX
SRR H L EEREE
TLRETTIAINZ B R HNE
PE R B GURE DT - &
RESTERBEREE 2N
MHEINETENEBIER -
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46.

—A"E+ZA=+—HIEAER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% (31 March 2016: 5%) increase and
decrease in the functional currency of the group
entities against the relevant foreign currencies.
5% (31 March 2016: 5%) is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The analysis illustrates the impact for a
5% strengthening of the functional currency of
the relevant group entities against the relevant
currency and a positive and negative number
below indicates an increase and a decrease in
profit respectively. For a 5% weakening of the
functional currency of the relevant group entities
against the relevant currency, therefore would be
an equal and opposite impact on the profit.

46. €W T A

(b)

(&)

BEREEBREREEK

(#&)

5 meE (&)

(i) g (&)
BURBEDN (&)

TRFANIRAEENUEE
BEENINEERILERI
B Bs% (ZE—XRF=
A=+—8R: 5%)2@5{@?
Ee5% (ZF—XRF=H
=T —B:5%)BREL
ERANAANMERERAR
WEINERBEBER BE
B EHIMNEE RS A R
Pzt IR ABEBEE
EEENIEEBLREE
WITES%H & T T X
MIER BT Rl AR
EmEED - WAEREEE
E%E’WJ@EE%PL*BE@EME%
B E5% 'T%%'JE%TE
&*E&E’JE‘“

KMERERAF
T -REFFR
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46.
(b)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

—RE+FZA=t+—HIEAER

Financial risk management objectives

46. €T A (@)
BREBEEEERKE

(b)

and policies (Continued) (#&)
Market risk (Continued) TR (4E)
0] Currency risk (Continued) (i) Exmg (&)
RMB Impact (i) HKS Impact (ii) GBP Impact (jii) SGD Impact (iv)
ARBZE() B & (i) REE & (i) g s Eiv)
31 31 3 31 3 31 3
December | 31 March | December March | December March | December March
2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016
HKS'000 |  HKS'000 |  HKS'000 |  HK$'000 | HKS'000 |  HKS$'000 |  HKS'000 |  HKS'000
ZB-RE | ZERF | ZB-REF | ZFRF | ZB-RE | 23 5F | ZB-REF | ZF 1%
+=8 =A t=A =A t=8 =A t=A =A
=t-8| =t+-8| =t-8| =t-8| =t-8| =t-8| =t-8| =t-&
TERT FET TR FEL TERT TER TER TER
(Decrease) increase in HRER (i) Em/
profit for the period/(increase) £ R& B (& 1n) 4
decrease in loss for the year 28,371 (10,375) 40,420 (1,081) (13,814) - (195)

(i) This is mainly attributable to the exposure (i) FTERAHFE
on outstanding bank balances and bills UARBEFEHR
payables denominated in RMB at the BRRITEBRLE
period/year end. N REE R B

Bz

(ii) This is mainly attributable to the exposure (ii) FTERAHFE
on outstanding bank balances, held-for- BT EH RE
trading investments, borrowings and an BIRITHE FHIE
inter-company balance denominated in BEERA -BERA
HK$ at the period/year end. A B 45 58 B9 [ 5 2

(i) This is mainly attributable to the exposure iy ETE@MREFX
on outstanding bank balances and AR ENRE
deposits paid for potential acquisitions BIRTTEH LG
denominated in GBP at the period/year WEEEDNES
end. B BE 54, [ gz

(iv)  This is mainly attributable to the exposure (iv) FTERAHFX
on outstanding bank balance and other VA ST 03K TTRT E Y
payables denominated is SGD at the REERRITEKRE
period/year end. H At & FROE 89 (B

H k-

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the inherent currency risk
as the period/year end exposure does not reflect
the exposure during the period/year.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group is mainly
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to the
fluctuation of market interest rate on accounts
receivable from margin clients as disclosed in
Note 27, variable-rate bank balances in Note 31
and variable-rate borrowings in Note 34. It is the
Group's policy to keep majority of its borrowings
at floating rates of interest so as to minimise the
fair value interest rate risk.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to loan note receivable, fixed-
rate borrowings, loan notes, loans from ultimate
holding company, loan from a fellow subsidiary,
other non-current liabilities and restricted bank
deposits.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuations of HIBOR,
LIBOR and Hong Kong Prime Rate arising from
the Group's variable interest rate instrument.
The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk. However, the management will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate borrowings and accounts
receivable from margin clients at the end of
reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming these outstanding balances at the end
of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole period. A 50 basis points (31 March
2016: 50 basis points) increase or decrease
which represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates is
used.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (31
March 2016: 50 basis points) higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's pre-tax profit for the nine months ended
31 December 2016 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$9,312,000 (year ended 31
March 2016: Nil).

The Group's exposure to bank balances was
not included in the above analysis as the
management considers that the exposure to
these risks for bank balances is insignificant.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities which
are classified as held-for-trading investments. The
Directors manage this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risks. The
Group's equity price risk is mainly concentrated
on equity instruments quoted in the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group
currently does not use any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to other price risk. However,
the management has appointed a team to
monitor the price risk and will consider hedging
the risk exposure should that needs arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks at the end of the reporting period. A
10% (31 March 2016:
used which represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible charge in equity price.
If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 10% (31 March 2016: 10%) higher/
lower, pre-tax profit for the nine months ended

10%) higher/lower are

31 December 2016 would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$65,186,000 (31 March 2016:
HK$76,061,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of held-for-trading investments.
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46.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 March 2016, the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties arises
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team to compile the
credit and risk management policies, to approve credit
limits and to determine any debt recovery action on
those delinquent receivables. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of accounts receivable
as disclosed in Note 27 on an individual basis at each
reporting date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on the loan
note receivable as disclosed in Note 23 amounting
to approximately HK$1,460,808,000. Credit risk is
considered as limited because the counterparty is a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with sufficient
working capital as at 31 December 2016.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits, restricted
bank deposits and bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies and

authorised banks in the PRC with high credit ratings.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings and the loan note receivable, the Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and customers
and across diverse geographical areas.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of bank balances and
cash deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

Up to the date of these consolidated financial
statements that were authorised for issuance, the Group
entered into a loan facility agreement amounting to
HK$210,000,000 with an independent third party and
such loan facility carried interest at 6% per annum and
will not be expired in the next 12 months from the
date of these consolidated financial statements were
authorised for issuance. The Group has fully drawn
down the loan facility on 21 March 2017. In addition,
a secured borrowing amounting to HK$525,250,000
as at 31 December 2016, which would be repaid in
November 2017 in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates as set out in the loan agreement,
is expected to be renewed considering the strength
of the Group’s performance and business prospects.
Taking into account of the internally generated funds
of the Group, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that, the Group has sufficient working capital
for its present requirements for the next twelve months
from the date of this report to meet in full its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable
future.
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46.

—RE+FZA=t+—HIEARERA

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
weighted average interest rate at the end of reporting
period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s
liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments.
The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted contractual net cash outflows on
derivative instruments that settle on a net basis. The
liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative financial
instruments are prepared based on the contractual
maturities as the management consider that the
contractual maturities are essential for an understanding
of the timing of the cash flows of derivatives.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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46.

E=®—AF+=AS+—HILAMEA

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

46. €W T A (@)

Financial risk management objectives (b) BMBEBEEBEFERBE
and policies (Continued) (#)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELEE (F)
Liquidity table B EHFK
Total
undiscounted Carrying
On demand cash flows amount
Weighted or as at at
average less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 31December 31 December
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year years 2016 2016
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZB-RE
TZA RZB-X%
=+-H +=h
RERY ZRERRSE =t-8
mEFHRE FR-H@R -E=fR =fARE-f —-Z21F RERE ZREE
TER B TER TER TER TER
Non-derivative financial FTESREARE
liabilities
Accounts and bills payables ERERREE - 120,576 - 790,015 - 910,591 910,591
Other payables HivRTHmIE - 96,705 - - - 96,705 96,705
Borrowings BE 2.95 1,490,206 4,471 573,832 - 2,068,509 1,931,096
Amount due to ultimate JER SRR R FUE
holding company - 14,728 - - - 14,728 14,728
Loan notes ERRE 9.11 10,501 1,462,329 - - 1472830 1,412,116
Loan from a fellow subsidiary AZMBARZER 7.00 - - - 178,624 178,624 171,444
Other non-current liabilities HEthEngaE 6.50 - - 75,602 1,238,702 1,314,304 1,165,586
1,732,716 1,466,800 1,439,449 1,417,326 6,056,291 5,702,266
Derivatives - net settlement T T A-F&E
Financial derivative contract SRITEAD - - - 12,685 - 12,685 12,685
Total
undiscounted Carrying
On demand cash flows amount
Weighted or as at at
average less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 31 March 31 March
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year years 2016 2016
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIZ-RF
“A=t-8 RIZ-R%
S ZARERBE ZA=+-H
nEFHFE AR-@A —-Z=fEA Z@AE-% —Enf MELE ZEHE
Thx FiET TAR Thx FET TAR
Non-derivative financial FTESREARE
liabilities
Other payables Hip e F0B - 2,398 - - - 2,398 2,398
Borrowings BE 5.34 40,245 - - - 40,245 40,245
Amount due to ultimate e SRR AIFE
holding company - 4,798 - - - 4,798 4,798
Loans from ultimate holding REERDAZER
company 4.50 39,467 - 894,586 - 934,053 877,040
86,908 - 894,586 - 981,494 924,481
AMERERAR

—E-RNEFER
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46.

—RE+FZA=t+—HIEAER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

46. €FT A (#)

Financial risk management objectives (b) HMHEERKREEEEREE
and policies (Continued) (#&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEBEEE (F)
Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are MAEEZEREEGRZEEE L
included in the “on demand or less than 1 month” time MEBE B SATE A TR E kKT
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December —EAlzHHRBEERN KR _F
2016, the aggregate principal amounts of these —R"F+ZA=+—8B #ZEEE
borrowings amounted to HK$1,366,955,000 (31 March 2 A& 8% 51,366,955,00078 T
2016: Nil). Taking into account the Group's financial (ZE—R"F=A=+—8:8)-
position, the Directors believe that it is probable that BHARAEEZBBRRE EF
the banks will not exercise their discretionary rights to wuﬁ'ﬁEﬁTKT BT H = SR EN R
demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe BRIMER-EFRE ZFE
that these borrowings will be repaid in accordance BBRBRERHEMESEEENE
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan HifEE -
agreements.
The following table details the Group's aggregate TRFANAREHERBAZREREER
principal and interest cash outflows for borrowings BRZEERE TSR ML A&
with a repayment on demand clause. To the extent BB o e M| 2= 5 0F BRI 2 - R SR AR IR
that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted © R B A SR 2 N 9 A
amount is derived from weighted average interest rate RErE-o
at the end of reporting period.
On demand
Weighted or Total
average less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year years cash flows amount
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i RERS -z =EAZ -z RER
FF= FR-f8A =f8R - 1F REREAE REE
TRET TAT TAR ThER TER TAT
Borrowings with repayment fiEEZEREEK
on demand clause 2B
As at 31 December 2016 RIZ-RF
+-A=+-8 275 4,610 8,087 433248 1033207 1479242 1,366,955
As at 31 March 2016 RIZ-RF
=A=1-8 - - - - - - -

The amounts scheduled above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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46.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Risk management of distressed debt assets

(1)

(i1)

Overview

Risk of distressed debt assets represents the
potential loss that may arise from counterparty’s
failure to meet its obligation or changes in
market conditions that lead to decline in
asset value. Risk of distressed debt assets can
also arise from operational failures due to
unauthorised or inappropriate purchase, disposal
or management activities, which result in the
recoverable amount of the distressed debt assets
lower than their carrying amounts. The Group's
distressed debt assets risk arises from distressed
debts which the Group initially classifies as
financial assets designated as at FVTPL.

Risk management of distressed debt assets

The Group exercises standardised management
procedures, including project initiation, due
diligence investigation, design and approval
of recovery plan and continuous monitoring
and management. The Group enhances its risk
management by strengthening investigation,
review and approval procedures before taking
up the distressed debt assets, and monitoring
measures after taking up the distressed debt
assets; enhancing risk mitigation effect through
collateral; and continuously upgrading the
management system of distressed debt assets.
Specifically, the risks to which distressed debt
debts initially designated as at FVTPL mainly
comprise valuation risk, legal title risk and to
certain extent credit risk.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Risk management of distressed debt assets
(Continued)

(1)

Valuation risk

Valuation risk is the risk of negative impact
arising from the difference between actual
results and value estimations that the Group
would use in its management of distressed debt
assets designated as at FVTPL, due to variance
in factors including future cash flows, collection
period, discount rate, and disposal cost, etc.
Measures the Group takes to minimize the
valuation risk include:

° Perform investigation strictly on the
parties involved in the transaction
(including the debtors and the
guarantors), collateral provided,
repayment sources, etc.; and

° Adopt conservative estimation on
incurrence rate, discount rate, and
disposal cost when performing valuation
and review the difference between
actual results and estimation after the
completion of the disposal of distressed
debt assets to improve the accuracy of
future estimations.

The Group has established an independent
valuation process for financial assets. The
Group has engaged on independent qualified
professional valuer for the valuation of
financial assets and the Directors performs
an independent review of the valuation
methodologies, inputs, assumptions and
valuation results. The finance department records
these items and prepares the disclosure of the
financial assets, based on the independently
reviewed valuation.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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46.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Risk management of distressed debt assets
(Continued)

(iv)

Legal title risk

Legal title risk is the risk of loss, arising from the
decrease of recoverable amount when the legal
rights to claim was partially or entirely lost due
to inappropriate daily management of distressed
debt assets such as expiry of claim period
without taking proper legal actions on time.
Measures the Group takes to minimize the legal
title risk include:

. Set up alert management system to
ensure the expiry of legal claim periods
related to distressed debt assets are
managed effectively;

o Set up periodic revisiting mechanism
to interview debtors and monitor the
conditions of collateral. Maintain regular
investigation report properly to ensure
the Group has access to the most
updated information; and

o Set up reporting mechanism of significant
event to ensure immediate recovery
action be taken when certain risk
elements emerge.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Risk management of distressed debt assets
(Continued)

(v)

Credit risk

Certain distressed debt assets designated as at
FVTPL may be subject to credit risk. Depending
on the status of the obligor of distressed debt
assets that are designated as at FVTPL, the
Group may decide to pursue repayment from
the obligor instead of disposing it to third party,
credit risk arises in such situation.

Credit risk represents the potential loss that may
arise from a customer or counterparty’s failure to
meet its obligation. Measures the Group takes to
minimize the credit risk of distressed debt assets
include:

o Manage the creditworthiness of
counterparties using independent credit
rating on the counterparties as reference;

° Select counterparties with appropriate
creditworthiness and repayment
capability; and

° Require counterparties to provide
collateral to cover the credit exposure.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and
financial liabilities.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's financial instruments are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
Directors are responsible to determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.
The Directors works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model.

(c)

46. €W T A (@)

ETMITENAARENE

KRR H BRI EE TR E
BENZREENAARENER:

RAETEREEESF

MU BHEAME  AREHO 2R
TRARARBEFE-EFREETE
NAEFENEEGEXMNREA
Bz -

EEFARER  AEBEEZA R
RUBEmSHE - ELES —E
FBABIBEZIBERT  REEE
BEZTAERMEMETHEE.
E=EYEAAERINHER
VAT E 8 8 MR A (B R R i A
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

(c) (c)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and

46. €FT A (@)

ERMIENAIAREFE
()

FEBUBEMEERZ L L ETE

financial liabilities that are measured at fair value

on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the

valuation technique and inputs used).

BHE

HE@BEEREHEEHAAME

AEEXLEHMEERERAER

SHIREAREFE - TRE
JIBERMAEEXFLREELS
MEENAAE(LER
ERA R ABIE) WER -

Ffr {2 F Y

Valuation Relationship of
Financial assets/ Fair value technique(s) unobservable
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy and key inputs inputs to fair value
SHEE/SRER RUATRENAAE MAESH FRERTRTEEAGE FAREBAEBRADMAENBER
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE-RE ZE-RE
t=A=t+-H ZA=t-A
TER TERL
Held-for-trading investments Asset - 651,856 | Asset-760,613 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market N/A
BEEERE BE-65185 | HE-760613 £-EfR RRTEHREAE TaR
Financial derivative contracts Liability - 12,685 Asset - 75,266  Level 2 31 December 2016: Discounted cash flow. Future cash ~ N/A
flows are estimated based on forward exchange rates
(from observable forward exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period) and contract forward rates
31 March 2016: Quoted market bid price of the metal-
related products available in the market as at the end of
reporting period
SRITERS AfE- 12,685 BE-7506 £-ER “E-RETZAZ + BEfR @R
Z /\Efﬂ TR RBEER THARERE
BERMSEAER
Financial assets Asset - 452,600 - level3 Market comparable approach The higher the comparable market transaction price per
designated as at FVTPL The key inputs comparable market transaction price per  square meter of comparable properties, the higher the
(distressed debt assets) square meter of comparable properties, future construction  fair value.
cost to complete and repossession discount rate The higher the future construction cost to complete, the
lower the fair value
The higher the repossession discount rate, the lower the
fair value
ERRAAETABRK EE- 452,600 - £-EfR L P13 TERBNEETARTER EEE AREES-
SREE(TRER TELENESTAATERAUBUENETARSE ARTIRERAME AAEME.
ARTIRERARKEHRE- BERBEEE AABHE-

There were no transfers in different levels of the fair

value hierarchy between Level 1,

period/year.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

46.

ERTIA

(c)

(&)

EMITAMNDAETE
(#)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of CRMEEF-EBRANBEFEZY
financial assets. AR o

Financial assets
designated as at
FVTPL
HK$'000
EERASE
TTABEZEMEE
FAT
As at 1 April 2016 RIZZE—RFHEA—H -
Recognised in profit or loss (Note) RIBzEER (M) 150,068
Purchases e 710,056
Disposal & (389,007)
Exchange realignment [E 5% (18,517)
As at 31 December 2016 AZE—RF+-_A=1+H 452,600
Note: Included an unrealised fair value gain of approximately e : KRERAAMEWELI92,098,000
HK$92,098,000 in the consolidated statement of profit BLTEFAGAEBEREME

and loss and other comprehensive income. K -
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and FrEFHWEHEEREHBEBH L

financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value
disclosures required)

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

REDEFREEMEE (LR
ERBRREZMEE)TBARL
-]

EXZAR NEAVBRREFH
REHERAARZCREER TR
BEZEEEREARERE

KMERERAF
T -REFFR
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Financial assets and financial liabilities
subject to offsetting arrangements

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar

agreement that are either:

o offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position; or

o not offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the offsetting criteria are not

met.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement
made between the Group and Hong Kong Securities

Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC"),

dealer, the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off the money obligations receivable and payable with
HKSCC and brokers on the same settlement date and

the Group intends to settle on a net basis.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

brokers and

46. €FT A (@)
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46.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Financial assets and financial liabilities
subject to offsetting arrangements

(Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements

As at 31 December 2016

46. TR T A (@)
(d ZEHEZHEMBERNESH

EERERMEAE (@)

B R ITEFEEEL
HRENGHFHRRY EBEER
EHEE

R=ZZB-—X"F+=A=+—-H

Gross
amounts of
recognised Net amounts
financial of financial
assets set liabilities
Gross off in the presented in
amounts of consolidated  the consolidated
recognised statement of statement of
financial liabilities ~ financial position financial position Net amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REEHH
MRRBREH 2 REGEBH
ERALH ERALH RRER252
aEAE EERE ERMERFTE FH
TER TER TET TET
Description g
Accounts receivable from FEW & A8
clearing houses (310,470) - -
Accounts payable to clearing houses &4 & fT 3018 310,470 (26,022) (26,022)

No other financial assets and financial liabilities are
subject to offsetting, enforceable, master netting
arrangements and similar arrangements as at 31 March
2016.

The gross amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities and their net amounts as presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position, both of
which have been disclosed in the above tables, are
measured as follows:

o Amounts due from HKSCC, brokers and
brokerage clients — amortised cost

. Amounts due to HKSCC — amortised cost

The amounts which have been offset against the related
recognised financial assets and financial liabilities in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position or
subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or
similar agreements are measured on the same basis as
the recognised financial assets and financial liabilities.

RIE-RF=ZA=+—RH #HE
XEH AIEHIIT RFREE

2 HF S AR AR 3 P AR AR ) HL At 2 R
BEMERAE-

ERABRERGEMBERABRE
JIMmEREERERBENMERA
HREI AT A&

. FEWEBAEE - 540 Rasae
P RIA - KA

. JRE A~ 25 7 4 S RRTE — R AR
N

RAEBGRE BB K R RERAER
ZHEHBAeMmEERSRAEHEK
$H sk A R B M TT 2 BBF RS
B BT RRN SR
RECDHERENEER SR BEE
GEET T
KMERERAF
T -REFFR
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47.

48.

—RE+FZA=t+—HIEARERA

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group has retirement plans covering a substantial portion
of its employees. The principal plans are defined contribution
plans.

The Company's subsidiaries in Hong Kong operate the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the rules and
regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority. The Group’s employees are required to join the
scheme. The Group has followed the minimum statutory
contribution requirement of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant
aggregated income with a cap of HK$1,500 per employee per
month.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC and Singapore, in
compliance with the applicable regulations of the PRC and
Singapore, participated in various pension schemes operated
by the relevant municipal and provincial governments. These
subsidiaries are required to make defined contributions to these
schemes at a fixed percentage of their covered payroll. The
Group has no other obligation for the payment of its staff's
retirement and other post-retirement benefits other than the
contributions described above.

The total contributions in respect of the nine months ended 31
December 2016 charged to consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income amount to HK$1,232,000
(31 March 2016: HK$176,000).

ASSETS AND BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016, the Group
had several material acquisitions in acquiring a controlling
interest in certain companies for a total consideration of
approximately HK$1,319,309,000. For the companies set out
in note (i), they did not operate any business prior to the
respective dates of acquisitions and accordingly, the Group
considers the nature of these acquisitions as acquisitions of
assets in substance and the considerations have been attributed
to the individual assets acquired and liabilities assumed
based on the relative fair values of the individual items. For
the acquisition
is considered as business combination under HKFRS 3 and

the acquisition as mentioned in note (ii),

accounted for using acquisition method.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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48. ASSETS AND BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

(Continued)

()

Assets acquisition

(a)

(b)

()

Acquisition of San Siu Company Limited
(“San Siu”)

On 20 June 2016, Tai United Capital Limited,
a directly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company acquired the entire equity interest of
San Siu at a consideration of HK$1,800,000.
The principal asset of San Siu is a vehicle license
plate issued in the PRC, which is being valued at
HK$1,800,000.

Acquisition of Citi-Elite Limited (“Citi-Elite”)

On 5 July 2016, Tai United Capital Limited, a
directly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
acquired the entire equity interest of Citi-Elite at
a consideration at HK$2,330,000. The principal
asset of Citi-Elite is a vehicle license plate
issued in Hong Kong, which is being valued at
HK$2,330,000.

Acquisition of RCBG and MRB Group

On 24 September 2016, BG Residential,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with the Vendors, pursuant to which
BG Residential has agreed to purchase the entire
equity interest of RCBG and MRB Group and
accept the assignment of loans from the former
shareholder of RCBG and MRB Group. RCBG and
MRB Group together legally held 100% equity
interest in an entity holding properties located at
6-9 Buckingham Gate, London SW1E 6JP, which
is being valued at GBP112,202,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,061,431,000).

The aggregate consideration is GBP58,803,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$556,276,000)
and the acquisition has been completed on 4
November 2016.

Details of the above were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 18 October
2016.

48, EEREKWEEE &)

(i)

EEWE

(a)

(b)

(c)

KE=)ERRE ([=
NJ)

RZZFE—RFEXA=1+8H"
ARARzEEREZENBAR
Tai United Capital Limited
W=z 23 R
& 41,800,000/ jT ° = /)
CEEEBERPRHETH
B2 {E{E A1,800,0007%
T o

WEEHERL A ([
#J)

RZE—XR"FtARA K
RAIZEEZAMBE LA
Tai United Capital Limited
Wk 2 RE
& /2,330,000 JT © 7 &B
CEEZEERBBEITH
B % (B1E 52,330,000
o

W #ERCBG X MRB£ &

RZE—X"FALAZ-+THE
H AArzEE2EW
B A FIBG Residentialf1 &
FEINEE W B BG
Residential[F & #8 ERCBG
KEMRBE B 2 2 ZF A% 1 &
% MRCBG X MRBE & 7 Al
MR 2 BEF - RCBGR
MRBE B HEEETEFHF —
fE 4% B i1 76-9Buckingham
Gate, London SW1E 6JP
fE1E 4112,202,000% &
(FAE R #1,061,431,000
BILIZERBIERMEZ
100 % A # ©

& X {8 558,803,000 £
(8 Z R #9556,276,000/%
L) BB EBEEN -E
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48. ASSETS AND BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

(Continued)

(i) Assets acquisition (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Acquisition of Leon Property Limited

On 24 November 2016, Wide Flourish, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Leon Property Holdings
Limited, pursuant to which Wide Flourish has
agreed to purchase the entire equity interest
of Leon Property Limited and repaid the loan
from former shareholders of Leon Property
Limited. The principal asset of Leon Property
Limited is a property located in Hammersmith,
the West of London, which is being valued at
GBP103,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$988,425,000).

The aggregate consideration is GBP44,950,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$429,954,000)
and the acquisition has been completed on 23
December 2016.

Details of the above were set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 25 November
2016 and 24 January 2017.

Acquisition of Sincere Will Insurance Brokers
Limited (“Sincere Will”)

On 27 October 2016, Best Shield Enterprises
Limited, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company acquired the entire equity
interest of Sincere Will at a consideration of
HK$650,000. The principal asset of Sincere Will
is an insurance brokerage license, which is being
valued at HK$500,000.

Tai United Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2016
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Y fELeon Property
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48. ASSETS AND BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS 48. EERX¥KWEEE (&)

(Continued)
(i) Assets acquisition (Continued) (i) BEEWE @&
(f) Acquisition of Mason International Limited (f) WEBECEBEERA T
(“Mason”) ([BE])
On 28 November 2016, Tai United Continental RZE—REF+—A=Z+N
Company Limited, a directly wholly-owned H AAGIEZE2EMNME
subsidiary of the Company, acquired the entire 72 A]Tai United Continental
equity interest of Mason at a consideration of Company LimitediZ K (&
US$20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately 20,000,000 7T (# &
HK$155,000,000). The principal asset of #7155,000,00078 7T ) W B
Mason is an aircraft, which is being valued at BErzrAdBE-BE2
US$20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately FTEEERRE HER
HK$155,000,000). 20,000,000 7T (AHER A
155,000,000 7T ) ©
The relative fair values of assets acquired and ks & E MR EEER
liabilities assumed at the acquisition dates are WEBH 2B ARED
analysed as follows: T
RCBG Leon
and MRB Property Sincere
San Siu Citi-Elite Group Limited will Mason Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
RCBG Leon
RMRB  Property
=h 4 &8 Limited HE #fE @it
TR TAL Fhx FL FHL FEL TATL
Relative fair value of assets and liabilities FEREERBENKE
recognised at the date of acquisitions: BEZEHRAE
Property, plant and equipment 0% BEREE - - - - - 155,000 155,000
Investment properties REME - - 1,061,431 988,425 - - 2,049,856
Intangible assets apEE 1,800 2,330 - - 500 - 4,630
Pledged bank deposits BERRIER - - - 16,765 - - 16,765
Deposits, prepayments and Be BRRER
other receivables Eth g sE - - - 499 - - 499
Bank balances and cash ROTEHERS - - - 1,004 150 - 1,154
Accrued liabilities and other payables EirEEREMERNTE - - (42,873) (8,418) - - (51,291)
Tax payables ER#E - - - (2,706) - - (2,706)
Borrowings - - - (462,282) (565,615 - - (1,027,897)
Loans from former shareholders AIRRER - - (443939)  (276,191) - - (720,130)
Total identifiable net assets acquired BT SAEEFES
8 1,800 2,330 112,337 153,763 650 155,000 425,880
Consideration paid for the assignment/ HER/HEAREER
settlement of loans from former shareholders 2R E - - 443,939 276,191 - - 720,130
Cash consideration paid as at REEREZEN
acquisition dates ReRE 1,800 2,330 556,276 429,954 650 155,000 1,146,010
Cash consideration paid ERBLKE 1,800 2330 556276 429,954 650 155000 1,146,010
Bank balances and cash acquired FrkERTERRR S - - - (1,004) (150) - (1,154)
Net cash outflow BEeRHFE 1,800 2,330 556,276 428,950 500 155,000 1,144,856
AMEZERARDA 227
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48. ASSETS AND BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS
(Continued)

(ii)

Business acquisition — Hui Kai Holdings
Acquisition

On 29 December 2015, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Mr. Lo Kwai Sang Dennis
(“Mr. Lo") and First Step Securities Limited, a company
incorporated in British Virgin Islands with limited liability
and is wholly owned by Mr. Lo (collectively referred as
the “Original Vendors”) to acquire the entire equity
interest in Hui Kai Holdings at a cash consideration
of HK$170 million (the “December Acquisition”).
The principal activities of Hui Kai Holdings are mainly
engaged in securities and futures dealing, assets
management and money lending business. A refundable
deposit amounting to HK$10,000,000 has been paid
to the Original Vendors in January 2016 in respect of
the December Acquisition. Subsequent to the signing
of the agreement of December Acquisition, in light of
the high volatility of the stock market, the Group and
the Original Vendors believed that it is in the interests
for them to take more time to review the receivables
of a subsidiary of Hui Kai Holdings, namely Hui Kai
Securities Limited, with a view to ascertaining with
higher accuracy the amount of receivables that Hui Kai
Securities Limited would have at completion.

As such, on 18 January 2016, the Group entered into
a termination agreement with the Original Vendors to
terminate the December Acquisition (the “Termination
Agreement”), and separately entered into a new
agreement with Hui Kai Holdings, being the new
vendor, to acquire the entire equity interest in certain
subsidiaries of Hui Kai Holdings for an aggregate
cash consideration up to HK$56 million (the “New
Agreement”), and in the meantime has an option at a
premium of HK$1 to acquire the entire equity interest
in Hui Kai Holdings for a consideration up to HK$120
million within 12 months (the “Call Option Deed”). The
refundable deposit paid to Original Vendors under the
December Acquisition amounting to HK$10,000,000
has been transferred to Hui Kai Holdings as the deposits
under the New Agreement.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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SEHEZEEERE([EEE]R
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48. ASSETS AND BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS
(Continued)

(i)

Business acquisition — Hui Kai Holdings
Acquisition (Continued)

Given certain substantive conditions precedent has
not yet fulfilled, the acquisition has not completed as
at 31 March 2016 and in accordance with the terms
of the supplemental agreement signed on 23 May
2016, an additional refundable deposit amounting to
HK$5,000,000 has been further paid to Hui Kai Holdings
during the reporting period.

On 14 October 2016, the Group served a written notice
to Hui Kai Holdings to exercise the call option to acquire
the entire equity interest of Hui Kai Holdings.

The acquisition under New Agreement was completed
on 24 October 2016 and has been accounted for using
the acquisition method.

48, EEREKWEEE &)

(ii)

EBWB-EIZRWE
BIH (&)

ERETEDERIEHENREE
BWER-_E—A"E=ZA=1+—
HEARTK  RIBER =T —RF
FAZT=BEBZ2@ETHH 2K
FoORHmESHR ERENERS

T 88 HNAT IR 12 £5,000,000
/%71°

RZF-—R"F+ATEE A%KH
[ FEE SLI%E A 3 ) — 10 B EB AUATT
ERBEHEARBESN 2R 28
P o

MpEBE T ZWEEERD R
—RFETAZ TR LEA
W BB E AR -

Consideration transferred: FrEZELE:
HK$'000
FHT
Cash paid [EENEE AR 108,725
Consideration payable ERARE 64,574
173,299

Acquisition-related costs had been excluded from the
cost of acquisition and recognised directly as an expense
“other operating
line item in the consolidated statement

in the period when incurred within
expenses”
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Cumulative acquisition-related costs in respect of Hui
Kai Acquisition amounted to HK$2,205,000, of which
HK$697,000 was charged to profit or loss in the nine
months ended 31 December 2016 with the remaining
amount charged to profit or loss in the year ended 31
March 2016.

Uit 5 BRI A 37 4 5T A LIREE AR AR
MEREEHARGEER E
tEEmkaR [ HMgERE] B
EFEERRAME -HREEIE
I Uy b 18 2 RET U FERE A AN 4Y
2,205,000/ 7T« E A £9697,000/%8
THEHE-ZZ—X"Ft+t=-A=+—
HiENERZE=RNEG MK T
gﬁﬁﬁifj /_\QEZHE+_
ElJtiﬁZTa & AR ©

KMERERAF
T -REFFR
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48. ASSETS AND BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

(Continued)

(ii)

Business acquisition — Hui Kai Holdings

Acquisition (Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the

48. EERNEBKEEE (&)

(i)
B8 (#)

EBURB-EdZERYE

R s BB E E R TR

date of acquisition are as follows: EfEWMT:
HK$'000
FET
Intangible assets B EE 27,986
Accounts receivable JE U BR R 83,670
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e T HE A b FEUGRIA 6,205
Bank balances and cash RITHEB IR S 163,038
Accounts payable e ER 3K (81,436)
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEET B & R E AL E S 3RIE (1,272)
Tax payable JE A #5838 (2)
Dividend payable to a former shareholder JERT — BRI S (36,904)
Total identifiable net assets acquired T n s Rl B E S EA T 161,285
HK$'000
FHT
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEEA RS RAFHE
Consideration paid in cash ENBESNKE 108,725
Bank balances and cash acquired TR IR & (163,038)
Settlement of dividend payable to a former EREA—BRARERE
shareholder 36,904
Deposits paid for the Hui Kai Holdings FE S iE R g =18 2
Acquisition BfiEe (15,000)
Net cash inflow e RAFE (32,409)
HK$'000
FHET
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WEEEZEHE:
Consideration transferred ez (& 173,299
Less: fair value of identified net assets acquired 8 : FrURBE AT % R & EFE 2 AR E (161,285)
12,014

Tai United Holdings Limited
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48. ASSETS AND BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS
(Continued)

(i)

Business acquisition — Hui Kai Holdings
Acquisition (Continued)

Goodwill arose in Hui Kai Holdings Acquisition because
of the cost of the combination include a control
In addition, the consideration paid for the
combination effectively included amount in relation

premium.

to the benefit of future market development and
the assembled workforce of Hui Kai Holdings. These
benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets. The goodwill arising from
this acquisition is not expected to be deductible for tax
purposes.

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Included in the profit for the nine months ended
31 December 2016 is profit of approximately
HK$1,573,000 attributable to Hui Kai Holdings. Revenue
for the nine months ended 31 December 2016 includes
approximately HK$1,065,000 attributable to Hui Kai
Holdings.

Had the acquisitions of Hui Kai Holdings been effected
at the beginning of the nine months ended 31
December 2016, the total Group amount of revenue
and the profit for the nine months ended 31 December
2016 would have been approximately of HK$8,109,122
and HK$50,545,000 respectively. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is
not necessarily an indication of revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisitions been completed at
the beginning of the period, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

48, EEREKWEEE &)

(ii)

EBWB-EIZRWE
BIH (&)

HESN R EERMELNEE
ERREFRANBIE THESER
EE LN BT A BRI AT XA
Wﬁ1a%$Xm%W¥@&EJ
P e 4B 55 55 B 7 O AR RE R a2 mﬂ
He Lmﬂ 5 R A R R
BEMNERIZE  TREEFED Bﬁ
R -NERKBEEMELND
B EMRB LA A HIRA

UEBERH X EEERYZE

P& gl 1% A% JE 1k & 1 £91,573,000
BTt ABHZE_Z—X"E+_A
=t+t—HILENEANEMNA-BE
:? /\EJF )E] + EHJ:j'L
18 A By U B 95 DE S 45 IR FE G 49
1,065,000 7T °

MESNIZRKBEHEEREZ =
E—RE+-A=+—HIL LA
BU=k 82— X<F+=A
“t+—HALEAERANAEE KR
B Nom F) i o Bl 49 28,109,122%
7T }250,545,00078 7T % £ B
EBHENBERSR  AURBEAEER
BRI B R A M B T AT
ERBENRARKCEESE  TT
BEBARREEMTER -
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49. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 21 December 2016, the Group had entered into a share
transfer agreement with an independent third party to
dispose of its 46% equity interest in the subsidiary, Jilan,
which engaged in investment holding activities, at a cash
consideration of RMB16,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$18,523,000). The disposal was completed on the same
date, on which date the Group lost control of Jilan. The net
assets of Jilan at the date of disposal were as follows:

49.

HE—ENEAR

RZE—AR"F+ZR=+—H &~5H
H—RBy B =R EER R
LAH & HRM B A alilan (AR ERE

TRREE)) 246%liE BEREAAR
#16,000,0007T (48 & 7 4918,523,0007%5
JL) c HEERRABERK  RZBAREEK
E 8 Jilanz PR HIHE o Jilan HE B BN E
E@EQDT-

HK$'000
FHET
Analysis of assets and liabilities over REEFENEEREBBED T
which control was lost:
Available-for-sale investments AHHE 2R E 36,496
Held-for-trading investments RIEEEZRE 904
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables & TBATFIA K E s UK IE 623
Bank balances and cash RITHEBNIE S 1,094
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEET B & K H th FE A 5/ IE (1,131)
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE 37,986
HK$'000
FET
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE-BNELRZERE:
Consideration received 2B A(E 18,523
Fair value of the remaining 40% Jilang2 T40% # w2 A 8 (MIFE)
interest of Jilan (Note) 15,194
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE (37,986)
Non-controlling interests IR A 5,426
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of EHENBARIEEFBECRFTIEN 58
the net assets of the subsidiary reclassified from NEREFTHEZER
equity to profit and loss (1,224)
Loss on disposal included in the other (losses) gain  E At (E518) S5t AR E 2 B8 (67)

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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49. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 49. HE—EKBELQAE (&)

HK$'000
FHET

Net cash inflow arising on disposal of HE—RBNBAREEZRESRAFER:

a subsidiary:

Cash consideration HelE 18,523
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of BB HERTEHR LA (1,094)
17,429
Note: The Group retained significant influence over Jilan upon MisE: AEETAE AEERRZHilanWE

50.

completion of the disposal and the Group has accounted for
the remaining 40% interest of Jilan as interest in an associate
whose fair value at the date of disposal was HK$15,194,000,
which determined by the Directors using a discounted cash flow
model.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

Apart from details of charges of assets in relation to letter of
credit as disclosed in Note 32, loan notes as disclosed in Note

36, the Group has the following charges on assets pledged to

secure borrowings as set out in Note 34 as at 31 December

2016:

(M)

(i)

the Group's investment properties with a carrying
value of HK$1,074,375,000, as disclosed in Note 17,
insurance proceeds and together with a floating charge
over all the assets of certain subsidiaries of the Group
were pledged to a bank to secure for a bank borrowing
with an outstanding amount of approximately
HK$525,250,000.

the Group's investment properties with a carrying value
of HK$988,425,000, as disclosed in Note 17, pledged
bank deposits with a carrying value of HK$19,713,000
as disclosed in Note 31, and together with a floating
charge over all the assets of a subsidiary of the Group
were pledged to a bank to secure for a bank borrowing
with an outstanding amount of approximately
HK$573,000,000.

50.

FE N RAEEEilantk T40% 2 #
A AR AR —HEBE AT 2 H
REERRAESFFEAURBRERER
NEBEEHRAEA5,194,000% 7T

EERA

BREIEAT B R EBEABNEE KM
ISP B EREBNEROFBIN
AEBR-_Z—RF+-_A=+—H¥HE
T AERRBRERNEEMHER (B
B EE34FTEL) -

(i) AEBEKMEEA,074,375,000
BT R E Y (A R 7T B
B RBABHREREREASE
EETFHBARNMBEERLE
FENR IR TR EAKRE
EIR1T{EE525,250,0008 7T 2 &
R

(ii) 78 & 8] B [ 8 /4988,425,000% 7T
ZIREWE (MM 17T EE)
BRI {E 419,713,000 7T (5 20 B
H3ETHEE) 2B HIRRITER
ERAEENBARNAELER
SHZ BRI IR T IRIT B R
FEEBIRTTE E4573,000,000/%8
L2 PR

KMERERAF
T -REFFR
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50. EEET &)

AEEKEM®MEGS1,856,000/%

50. CHARGES ON ASSETS (continued)

(iii) the Group’s held-for-trading investments with a (i)

51. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 51. BEAXRKIE
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—XE —T—RF
t=A=t—-A =A=t—H
FHERT FET
Capital expenditure in respect of potential BB ERNEGS V%R
acquisition contracted for but not provided — F#& & 2 BEUREE 2 & G
in the consolidated financial statements 53 - 46,000
Capital expenditure in respect of potential EBDET X ERREE VB R
share subscription contracted for but not KBHE IR RIELE
provided in the consolidated financial REZ (M5
statements (Note) 592,000 -
Note: On 18 July 2016, the Company entered into an subscription Mizt: RZZ—XRFtA+TN\B AAFHEE

carrying value of HK$651,856,000 (31 March 2016:
HK$150,923,000) was pledged to securities brokers to
secure for margin financing with an outstanding amount
of approximately HK$310,590,000 (31 March 2016:
HK$40,245,000).

(iv) the Group’s distressed debt assets with a carrying (iv)

value of HK$215,041,000 were pledged to secure for
vendor financing loan with an outstanding amount of
approximately HK$31,121,000.

(v) the Group's restricted cash with a carrying value of (v)
HK$841,106,000 (31 March 2016: Nil) were pledged
to secure for bills payable arising from the purchase
of petrochemical products and metal-related products
with an outstanding amount of approximately
HK$790,013,000 (31 March 2016: Nil).

T(ZEBE-—REF=A=+—H:
150,923,0008 L) 2 HIEE B &
BWIEIHEFEFELA EABE
EEIRF S @A 4%310,590,000/%8
T(ZE—XNE=ZA=+—8":
40,245,000/ 70 ) 2 IR

7N & B BR [ {8 4215,041,00008 7T
ZTRREBEED TUEKE (B4
HAREESEEL31,121,0008 T 2
ETRMEERZER

7K £ B BR [ (& A841,106,0005% 7T

ZE-RE=A=t—H:\E)2
ZREBEEWERAEREBE X
B8 £ % #9790,013,000/8 7t (=
T-XNEZA=Z+—RH:EB)ZAH
{tERMEBHEBEERFTESEN

Fig-

agreement with Hua Lien International (Holding) Company
Limited (“Hua Lien”), pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to subscribe a total of 3,700,000,000
shares in Hua Lien at the subscription price of HK$0.16 per
share. The consideration of approximately HK$592,000,000 will
be settled in cash by the way of the loan borrowed from the
ultimate holding company.

On 27 March 2017, the Directors considered that the conditions
precedent of the subscription agreement have not been fulfilled
by the long stop date specified in the subscription agreement
and the Directors has decided not to proceed with further
negotiation to amend or extend the subscription agreement.
The subscription agreement therefore has lapsed and the
subscription contemplated thereunder will not be proceeded.

Details of the above are set out in the joint announcement
of the Company and Hua Lien dated 21 July 2016 and
announcement of the Company dated 27 March 2017.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

GBI (FERR) BRR AR ([#EEE] ) 5T
W AR R B BREREATAR0.16%
TC AR BB B 528 A ££3,700,000,000/% 2
B A% 19 » X (& 49592,000,000/% Tt #5 1&
BRAKKERARBABERZ AR
ST

RZE—tF=ZA=++tAH EFRAE
RIB W2 SR IR R RIE B2 R E R
REBIAPATREER BERR
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52.

—R"E+ZA=+—HIEAEA

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The purpose of the share option scheme is to enable the
Board to grant options to selected employee or proposed
employee (whether full time or part time employee, including
any director) of any member of the Group or any invested
entity, any supplier of goods or services, any customer, any
person or entity that provide research, development or other
technological support, any shareholders or any participants
who contribute to the development and growth of the Group
or any invested entity (the "Eligible Participant") as incentives
or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Group and/or to recruit and retain high calibre Eligible
Participant and to attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
on 19 August 2003, the Company had adopted the share
option scheme ("2003 Share Option Scheme"), pursuant
to which the Board was authorised to grant options to the
Eligible Participant. Under the terms of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme, it shall be valid and effective for the period of 10
years from 19 August 2003. Hence, the 2003 Share Option
Scheme had expired on 19 August 2013 and no further options
can be granted pursuant to the 2003 Share Option Scheme.
Notwithstanding the expiration of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme, the provisions of the 2003 Share Option Scheme
remain in full force in all other respects of the outstanding
options granted thereunder. No further options were granted
or outstanding under the 2003 Share Option Scheme since its

expiry.

52.

B ESHE

BRETIENABREERTAMEEN
AEFBEFAKERRREMNKREETERKN
TAEESEERE (THRBAFRE
B BREMNES) ETAEVIREHE
7 ERIE P AR S E A B S8R
B EM AL ES  EARRSAAER
HEMREERE ([RERSEE])NOHE
B EIEREHERNEMSEERLER
B FERmBNEE i%a//\ﬂﬁ‘il{’ﬁ
AR BB B RIEE R
B BNEER2EERRSIHAEER
BEENADER-

BERER-ZZZ=FNATNLABER
W—IEEBRER ARFCRMN—IHE
REE ([ ZEE=FERETE]) -
Bl EERERERNGERI2HEERD
ﬁﬁﬂﬁ% BiE ST =FERETSING

XA EBE—_EE=FN\At+ILBEEAE
’?ﬁ( AT EEIL — BT =BT
HERZZE—=FNAT+NABEMETA
REZTSE=-FRBRESEH@H —PREMF
MERE-BE T =-FERETIE
& —EE=FERETE MR E
EEREBARITEBRENREEMIED
B+ PN BT =FHERETEE
BB ERR ST = FERE
ETEIE — PR R TR -
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52.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
on 17 September 2015, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) on 17
September 2015 and shall be valid and effective for a period
of ten years commencing on the date of adoption of the
New Share Option Scheme (i.e. 16 September 2025) unless
terminated earlier by shareholders in general meeting. The
number of shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted under the New
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (including the 2003 Share Option Scheme) must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total shares in issue on
the date of approval of the New Share Option Scheme by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting (i.e. 125,091,243
shares) (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) unless the Company
obtains a fresh approval from shareholders to renew the
Scheme Mandate Limit on the basis that the maximum number
of shares in respect of which any options outstanding and yet
to be exercised under the New Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes shall not exceed 30% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time.

The terms of the New Share Option Scheme provide that in
granting options under the New Share Option Scheme, the
Board may offer to grant any options subject to such terms and
conditions in relation to the minimum period of the options to
be held and/or the performance criteria to be satisfied before
such options can be exercised and/or any other terms as the
Board may determine in its absolute discretion. The Board will
also have the discretion in determining the subscription price in
respect of any option, provided that the relevant requirements
in the Listing Rules are complied with.

Tai United Holdings Limited
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52.

BREE @)

BEBREA-_ZT—RAFEALATLHEBEBD
—BEBRBRR AQARCN_TE—RF
NA++EBEA—BEHERETS ([F
EARERTE]) - RABARETEIRM A
B ZZE-_RAFALA T+ B)BEM
BHTF BRIFABRERARERE LIRR
BIE-IRBEBMRET S RAR B FA
EMERETES (RE_SE=FER
AT ED R BT M AR 1T B I AT
FEmA FEERETHROEE &%
TSHRBREAREEF KNS RN
BRETZH AR HITRMESHNI0%
(BN125,091,243[ % ) ([FFERER
B BRIEARRERREFM AT
B RRE (EEARBEFERETE R
FAEMHBIEREBRRITENTME
BIEFF RO ESHE TEEBBAARQ
RITNEFA B BT A 230% °

s R ST &I IR TR E - IRIBHT B AR
AERHBRER EERAUENRIBE
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52.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise price of the option is to be determined by the
Board provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer for the
grant of the option (which is deemed to be the date of grant if
the offer for the grant of the option is accepted by the Eligible
Participant), which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, provided that the
exercise price of the option shall in no event be less than the
nominal amount of one share; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
twenty one days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable to the Company on acceptance of
the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and to be granted under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
to any Eligible Participant (including cancelled, exercised and
outstanding options), in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue from
time to time (the “Participant Limit”). Any further grant of
options in excess of such limit must be separately approved
by shareholders with such Eligible Participant and his close
associates abstaining from voting.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016 and year
ended 31 March 2016, no share options were granted under
the New Share Option Scheme since its adoption on 17
September 2015.

52.

BREE ()

BRENTEEREZRET HAED
BT =FPHNERSE: WNEHERLE
BEER (ARARHH) (HEARTER
RESERSEERM ARARLBEH)
Bt 32 P 4 H R R P SI A Ax 0 WL AE ¢ (i)
EEXLARAEEXABIMTAR
BRI B A F U T (E - HEE AR
TTEEEEAER T MHER KO EE:
R (i) B ) #) TETAE @

BRHERENZHERENBHE -+ —
A (BIEZE) NERER R AR E i
HENBRENZNENARTNEGES
1.0078 70 c R EL = B 83 LE /{1218
AEBR - IR B IR EI R AR R
HEMBERETSREAEERSEERD
EEFEEMNERE(BEDEH 217
18 K2 18 R ATE RO B AR A ) 1T i B B 1T
kg THNROESEE  TEBAT
BFEBITROMI% ([2EEREE]) i
A — SR B HZRREMERE KA
EIRREBUME MZEAERSEHER
HE®ABARERE-

REBEE-Z-R"Ft_A=+—HIith
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53. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the nine months ended 31 December 2016
3,002,184,872 Rights Shares were issued at an exercise
price of HK$1.00 per share (see Note 41(c)). Proceeds of
HK$1,210,000,000 were offset with all the outstanding loans
from ultimate holding company and the remaining proceeds
amounting to HK$1,781,242,000 (net of transaction costs)
were received in cash.

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2016 and 31

53.

54.

TEFREXRS

REBEE_FT-—A"F+ZA=+—H8B1
NEAR BRTRITHEME.008 T
773,002,184,872 R AR f% 15 ( &I 5%
41(c)) ° FT1§ 7 181,210,000,0007% 7T
EHEHEXRZERAGNMAREEZEER
Ei MBETAMBSREAEWRRRE 2
1,781,242,0008 ¢ (IR BALAN) ©

RARETEMBERANFR

—E-XFF+ZA=Z+—HERZZ—RX
March 2016 are as follows: FZA=Z+T—H XEEZZMNBRFHN
EACEUNN
Issued and fully
Place of incorporation paid share capital/ Effective
or establishment/ registered and equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
ERARL/ BEARMERE/ r5E
MEARER EEBE AMEARER EERERKRE IEEH
(Note (a))
(M)
31December2016 | 31 March 2016
ZE-XE ZE-RE
t=A=t-H ZA=1-8
Directly held subsidiaries
EREEONBAR
Bestway Group International Limited British Virgin Islands US$1,100 100% 100%  Investment holding
("BVI")
ABRREE 110057 RABR
([XBEREE])
Tectron Pacific Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERRAHS 1% RAZR
Indirectly held subsidiaries
BREEHHEL A
Prolific Rich Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
YHRERRA ERRAHS 1% RAZR
Grand Shining Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
MERR L ABRUES (B3 REZR
Giant Silver Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100% 100%  Investment holding and trading
business
FRERAH B 18T 100% 100% REERREHEH
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 54. XRBETEMBRAANFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (#&)
(Continued)
Issued and fully
Place of incorporation paid share capital/ Effective
or establishment/ registered and equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
EMIARL/ BEARARRE/ rEE
il PEEE EELY AMRAZER EHERRE TEER
(Note (a))
(K (a))
31 December 2016 | 31 March 2016
ZE-RE ZE-RE
+=A=t-8 ZR=t-A
Indiirectly held subsidiaries (Continued)
BREENNER A (&)
Sino United Investment Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Trading business
Management Limited
ANREERFRAA 3G 1571 2555
EREEER ORI BRAA The PRC 31 December 2016: 100% 100%  Trading business
(MEAZREE (R ERRA) HK$400,000,000
31 March 2016:
HK$10,000,000
e ZE-RETZAZT-8: VRS
400,000,0007% 7T
ZE-R"E=R=1-R:
10,000,000 ¢
Sino United Energy Pte. Limited Singapore US$25,000,000 100% 100%  Commodity trading business and
security trading business
g 25,000,000 T BmRXAXBRESFLHEH
Tai United Asset Management Pte., Limited Singapore US$1,000,000 100% 100%  Security trading business
R 1,000,000% 7T BERHER
BREZAREERERAT The PRC 31 December 2016: 100% 100%  Security trading business
RMB500,000,000
31 March 2016:
RMB45,000,000
e ZT-RF EGEO S
TZA=t-H:
AR%500,000,00070
ZZ-~¥=R=1-AR:
AR %45,000,0007C
AR REEEEER] The PRC 31 December 2016: 100% 100%  Distressed debt asset
RMB900,000,000 management
31 March 2016:
RMB300,000,000
i ZE-RETZRZH-R: TREVEEER
AR #900,000,0007
“E-RFZA=t-8:
AR %300,000,0007T
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 54. ARABETEMEQANFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (#&)
(Continued)
Issued and fully
Place of incorporation paid share capital/ Effective
or establishment/ registered and equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
BELIET A BETRBRKRE/ s-1c |
il PEEE EEY AMRAZER EEERRE TEER
(Note (a))
GER)
31 December 2016 | 31 March 2016
“E-RE ZE-RE
tZA=t-A | =A=+-A
Indirectly held subsidiaries (Continued)
BEEEHNEAA (&)
R EREEEHERAR The PRC 31 December 2016: 100% 100%  Investment holding
RMB847,451,000
31 March 2016:
RMB5,000,000
HE ZE-RETZAZ+-R: REER
AR %847,451,0007
Sy e =
AR 5,000,007
FRREREERAA The PRC RMB10,000,000 75% 75%  Trading business
e AR%10,000,00072 B5%%
Kainarwolfram LLC Mongolia US$100,000 100% 100%  Mining and exploitation of
natural resources
e 100,000% 7T RERBEXAER
Ikh Uuliin Erdenes LCC Mongolia US$100,000 100% 100%  Mining and exploitation of
natural resources
EE 100,000 7T RERBERRER
San Siu Company Limited (Note b) Hong Kong HK$2 100% - Inactive
=ERAR (MzEb) i 2ET TEXH
Tai United Securities Limited (formerly known Hong Kong HK$37,145,000 100% - Financial services business
as Hui Kai Securities Limited) (Note b)
KNESBERAT ik 37,145,000 7T SRBRBER
(HERENEFBRAR) (Mb)
Tai United Financial Group Limited (formerly Hong Kong HK$24,258,462 100% - Finandial services business
known as Hui Kai Holdings Limited) (Note b)
ANERERERAR ik 24,258,462 T SRRBESR
(MBRENZRERAR) (Mb)
Tai United Futures Limited (formerly known Hong Kong HK$12,000,000 100% - Financial services business
as Hui Kai Futures Limited) (Note b)
ANAEBER AR ik 12,000,000/ 7T SRRBESR
(MERENSBEERAR) (Mb)
Tai United Finance Limited (formerly Hong Kong HK$600,000 100% - Financial services business
known as Easy Winning International Limited)
(Note b)
RAEEBRAR Bk 600,000 7T PRRBER
(MEARREEIBERAR) (Mib)

240 Tai United Holdings Limited
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

54, ARTAETEMBATNFERE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (#&)
(Continued)
Issued and fully
Place of incorporation paid share capital/ Effective
or establishment/ registered and equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation paid-up capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
EREAL/ BEARMRRE/ FEME
i PNGES EELY AMRAZER EHERRE TEEH
(Note (a))
(K (a))
31December 2016 | 31 March 2016
—E-RE ZE-RE
+=A=t-8 ZR=t-A
Indlirectly held subsidiaries (Continued)
BREENNERA (&)
Tai United Asset Management Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100% - Financial services business
(formerly known as Hui Kai Asset
Management Limited) (Note b)
AMEEERERAR ik 5,000,007 7 SRBRBER
(MERENEEERERAR) (Mib)
Mason International Limited (Note b) BVI US$100 100% - Inactive
ERERARAA (M) RERAEE 100X 7T EREH
Citi-Elite Limited (Note b) Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Inactive
EBERAR (MiEb) BB 1571 EREH
Tai United Management Company Limited UK GBP1 100% - Investment holding
5E (35 REER
Leon Property Limited (Note b/fiftb) Guernsey GBP1 100% - Property Investment
Gl 1545 NERE
BG Residential Holdings Limited Jersey GBP1 100% - Investment holding
il 1545 REZR
RCBG Residential (UK) Limited UK GBP0.01 100% - Property Investment
(Note b/ &b)
eS| 0.015% NERE
MRB Residential Holding Limited Jersey GBP900 100% - Property Investment
(Note b/#fEEb)
il 900545 NERE
MRB Residential Limited (Note b/fif 55h) UK GBP1 100% - Property Investment
5E 1545 NERE
MRB Residential Partners LLP UK - 100% - Property Investment
(Note b/ zEb) (Note ¢)
5E - NERE
GEQ
Haitong Dynamic Multi-Tranche Investment Cayman Islands US$200,000,000 25% - Fund investment
Fund IV S.P. (Note d/Miztd)
HEHS 200,000,000% 7 EeRE
AMERERAR

T -REFFR
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 &= —F— X F+=-A=+—HILNEA

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Notes:

(a) All issued share capital are ordinary shares unless otherwise
stated.

(b) These entities were newly acquired during the nine months
ended 31 December 2016 (see Note 48).

(o) This entity is a partnership established in the UK. No registered
share capital available.

(d) The above-mentioned interest holding does not empower the
Group for any voting right since they are fund investment.
Details of the consolidated structured entity are set out in Note

39.
* Established as a wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC.
# Established as a limited liability company in the PRC.

All the principal subsidiaries operate predominantly in their
respective places of incorporation/establishment unless
specified otherwise under the heading “principal activities”.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or net
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
the end of the period or at any time during the period.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

54.

RARFTEMBELANFE

(#&)

GEE

(a) BEREHA AMAECDERTRABRE

TR e

(b) ZEBRIIINBE_Z—RF+ =

T—RIENER R (R T

(0 ZERRNEBERINERLE - UE

A A RE AR A -

(d) i R PR AR N T A B IR R

% RRBMERESHRE AR

EEBRFBEERHNME3 -

* RAPBERIRIIEBEERSE-

# BRI RERAR -

B

BREIE2XH]BAREHAN FAIEE
2B A RGN EAER 2 M, B2 i

TRERETERS-

EERAR/LRILAKEZHER

%$EIZ%F&§F@@EEEWE
EERAREINEMHBAR ZHE

RIBBNITE

i

MEME QRN RKBAEMEBE T

FEERE S



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11 B 255 e 3% B

For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 HE—F— A F+=-A=+—HBIENEA

55. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 55. AR BMRRREHE

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

31 December 2016 31 March 2016
HK$'000 HK$OOO
—EB—XRE —E-RF
+=BA=+-R =A=+-A
FET FAT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries LN NG 3 4,343,069 360,080
Property, plant and equipment %% 5 K & 7,783 6,386
Deposits for potential acquisitions BHEWE 2 IES - 10,000
Other non-current assets EIJ‘E SEREBEE 6,000 -
4,356,852 376,466
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables %% » TE 5018 & E b
JE W kA 17,608 6,866
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NP NGIE S 683,354 375,460
Held-for-trading investments HEE EZ&% 627,545
Bank balances and cash RITHEBERS 762,605 114,930
2,091,112 497,256
Current liabilities =R
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEEr B E R E IR 10,604 1,242
Borrowings BE 801,292
Amount due to ultimate holding company F’gﬁﬁﬂﬁq [ @/NCIF/ O 14,728 4,798
Loans from ultimate holding company & AT R mz%ﬁk - 80,000
Loan notes EREE 1,412,116 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries FET M B A R 38 593 -
2,239,333 86,040
Net current (liabilities) assets B (BB EEFE (148,221) 411,216
Net assets EEFRE 4,208,631 787,682
Capital and reserves BEXREE
Share capital f& 7 240,164 75,054
Reserves 15 3,968,467 712,628
Total equity RSB 4,208,631 787,682
AMERERAR 243
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 &= —F— X F+=-A=+—HILNEA

55. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 55. ARQTBHBMRR KR HE
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (%)
(Continued)
Movement in the Company'’s reserves AATREED
Contributed
Share surplus  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BROEE BHRREE Rt ER B
TER TET FTET TET
t 1 April 2015 RZZE—HFMNA—H 837,222 159,393 (421,552) 575,063
Placing of new shares (Note 41(a)) @EE%HHH\ (f3E41@)) 170,150 - - 170,150
Subscription of new shares (Note 41(b)) ~ REE# AR (Fifz541(b)) 153,211 - - 153,211
Transaction cost attributable to placing @EE& R B MG
and subscription of new shares RHHA (3,302) - - (3,302)
Loss for the year FEEE - - (182,494) (182,494)
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 RZE-—RE=ZA=T-8R
—E-R"ENA—H 1,157,281 159,393 (604,046) 712,628
Issue of rights shares (Note 41(c)) BB R (F3F4100) 2,852,075 - - 2,852,075
Placing of new shares (Note 41(d)) BLEF R (PEE 41(d)) 345,000 - - 345,000
Transaction costs attributable to BITHRRO REEFRG
issue of rights shares and placing of BERZHA
new shares (12,771) - - (12,771)
Profit for the period HA i - - 71,535 71,535
At 31 December 2016 RZZE-R"F+ZA=+-H 4,341,585 159,393 (532,511) 3,968,467

Tai United Holdings Limited
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 HZ=—Z—"F+=-_A=+—HIL @A

56.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

Acquisition of Tai Infinite Holdings
Group Limited

On 5 January 2017, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Mr. Chua, the executive
director effective from 1 February 2017, to acquire
the entire issued share capital of Tai Infinite Holdings
Group Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability and its subsidiary (the
“Target Group”) at a consideration of approximately
HK$536,091,000 to be settled by the allotment and
issue, credited as fully paid, of 446,742,544 shares of
the Company to Mr. Chua. The principal asset of the
Target Group is the commercial building located at
79th Floor, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong
Kong.

On 24 March 2017, all the conditions precedent has
been fulfilled and the acquisition was completed on
the same date. The Company had allotted and issued
446,742,544 shares to, TAl Capital LLC, a company
wholly owned by Mr. Chua, at the issue price of
HK$1.20 per share to satisfy the consideration of the
acquisition. As the Target Group did not operate any
business prior to the acquisition date, the acquisition is
considered as an asset acquisition.

The management of the Company is still in the process
of assessing the financial impact of the acquisition.
Details of the above are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 5 January 2017 and 24 March
2017.

56. MEHKER

(a)

WEAEZEREERERA
5

RZE—tF—ARAB ARQ7A
P ITEERAEFI —BHEE
BE BT -—tF A AL
0 6] FE LA (B 49536,091,000/%8
TR RZEREEER AR (—
MRAeSESTEMKIZERA
A REWBAT ([ERER])®
2HEBITRA  ARRINAEEE R
B 1T446,742, 54488 N BR P AR
AR BRI EE S A AT B R
S BEEENTFEEEAMNE
BERRNEFIRFIRFLTIIEL
mEWE-

RZE—+F=A=-+WB A
SREHEEER REBEEERN
B AR  ANRRIABITESRR
191.207 JTLETAI Capital LLC (%2
SEREHRAZ AR B KT
446,742,544 K E R D - LER
KEEBEZRE-ARBIEEEN
R B BRI S EMET K
WEEERA—THEEKE-

ARREEBNHAENEKE =R
MBEE EHLAFBHRAR
FAEHR - T—tF-HARBEC
T—tF=—AZ+MAZA%-

KMERERAF
T -REFFR
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2016 &= —F— X F+=-A=+—HILNEA

56. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

57.

(b)

Potential share subscription of Hua Lien
(Continued)

On 27 March 2017, the Directors considered that the
conditions precedent of the subscription agreement
have not been fulfilled by the long stop date specified
in the subscription agreement and the Directors has
decided not to proceed with further negotiation to
amend or extend the subscription agreement. The
subscription agreement therefore has lapsed and the
subscription contemplated thereunder will not be
proceeded. The management of the Company expected
that this event has no material financial impact to the
Group.

Details of the above are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 27 March 2017.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in the
consolidated financial statements with no effect on previously
reported result and equity so as to conform to the current
year's presentation. Details of the reclassification are set out in
Note 1.

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

56.

57.

BEMREE

(b)

EBRoBERORE (&)

RZZE—+tF=A=++tH &=
BRI hag 2 SOOR R I RE 19
BB E R RZE LA BT R
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AERERALEGL REAREE
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A 0 R

AEEBEAEANBREMEZGAER BE
kAE (B AEEEEREAVBRR) #id

The consolidated results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial reporting periods as extracted from the audited

consolidated financial statements of the Group are summarised below: W
For the nine
For the year ended 31 March months ended
BE=A=+—HILFE 31 December
2013 2014 2015 2016 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
8z
—E-RE
t=ZA=t-H
—E—=F —E-mE —E-0E TR -RE EREA
FERT FHET FET FET TERT
RESULTS ES
Revenue Yo 524 2,255 7,632 1,121,247 8,102,730
(Loss) profit for the year/period & &,/ Hif (18 )& F (8,957) (6,894) (58,267) (116,074) 41,107
Attributable to: AT ALFEN:
Owners of the Company N/NGIE 2N (8,957) (6,894) (58,027) (116,204) 41,263
Non-controlling interests FEFR IR M A - - (240) 130 (156)
(8,957) (6,894) (58,267) (116,074) 41,107
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(g#oR) (EHIR)  (EHIER)  (EHIER)
(Loss) earnings per share TR (EE) B
- Basic (HK cents) — 2R (B (0.21) (0.83) (5.07) (8.56) 1.94
As at 31 March As at
W=ZA=+—H 31 December
2013 2014 2015 2016 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZB—RF
—E—=F —E-mE —E-hHE —T-RF |t=ZA=+-H
FET FHET FET FET THERT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAR
Total assets BEE 739,512 764,244 775,054 1,887,077 10,274,019
Total liabilities BEE (169,623) (167,292) (149,241) (1,029,167) (6,041,789)
569,889 596,952 625,813 857,910 4,232,230
AMERERAR
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Particulars of Properties

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Attributable interest

Location Usage Tenure of the Group
3t A FH FEEMEGES
The Buckingham, Residential premises for rental and/or Freehold interest 100%
6-9 Buckingham Gate, capital appreciation KAFERE
London, United Kingdom HEEEDERHIEEREE
10 Hammersmith Grove, Commercial premises for rental Long leasehold interest 100%
London, United Kingdom and/or capital appreciation REAE %
HAREMER,/SIEEREE
No.555 Fengqi Road, Hotel facility for rental and/or Granted the land use rights of the 100%

Xiacheng District, Hangzhou City
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
TR A

oM™ T E

B B& 55557

Tai United Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

capital appreciation

HEEERER,SEEAREE

property for two concurrent terms
expiring on 25 June 2042 and

25 June 2052 for commercial and
composite uses respectively.

RUEARERREAR MBRUFFH
PRAR TN =—FA=-+HBR
—ER-FAAZTRBERNMEZ
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